Democratic Service
Complete Agenda R e

CAERNARFON
Gwynedd
CYNGOR LL55 1SH

GWYNEDD

Mae'r ddogfen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg.

— » ' This document is also available in Welsh.

Meeting

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date and Time

1.00 pm, MONDAY, 8TH DECEMBER, 2025

*NOTE*
This meeting will be webcast

https://gwynedd.public-i.tv/core/l/en GB/portal/home

Location

Hybrid - Siambr Dafydd Orwig, Council Offices, Caernarfon LL55 1SH
and Virtually via Zoom

Contact Point

Lowri Haf Evans
01286 679 878

lowrihafevans@gwynedd.llyw.cymru

(DISTRIBUTED 28/11/25)

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru



http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/
https://gwynedd.public-i.tv/core/l/en_GB/portal/home

PLANNING COMMITTEE

MEMBERSHIP (15)

Plaid Cymru (10)

Councillors
Elwyn Edwards Delyth Lloyd Griffiths
Elin Hywel Gareth Tudor Jones
Olaf Cai Larsen Edgar Wyn Owen
Gareth A Roberts Huw Rowlands
John Pughe Berwyn Parry Jones

Independent (4)

Councillors
Louise Hughes Anne Lloyd-Jones
John Pughe Roberts Gruffydd Williams

Lib/Lab (1)

Councillor Gareth Coj Parry



PROCEDURE FOR SPEAKING ON PLANNING APPLICATIONS IN
THE PLANNING COMMITTEE

The Council has decided that third parties have the right to speak on planning applications at
the Planning Committee. This leaflet outlines the normal operational arrangements for
speaking at the committee.

1. | Report of the Planning Service on the planning application
including a recommendation.

2. | If an application has been received from a 3™ party to speak the
Chairman will invite the speaker to come forwards.

3. | Objector or a representative of the objectors to address the | 3 minutes
committee.

4. | Applicant or a representative of the applicant(s) to address the | 3 minutes
committee.

5. | Local Member(s) to address the committee 10 minutes

6. | Committee Chairman to ask for a proposer and seconder for the
planning application.

7. | The committee to discuss the planning application




5.1

5.2

AGENDA

APOLOGIES
To accept any apologies for absence.

DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST AND PROTOCOL
MATTERS

To receive any declaration of personal interest and to note protocol matters.

URGENT ITEMS

To note any items that are a matter of urgency in the view of the Chairman
for consideration.

MINUTES

The Chairman shall propose that the minutes of the previous meeting of this
committee, held on 17" November 2025, be signed as a true record.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS

To submit the report of the Head of Environment Department.

APPLICATION NO C25/0418/30/LL LAND OPPOSITE DEUNANT,
ABERDARON, PWLLHELI, LL53 8BP

Full application for the Erection of 8. No. Affordable Dwellings (exception
site) and Associated Development to include creation of vehicular access,
estate road, landscaping and sustainable surface water drainage area
LOCAL MEMBER: Councillor Gareth Williams

Link to relevant background documents

APPLICATION NO C25/0625/39/LL BERTH DDU CARAVAN PARK,
BWLCHTOCYN, PWLLHELI, GWYNEDD, LL53 7BY

Re-submission of a previously refused application with improvements from
that as refused for a caravan site to include a toilet block and environmental
improvements.

LOCAL MEMBER: Councillor John Brynmor Hughes

Link to relevant background documents

16 - 53

54 -70


https://amg.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/planning/index.html?fa=getApplication&id=36342&language=en
https://amg.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/planning/index.html?fa=getApplication&id=36606&language=en

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

APPLICATION NO C25/0755/14/LL VEHICLE INSPECTORATE 71 -85
LON CAE FFYNNON, YSTAD DDIWYDIANNOL CIBYN,
CAERNARFON, GWYNEDD, LL55 2BD

Change of use the former VOSA testing station to form a Timber and
Builders Merchants

LOCAL MEMBER: Councillor Dewi Jones

Link to relevant background documents

APPLICATION NO C25/0647/11/LL DENIS FERRANTI METERS 86 -101
LTD, DENIS FERRANTI METERS FFORDD CAERNARFON,
BANGOR, GWYNEDD, LL57 4SP

Change of use of an existing industrial unit (Use Class B2) to an indoor
padel sports centre (Use Class D2) and associated works

LOCAL MEMBER: Councillor Gareth A Roberts

Link to relevant background documents

APPLICATION NO C25/0428/14/LL MONA, 4 STRYD FAWR, 102-120
CAERNARFON, GWYNEDD, LL55 1RN

Change of use form offices to 5 residential flats, including extension at the
rear. Air source heat pumps and a new door to the refuse store.

LOCAL MEMBER: Councillor Cai Larsen

Link to relevant background documents

APPLICATION NO C25/0462/02/LL LAND NEXT TO PANDY, 121-149
CORRIS, SY20 9RJ

Farm diversification project for the siting of 4 moveable holiday
accommaodation units on the land along with 1 moveable unit as shower and
toilet facility

LOCAL MEMBER: Councillor John Pughe Roberts

Link to relevant background documents



https://amg.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/planning/index.html?fa=getApplication&id=36687&language=en
https://amg.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/planning/index.html?fa=getApplication&id=36687&language=en
https://amg.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/planning/index.html?fa=getApplication&id=36341&language=en
https://amg.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/planning/index.html?fa=getApplication&id=36367&language=en

Agenda Item 4.

PLANNING COMMITTEE 17 November 2025

Present: Chair: Councillor Elwyn Edwards
Vice-chair: Councillor Huw Rowlands

Councillors: Delyth Lloyd Griffiths, Elin Hywel, Gareth T Jones, Anne Lloyd Jones, Cai Larsen,
Edgar Owen, Gareth Coj Parry, John Pughe Roberts and Gruffydd Williams.
Others invited - Local Member: Councillor Gareth Williams.

Officers: lwan Evans (Head of Legal Services - Monitoring Officer), Gareth Jones (Assistant Head
of Environment), Gwawr Hughes (Planning Manager), Rhys Cadwaladr (Senior Planning Officer -
Minerals and Waste), Dafydd Jones (Solicitor) and Lowri Haf Evans (Democracy Services Officer).

1. APOLOGIES

Apologies were received from Councillor Berwyn Parry Jones and Councillor Gareth A
Roberts.
Condolences were expressed to Clir Anne Lloyd Jones who had recently lost her sister.

2. DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST AND PROTOCOL MATTERS
The following members declared that they were local members in relation to the items noted:

e Councillor Gareth Williams (who was not a member of this Planning Committee), in item
5.4 (C25/0418/30/LL) on the agenda.

3. URGENT ITEMS

As a point of order, it was reported that since the Chair was joining the meeting virtually, the
Monitoring Officer would be announcing the results of the voting on the applications.

4. MINUTES

The Chair accepted the minutes of the previous meeting of this committee held on 20 October
2025 as a true record subject to amending 'She' and not 'He' in the English record for the
observations of the local member in application 5.2 (¢) C24/0937/16/LL Zip World, Bethesda.

5. PLANNING APPLICATIONS

The Committee considered the following applications for development. Details of the
applications were expanded upon, and questions were answered in relation to the plans and
policy aspects.

5.1 APPLICATION NUMBER C24/1124/34/AC Cefn Graianog, Llanllyfni, Caernarfon, Gwynedd
Application under Section 73 to amend condition 2 of planning permission ref.
C20/1064/22/AC to allow for a four-year extension to complete the minerals operations and
restoration.

Page 6



Attention was drawn to the late observations form.

The Senior Minerals and Waste Planning Officer highlighted that the application sought an
extension of the operating period of the silting lagoons associated with the processing plant
of the sand and gravel that was excavated from the quarry. The working methods and
processes would be the same as those currently used in the quarry.

In the context of the principle of the development, it was noted that continued excavation for
sand and gravel at Cefn Graianog would ensure that the Council meets its allocation
implications in the Regional Technical Statement, to supply minerals for the North Wales sub-
region and maintain a seven-year land bank of sand and gravel. It was noted that there were
only a few permitted sand and gravel reserves available in north west Wales and that this
proposal would mean a continuation in the provision of sand and gravel supply to the local
construction economy. It was expressed that the preservation of the silting lagoons was
essential for the processing, washing and sorting of the material; it was acceptable and
consistent with the requirement of the Local Development Plan (LDP) policies MWYN 2,
MWYN 3 and Strategic Policy PS 22 of the Local Development Plan (LDP).

In the context of visual amenities and the landscape, it was explained that this application was
specifically for extending the period of development and did not include any extension or
physical modifications to the already approved working area. The nature of the proposal to
extend the lifespan of the operations would undoubtedly extend the visual effects in the
medium term but given its general context in an established mineral working, it was not
considered that it would result in any major levels of visual effects. It was highlighted that the
boundary of the LIyn AONB was close to the site, but confirmation was received from the
AONB Unit that there were no concerns about the impact on the AONB given that this was
only a limited time extension; the Mineral Planning Authority considered that the proposal
complied with the requirements of policies PCYFF 3, PCYFF 4 and MWYN 9 in the LDP.

In considering residential amenities, it was noted that one individual property was located
within the 100m buffer zone as prescribed under policy MWYN 5 in the LDP. The development
would be subject to the same working conditions as pre-existing ones, including the
management of noise, dust and working hours; subject to appropriate conditions to control
the effects of noise and dust and working hours, the proposal would not have an adverse
effect on the amenities of the area and therefore complied with policies PCYFF 2, MWYN 3
and MWYN 5 in the LDP.

The proposal did not include any change to traffic movements and transportation to and from
the site.

It was explained that an updated biodiversity assessment had been completed to support the
associated applications that had been submitted for extending the time of the quarry's various
permits. It was also explained that there had been a need to assess whether there had been
any change to these habitats since the previous ecological surveys were carried out and it
was recommended that the requirements to implement the reasonable avoidance measures
to protect badgers and reptiles during any field boundary clearance or soil stripping works
were maintained; the development was acceptable with appropriate mitigation conditions and
measures and in accordance with Strategic Policy PS 19 and policies AMG 3, AMG 5, MWYN
3 and MWYN 9 in the LDP.

In the context of hydrology issues, the main purpose of the closed system of lagoons was to
supplement the existing water management infrastructure to ensure adequate capacity to

Page 7



manage all quarry water on site, i.e. as a self-sustaining system. It was considered that the
proposed development would have no adverse effect on hydrological characteristics and flood
risk and would comply with the requirements of Strategic Policy PS 19 and policies AMG 3,
AMG 5, PCYFF 2, PCYFF 3, PCYFF 6 and MWYN 3 in the LDP.

Officers considered that the proposed development was consistent with all relevant planning
policies and considerations and recommended that the application be granted with
appropriate conditions.

b) It was proposed and seconded to approve the application

RESOLVED: To delegate the right to the Head of Environment Department to approve
the application.
Conditions:

e Written notice shall be given to the Mineral Planning Authority at least 14 days
before: i. The commencement of restoration works on any part of the land within
the permitted area following the cessation of use as an ancillary silting facility
for any of the three lagoons indicated on the application plans.

e The permitted use of the site as an ancillary silting lagoon shall cease by 31
December 2028, restoration shall be completed thereafter by 31 December 2029 or
upon cessation of operations, whichever is the sooner.

e Permitted Operations and Compliance with the Submitted Details/Plans.

e Restriction on Permitted Development Rights, buildings, structures, private
roads, floodlighting and fences.

e Hours of operation.

e Soil handling and husbandry.

o Safeguarding of public rights of way.

¢ Noise restrictions to match existing, plant and machinery to be fitted with white
noise alarms.

o Restore to mixed agricultural use and nature conservation,

¢ No oil, fuel, chemicals to be stored within the application site.

o Drainage, measures to prevent pollution of local watercourses.

o Aftercare measures for agricultural uses and biodiversity management.

¢ Revised restoration scheme in the event of premature mineral extraction.

e Ripping of ground base material to avoid surface compaction and achieve
adequate drainage.

e Minimum subsoil and topsoil depths.

5.2 APPLICATION NUMBER C24/1126/34/AC Cefn Graianog, Llanllyfni, Caernarfon, Gwynedd
An application under Section 73 to amend condition 2 of planning permission ref.
C20/1065/22/AC to allow a four-year extension to complete the minerals operations and
restoration.

Attention was drawn to the late observations form.
a) The Senior Minerals and Waste Officer highlighted that the proposal sought to extend the time

period until 31 December 2028 to continue with the minerals operation at Fferm Graianog. He
explained that this would ensure the non-sterilisation of the mineral reserve and complete the

Page 8



restoration of the site in accordance with the permitted scheme of working and provide
ancillary infrastructure in support of proposals to extract and process minerals from the quarry.
The proposal did not include extending the actual footprint of the minerals operation only an
extension of time for another four years. Plant activities, processing, dispatch and extraction
of minerals would be contained entirely within the boundaries of the existing site and in
accordance with the terms of conditions attached to the current planning consent.

It was explained that the working methods and processes would be the same as those
currently used in the quarry and would use the same extractors, conveyors and other mobile
machinery as the existing ones.

In the context of the principle of development, it was noted that the continuation of sand and
gravel excavation at Cefn Graianog would ensure that the Council meets its allocation
implications in the Regional Technical Statement, to supply minerals for the north Wales sub-
region and maintain a seven-year land bank of sand and gravel. It was explained that there
are only a few permitted sand and gravel reserves available in north west Wales and that this
proposal would involve continuing to provide a supply of sand and gravel to the local
construction economy; the principle of development was acceptable and consistent with the
requirements in policies MWYN 2, MWYN 3 and Strategic Policy PS 22 in the LDP.

In the context of visual amenities and the landscape, it was noted that the application was
specifically for the extension of the development period and therefore did not include any
extension or physical alterations to the work area which has already been approved. The
nature of the proposal to extend the lifespan of the operations would undoubtedly extend the
visual effects in the medium term but given its general context in an established mineral works,
it was not considered that it would result in any major levels of visual effects. It was highlighted
that the boundary of the LIyn AONB was close to the site, but confirmation was received from
the AONB Unit that there were no concerns about the impact on the AONB given that this was
only a limited time extension. The Mineral Planning Authority considered that the proposal
complied with the requirements of policies PCYFF 3, PCYFF 4 and MWYN 9 in the LDP.

In considering residential amenities, it was noted that one individual property is located within
the 100m buffer zone as prescribed under policy MWYN 5 in the LDP. The development will
be subject to the same working conditions as pre-existing ones, including the management
noise, dust and working hours; subject to appropriate conditions to control the effects of noise
and dust and working hours, the proposal will not have an adverse effect on the amenities of
the area and therefore complies with the policies PCYFF 2, MWYN 3 and MWYN 5 in the
LDP.

The proposal does not include any change to traffic movements and transportation to and
from the site.

It was explained that an updated biodiversity assessment had been completed to support the
associated applications that had been submitted for extending the time of the quarry's various
permits. It was also clarified that there had been a need to assess whether there had been
any change to these habitats since the previous ecological surveys had been carried out, and
it was recommended that the requirements to implement the reasonable avoidance measures
to protect badgers and reptiles during any field boundary clearance or soil stripping works
were maintained; the development was acceptable with appropriate mitigation conditions and
measures and is in line with Strategic Policy PS 19 and policies AMG 3, AMG 5, MWYN 3 and
MWYN 9 in the LDP.

Page 9



b)

In the context of hydrology matters, it was noted that mitigation measures for the protection of
watercourses, streams and wetlands had already been submitted and assessed as required
under condition 36 of the parent consent (C16/0816/34/MW). The working site, stockpiling
area and the lagoons would continue to operate in accordance with an Environmental Permit
and the closed loop water management system will be used, as approved under planning
permission C15/0299/34/MW which was the subject of application 5.1. It was considered that
the proposed development would have no adverse effect on hydrological features and flood
risk and would comply with the requirements of the LDP's Strategic Policy PS 19 and policies
AMG 3, AMG 5, PCYFF 2, PCYFF 3, PCYFF 6 and MWYN 3 in the LDP.

The officers considered that the proposed development was consistent with all relevant
policies and planning considerations and recommended that the application be granted with
appropriate conditions.

It was proposed and seconded to approve the application

During the ensuing discussion, the following comments were noted by a Member:
e That reference to maintaining a 7-year land bank of sand and gravel also applied to
nearby Llecheiddior Farm
RESOLVED:
To delegate the right to the Head of Environment Department to approve the
application.

Conditions

e Mineral extraction and processing will cease by 31 December 2028 by which time
all plant and machinery shall have been removed from the site; restoration shall be
completed by 30 June 2029.

o Permitted Activities and Compliance with the Submitted Details/Plans.

o Restriction on Permitted Development Rights, buildings, structures, erections,
private roads floodlighting and fences.

e Working Hours.

e Soil Handling and Husbandry.

o Drainage, measures to prevent pollution of local watercourses.

e Annual review of operations.

o Safeguarding of public rights of way.

o Restore to mixed agricultural use and nature conservation.

e Reinstatement of field boundaries.

e Aftercare measures for agricultural uses and biodiversity management.

o Dust controls and noise restrictions to match existing, plant machinery at the
working face to be fitted with white noise alarms.

e Archaeological mitigation and recording.

e Sheeting of lorries leaving site with stone less than 500mm.

e Restrict vehicular access to existing access arrangements.

o No refuse or waste materials to be imported to the site.

e The principal means of transporting raw material from the working face to the
processing plant shall be by means of a conveyor unless otherwise agreed.

Page 10



5.3 APPLICATION NUMBER C25/0418/30LL National Grid Co Plc, Llanddeiniolen, Caernarfon

Installation of an underground electricity cable in association with Pentir BESS energy storage
scheme (LPA ref: C24/0532/25/LL)

Attention was drawn to the late observations form.

a) The Planning Manager highlighted that it was a full planning application for the installation
of an 830m underground cable between the Pentir electricity substation and the nearby
Battery Energy Storage System facility which was approved by planning permission in 2024.
The installation period was expected to take a maximum of 10 weeks, with the cable being
laid underground either through trenches dug on the surface and filled back, or through
Horizontal Directional Drilling.

It was explained that the site is an Open Countryside site and within the Dinorwig Landscape
of Outstanding Historic Interest with a small area within Flood Zone 3 (surface water and
watercourses). To the north of the site the adjacent woodland is a recognised "Regional
Wildlife Site" and is listed on the Ancient Woodlands List as a "Plantation on an Ancient
Woodland Site". It was also noted that the land was classified as 3a, 3b and 5 on the
predictive Agricultural Land Classification Map for Wales.

In this case, the proposal is located with the intention to connect two sites that have
permission and therefore the rural location is unavoidable. Attention was drawn to policy ISA
1 which is supportive of proposals for water, electricity, gas, etc services to improve
provision, subject to detailed planning considerations. The policy states the importance of
the infrastructure provision for a development site being located and designed in a manner
that minimises the impact on the natural and built environment. This development will be
placed entirely underground, and therefore the proposal was deemed to comply with the
requirements of ISA 1.

The method of laying the cable will be a mix of providing surface dug and backfilled trenches,
or through Horizontal Directional Drilling within areas where tree roots and tree-dwelling
species need to be protected. The areas that will be subject to the drilling method have been
identified, partly because of Natural Resources Wales' comments. The confirmation of the
use of the drilling method in these specific areas together with imposing a planning condition
for agreeing the launch points of the drilling method ensures that the trees and species are
protected. As a result, the proposal was deemed acceptable. It was reiterated that Natural
Resources Wales had provided a response on the 14 November stating that they were now
satisfied with the proposal. There will be no above-ground impact following the installation
of the cable and therefore it was not considered to have a long-term impact on any habitat
or agricultural land.

It was recognised that there will be inconvenience from noise and movement during the
construction phase, but this period was considered to be short, and subject to conditions
dealing with noise, dust and vibration matters, together with the prior agreement of a Building
Control Plan, it was considered that it could alleviate any impacts and therefore the proposal
was acceptable in this context.

Matters regarding transport, language, and flooding were referred to, which had received
appropriate attention, and the proposal was acceptable in relation to these matters. It was
noted that Heneb considered the proposal to be acceptable subject to a planning condition
to agree an archaeological work programme.

Page 11



b)

54

Officers considered the proposal acceptable and compliant with the requirements of national
and local policies and recommended granting the application with appropriate conditions.

Taking advantage of the right to speak, the applicant's Agent noted the following
observations:
e That the officer's report was complete.

e The cable laying work would be underground and would last for about 10 weeks.

e That the work meets Welsh Government targets for energy storage.

e Work linking the two sites already had planning permission and this work was
essential.

e Consultation work had been completed.

o Nearby Ancient Forest - tree survey completed, and mitigation measures agreed.

e That a condition had been agreed for the drilling work.

e There were mature trees on the cable path — specialist drilling would be required to

avoid impact.

Heneb — monitoring and recording work will be completed during the works.
e Any crossings and pollution works will be monitored.

¢ No objections had been received during the consultation period.

The Chair noted that the Local Members did not object to the application.
It was proposed and seconded to approve the application.

RESOLVED To approve in accordance with the following conditions:

1. Five years.

2. In accordance with the plans/details submitted with the application.

3 Compliance with the recommendations of the Preliminary Ecological
Evaluation, Arboriculture Impact Assessment and the Green Infrastructure
Statement.

4, Submission of an Environmental Construction Management Plan to manage
impacts on the natural environment.

5. Submission of a Construction Management Plan to manage amenity matters.

6. Agree on an Archaeological Work Programme.

7. Submission of a Site Restoration Plan to restore the site to a condition agreed
with the Planning Authority after the development's operational period has
ended.

8. Submission of a plan for eradicating Himalayan Balsam from the site.

9. Submit details of the underground drilling method with launching points

located outside the tree roots protection areas.

Notes:
Natural Resources Wales
Gwynedd Archaeological Planning Service

APPLICATION NUMBER C25/0418/30/LL Land Opposite Deunant, Aberdaron, Pwillheli
Full application for the erection of eight affordable dwellings (exception site) and associated
developments to include creation of a vehicular access, estate road, landscaping and a
sustainable surface water drainage area.

Page 12



Attention was drawn to the late observations form.

The Planning Manager highlighted that the proposal includes the construction of three 2-
bedroom bungalows, four 3-bedroom two-storey houses and one 4-bedroom two-storey
houses all to be finished with a mix of render, stone and wood cladding on the walls and a
natural slate roof. It was added that an existing natural 'clawdd' to the front of the site was
to be relocated to the northern boundary of the site with new hedges to be planted on the
remaining site boundaries.

It was reported that the site of the proposed development is presently open agricultural land
with boundaries predominantly natural hedges with adjacent residential dwellings to the
north, west and southerly direction with various elevations in terms of design, form and
finishes. The entire site is outside the current development boundary of the village of
Aberdaron and is therefore in open countryside. The western and southern boundary of the
proposed site partly abut the current development boundary. The class 3 public road is
situated adjacent to the western boundary and what would be the front of the site with access
and a right of way into agricultural lands that runs along the land's northern boundary. The
site is within the LIyn AONB and the LIyn and Ynys Enlli Landscape of Outstanding Historic
Interest designations and within a 500m zone from a scheduled monument.

It was explained that the village of Aberdaron is defined as a rural/coastal village in the LDP
with approximately 95 houses and a few facilities within the current development boundary.
Based on the settlement size a development of this scale would mean a growth of 7.6% to
the settlement, however, we must bear in mind that recent permission was granted for
another exception site for 5 units in this settlement.

With the site located outside the development boundary all units were expected to be for
local affordable need. For Aberdaron this is defined as people who are in need of affordable
housing and who have lived within the Village, or in the surrounding rural area for five years
or more, either immediately before submitting an application or in the past. A 'rural area' has
been defined in this case as a distance of 6km from the application site and the whole of the
area of any Community Council divided by the 6km distance, excluding properties within the
development boundary of any settlement other than the settlement within which the
application is located.

Evidence was submitted in the form of a Housing and Affordable Housing Needs Statement
which refers to a need highlighted on the Social Housing and Tai Teg Register in Aberdaron
and the village of Rhiw, stating that Rhiw is located within 6km east of Aberdaron and is not
included as a designated settlement, including as a cluster, and therefore it is not possible
to provide any new housing development within the settlement. The combined data from the
Social Housing and Tai Teg Register for Aberdaron and Rhiw was confirmed, and
consideration had been given to the contribution that a recently approved application for 5
self-build units would offer to the area.

The proposal would provide a neutral scheme in terms of tenure; offers a mix of social rented
housing, intermediate affordable rental housing and shared ownership to be able to meet a
wide range of need and enable households to move from rented to shared ownership as
their circumstances change. This will offer a completely different local affordable provision
to what has already been allowed on another site on the outskirts of the village such as the
recent 5-unit self-build scheme. Based on the information submitted as part of the application
it was considered that the need had been confirmed for the development, with the proposal
to form a logical extension to the village.

Page 13



The site is located within the AONB, and although it was recognised as an exclusion site
and extending out into agricultural open land, it was not considered that it would have a
visual adverse impact and would suit the built context of the existing area and the rest of the
village. In the context of general and residential amenities, following a full assessment, the
proposal was considered to be designed to minimise any impact on neighbouring properties,
and was therefore acceptable.

Attention was drawn to the comments of the Biodiversity Unit, and the potential impact of
pollution reaching the Pen Llyn and Sarnau Special Area of Conservation. It was noted that
the issue had received relevant attention, and as a result of imposing pollution control
measures during the building works and of the sustainable drainage area, it was not
considered that the proposal would have a significant impact on the characteristics of the
Special Area of Conservation.

It was reiterated that issues of drainage, transport, and language had been addressed and
were acceptable subject to relevant planning conditions. It was considered that the proposal
complied with the requirements of local and national policies and therefore it was
recommended that the application be granted subject to the imposing relevant conditions.

b) Taking advantage of the right to speak, the applicant's Agent noted the following
observations:
¢ That the application would provide eight affordable homes being led by Grwp Cynefin
with the support of Cyngor Gwynedd to address the Gwynedd Housing Strategy.
Consultation had taken place.
That the scheme was acceptable.
Meetings had been held with the Community Council and the County Council.
The scheme complied with local and national policies.
No objection had been received from the Highways Unit.
Attention had been given to the public footpath.
That the Strategic Housing Unit highlighted that the scheme meets the need.
The proposal would have a positive impact on the language — likely to appeal to Welsh
speakers who have responded to the local demand.

c) Taking advantage of the right to speak, the Local Member made the following observations:

e That the village is rural.

e There was a lot of opposition to the application locally.

e That the proposal was an over-development — the original proposal was for five houses
— this suited the site better.

e The proposal would have an impact on the neighbours at Y Dddl - it was the nearest
property to the site. Looking at the plan, the largest house within the development would
overlook Y Ddol. Frustration that there was a lack of consultation about the design and
layout of the development.

o Despite discussion with the applicant regarding an amendment to place the two
bungalows to the rear of Y Dddl, it was disappointing that there was no change to the
plan.

o Despite the number of trees in the plans, trees are rare - the Deunant area is vulnerable
to inclement weather and trees are rarely allowed to grow.

e Suggested that the Committee visit the site before coming to a decision - this would
provide a better context than a photograph in a report.

Page 14



¢ With the housing being social and funded by a Welsh Government grant, it was therefore
difficult for the Council to oppose.

e That an application by a local person to build six houses outside the development
boundary had been refused - lack of consistency.

¢ Was there a genuine need for these houses? According to the report there are 14 families
on the list — this was a high figure and was questioned locally.

e That rules needed to be adjusted so that Local Members had access to the waiting list.

e That the Committee needed to consider the concerns of the Community Council and the
residents of the village.

d) It was proposed and seconded to conduct a site visit to assess the impact on residential
amenities.

In response to a question as to whether an individual expert survey had been completed by
a rural housing facilitator for the development, it was stated that it would be the responsibility
of the applicant to request such a survey. It was reiterated that an individual survey was not
necessary, and that the information and evidence of the Strategic Housing Unit had
confirmed that the need existed. In response, it was noted that data and evidence need to
be provided in reports and not just opinions. Suitable and appropriate information must be
included to highlight the need locally.

ch) During the ensuing discussion, the following observations were made by Members:
e Complete data appropriateness was relevant.
e That the actual need must be fully considered.
e That there was an inconsistency in the wording of the 'size' of the development —
clear assurance was needed.
e A drop in numbers at Ysgol Botwnnog highlighted that young people were leaving
the area.

RESOLVED: To defer a decision and conduct an inspection site visit.
Reason: To assess the impact of the proposal on the amenities of the nearby
residents.

The meeting commenced at 13:00 and concluded at 14:00.

CHAIR

Page 15



Agenda Iltem 5.1

PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Number: 1
Application C25/0418/30/LL
Number:

Date Registered: 06/06/25

Application Full

Type:

Community: Aberdaron

Ward: Pen draw Llyn

Proposal: Full application to construct 8 affordable dwellings

(exception site) with associated developments including
creation of vehicular access, estate road, landscaping and a
sustainable surface water drainage area.

Tir Gyferbyn / Land Opposite Deunant, Aberdaron,

Location: )
Pwllheli, LL53 8BP

Summary of the
Recommendation: To ApPROVE WITH CONDITIONS

Page 16


https://gwynedd-planning.idoxcloud.com/locations/index.html?fa=edit&id=342380
https://gwynedd-planning.idoxcloud.com/locations/index.html?fa=edit&id=342380

PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

1 Description:

1.1 This is a full application for the construction of 8 affordable dwellings on an exception site in the
village of Aberdaron with associated developments, including creating a vehicular access, estate
road, landscaping and a sustainable surface water drainage area. The application was deferred in
the previous Committee on 17.11.2025 in order to carry out a site visit to assess the impact of the
proposal on the amenities of the area.

1.2 For clarity, further details regarding the application as submitted are as follows:

e Creation of a vehicular access with an access road into the site and parking spaces within
the site at the front and back of the houses.

e To erect 8 semi-detached houses with gardens or parking spaces to the front with back
gardens and some side gardens.

1.3 In terms of the details of the houses which are all affordable dwellings, the following is noted:

3 two-bedroom bungalows with an internal floor area of 58m?

4 two-storey, three-bedroom houses with an internal floor area of 93m?

1 two-storey, four-bedroom house with an internal floor area of 114m?

They will be externally finished in a combination of render, stone cladding and timber on
the walls and a natural slate roof. The current natural ‘clawdd' to the front of the site will
be relocated to the northern boundary of the site with new hedges to planted on the remain-
der of the site's boundaries.

1.4 According to information received with the application, the plan intends to provide neutral tenure,
and this means that the applicant would provide 100% affordable units with the tenure not specifi-
cally noted. The intention of Grwp Cynefin, as the owner, will be to provide a mix of housing in
accordance with the demand as highlighted that would then allow flexibility according to the cir-
cumstances of need should this change, e.g. occupiers moving from rented accommodation to a
part ownership dwelling. It is claimed that this would be reasonable and suitable by ensuring that
Grwp Cynefin has the flexibility for the exact mix of tenure within the plan by being able to respond
to the community's specific needs as it changes to ensure the long-term affordability of the houses.

1.5 The site of the proposed development is currently open agricultural land with surrounding bound-
aries mainly natural hedgerows. There are residential properties adjacent to the site to the north,
west and south with varying elevations in terms of design, form and finishes.

1.6 The entire site is outside the current development boundary of the village of Aberdaron and is
therefore in open countryside. The proposed site's western and southern boundaries touch the ex-
isting development boundary as highlighted in the Local Development Plan. The class 3 public
road is situated adjacent to the western boundary and what would be the front of the site with access
and a right of way into agricultural lands that runs along the land's northern boundary. The site is
within the LIyn AONB and the LIyn and Ynys Enlli Landscape of Outstanding Historic Interest
designations and within a 500m zone from a scheduled monument.

1.7 As part of the application, the following information was submitted:
e Design and Access Statement

Environmental Construction Management Plan

Community Impact and Language Assessment

Preliminary Ecological Evaluation

Initial Drainage Strategy

Porosity Report

Page 17



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

1.8

2.1

2.2

2.3

Initial Ecological Assessment

Green Infrastructure Statement

Construction Transport Management Plan
Housing Mix and Affordable Housing Statement
Landscape Visual Evaluation

Lighting Report

Planning Statement

Statement to Mitigate the Effect on Reptiles
Transport Statement

Trees Assessment

Since the previous Planning Committee, amended plans have been submitted in order to exchange
the locations of the two semi-detached bungalows with the pair of 3 and 4 bedroom houses. Revised
site plans together with revised cross-section plans and street views have been submitted. It is noted
that the appearance of the 4-bedroom house in its new location is 'handed’ compared to its previous
location and the street plan confirms this.

Relevant Policies:

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and paragraph 2.1.2 of Planning
Policy Wales emphasise that planning decisions should be in accordance with the Development
Plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Planning considerations include National
Planning Policy and the Local Development Plan.

The Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015 places a duty on the Council to take
reasonable steps in exercising its functions to meet the 7 well-being goals within the Act. This
report has been prepared in consideration of the Council’s duty and the 'sustainable development
principle’, as set out in the 2015 Act. In reaching the recommendation, the Council has sought to
ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of future generations
to meet their own needs.

Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint Local Development Plan 2011-26, adopted 31 July 2017
PS 1: The Welsh Language and Culture

ISA 1: Infrastructure provision.

PS 4: Sustainable transport, development and accessibility.

TRA 2: Parking standards.

TRA 4: Managing transport impacts.

PS 5: Sustainable development.

PS 6: Alleviating and adapting to the effects of climate change.

PCYFF 1: Development Boundaries.

PCYFF 2: Development Criteria.

PCYFF 3: Design and place shaping.

Page 18




PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

PCYFF 4: Design and landscaping.

PS 16: Housing Provision.

PS 17: Settlement strategy.

TAI 5: Local Market Housing.

TAI 8: An appropriate mix of housing.

PS 18: Affordable housing.

TAI 16: Exception sites.

PS 19: Conserving and where appropriate enhancing the natural environment.
AMG 1: Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty Management Plans.
AMG 5: Local Biodiversity Conservation.

PS 20: Preserving and where appropriate enhancing heritage assets.

AT 1: Conservation Areas, World Heritage Sites and Registered Historic Landscapes, Parks and
Gardens.

Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG):

SPG: Maintaining and Creating Distinctive and Sustainable Communities.
SPG: Housing Mix.

SPG: Affordable housing.

SPG: Landscape character.

SPG: Planning obligations.

SPG: Building new dwellings in the countryside.

2.4 National Policies:
Future Wales: The National Plan 2040.
Planning Policy Wales (Edition 12 - February 2024).
Technical Advice Note (TAN) 2: Planning and affordable housing.
TAN 5: Planning and Nature Conservation.
TAN 6: Planning for sustainable rural communities.
TAN 12: Design.
TAN 18: Transportation.

TAN 20: Planning and the Welsh Language. Page 19



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

TAN 24: The historic environment.
3. Relevant Planning History:

3.1 Planning application C16/1373/30/LL - Residential development of five affordable dwellings along
with a new vehicular access and estate road - The recommendation was to approve subject to
signing a 106 agreement. It can be seen from the history that the Planning Committee approved the
application at the time and an instruction was sent to the legal department to prepare a 106
Agreement. Following this, despite asking the agent/applicant on several occasions, the agreement
was not completed by signing it and therefore no planning permission has been released.

4. Consultations:

Community/Town Council: Object on the grounds of an over development, the council feels that
eight houses are too much on the site and five would be better.

Transportation Unit: Impact on the Highway Network

The road that connects the site to the village is narrow, but there are
passing places along the road and the entire area is within a 20mph
speed zone. The data presented shows that 85% of drivers drive at a
speed of 21.1mph or slower. In addition, there is no record of any
accidents on this section of road during the last five years.
Consequently, we have no significant concerns regarding safety on
the current road network.

According to the TRICS analysis submitted by the developer, it is

expected that the impact of the development on traffic flow will be
very low, and therefore it is unlikely to cause an additional burden
on the local roads network.

Access to the Site

The proposed visibility splay of 2.4m x 28m appears to be consistent
with the guidelines in TAN18 and the methodology used by SCP. As
long as the splay is practical on the site and is kept clear of any
obstructions, including vegetation, we are satisfied that the method
taken is appropriate.

Parking

The number of parking spaces for every unit is in line with the
relevant guidance. Although the layout of the parking spaces for
houses 1, 2 and 3 may lead to practical challenges within the estate,
these arrangements are not contrary to current standards.

Pedestrian Links with the Village Centre

Currently, there is no formal provision for pedestrians along the road

Page 20



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

that links the site with the town. However, the developer has offered
to mark a 1.2m wide footpath over 280m, that would improve access
to existing pedestrians and provide a better link for the residents of
the new development.

Natural Resources Wales: Do not object to the proposed development and standard advice is
given regarding matters involving protected species and the AONB
designated landscape.

Welsh Water: Public mains cross the site and no building, structure, SuDs facilities
or timber resources may be erected within the pipe protection zone.

There is existing capacity to connect a sewer system to the public
system and it is suggested to include a condition to agree on the details
of a drainage scheme for the site.

Public Protection Unit: Due to the proximity of the site to residential dwellings, for the
benefit of nearby residents, we recommend the following conditions
based on Construction Noise, Noise Assessment/Air Source Heat
Pumps.

Land Drainage Unit: No objection.

SAB application approved on 14/10/2025

Biodiversity Unit: Further comments 05.11.2025

The site is located 44m to the north of the Pen LI§n and Sarnau
SAC. The SAC is designated for its marine habitats and species, the
housing development site is on land and will not cause any loss of
marine habitats. The development will not create noise within the
sea which will disturb marine mammals (dolphins, whales, seals).
The development will not cause changes to coastal processes. The
land more or less, falls towards the sea and the nearest water course
is Om from the development site and runs into the sea within 400m.
It must be ensured that a prevention plan is in place to prevent
pollution from reaching the water course. It will also be necessary to
prevent pollution from reaching the sea and it is recommended that
the creation of a ditch from the development site to the watercourse
is eliminated. Otherwise, there is uncertainty regarding the
protection of the Pen L1yn and Sarnau SAC.

Page 21



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

The applicant has submitted an ecological report that has been
completed to a good standard, and we agree with the
recommendations.

Although the development of the site is not opposed, it is
recommended that the element involving a drainage trench is
amended and information is requested regarding the relocation of the
‘clawdd'.

Biodiversity Matters are discussed further later in the report.

Language Unit: As noted in the Unit's previous observations, as this is a development
of affordable housing only, it is likely that it would appeal to Welsh
speakers in the area. The Unit appreciates the fact that evidence about
the local need has been included (with a reference to the source, i.e.
the Housing Mix and Affordable Housing Statement). On page 25 of
the Statement, there are statistics from the social housing waiting
register, Housing Options Team, which highlights that there is one
applicant for the one-bedroom property, one applicant for the two-
bedroom property and one applicant for the three-bedroom

property.

The Tai Teg statistics highlight that there are no applicants for a 1-
bedroom property, one applicant for a 2-bedroom property, five
applicants for a 3-bedroom property and four applicants for a 4-
bedroom property.

Consequently, it is likely that the size of the development addresses
the local demand for housing.

In terms of the impact on the Welsh language, the author of the
Statement notes (page 38) that similar developments have had a
neutral impact on the Welsh language in three cases and has
strengthened the Welsh language in another five cases. The author
therefore suggests (page 53) "that it is very likely that the vast majority
of them can speak Welsh." However, it is suggested (page 54)
"However, it is recommended that Grwp Cynefin needs to monitor the
language abilities of the occupants chosen to assist any late immersion
should this be required."

Considering the above, and the fact that there are a high % of Welsh
speakers in the community, it is agreed that there is sufficient
evidence to support the opinion of moderate positive impact.

Fire Service: The Fire Authority has no observations regarding the access for Fire

Page 22



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

vehicles and water supply.

ScottishPower: We originally objected to the application due to the potential impact
on the nearby electricity line. Following discussions regarding an
application to divert the line, confirmation was received that the
original objection was being withdrawn, and standard conditions
were requested to be attached.

CADW: Not received

AONB Unit: The site in question is on the outskirts of the village of Aberdaron and
in the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB). The AONB has
been statutorily designated based on the beauty of the landscape and
is protected by national and local policies.

Guidance is given on affordable housing developments in the AONB
in Policy CP6 of the Management Plan and states: "Promote new
affordable homes to meet proven local need, as long as schemes,
designs and materials are in-keeping with the AONB's environment."

The Landscape and Visual Evaluation submitted includes useful
information and is of assistance when weighing up the application.

The site is currently agricultural land and a substantial ‘clawdd'
creates a boundary between the field and the public road. The site is
visible from some locations in the vicinity as the Evaluation report
indicates. However, the land is at a lower level than the higher section
of the road and other houses surround it, also there is an element of
natural landscaping. It is noted that there is also an intention to plant
trees/hedgerows that will soften the impact of the development and
contribute to biodiversity. The lighting details have been provided,
and the scheme includes measures to protect wildlife and the Dark
Skies which is important in the AONB. Having considered these
factors, it does not appear that the housing development at this site
would be intrusive to the wider landscape.

More locally, the development would be prominent from the road if
it is proposed to remove the ‘clawdd' and create a wide entrance and
install a pavement. Adapting the plan to use the existing access and
retain the 'clawdd' would be better to reduce views of the site and
maintain the character of 16n Deunant.

There are other houses in the site's vicinity, many have been
constructed recently, and others are historic. Most are stone houses or
with a white painted render with slate roofs. The design and
appearance of the proposed new houses appear to be suitable given

Page 23



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

the built context.

Housing Strategic Unit: Information about need: The information provided in the planning
application by means of the affordable housing statement is consistent
with the information regarding the need in the area. (Data Source: Tai
Teg, Cyngor Gwynedd’s Common Housing Register).

Suitability of the Plan: Based on the above information it seems that
the Plan addresses the need in the area.

The plan has been included within the programme to receive a Social
Housing Grant from the Welsh Government. These schemes
contribute directly to the aim of the Cyngor Gwynedd's Housing
Action Plan to provide more housing to meet with the current high
demand that exists in the county.

Page 24



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Public Consultation: A notice was posted on the site and nearby residents were notified.
The advertising period has expired, and letters / correspondence were
received objecting on the following grounds:

e Any such development should be sustainable, proportionate
and considerate to the social, linguistic and environmental
character of our community.

e The development would be detrimental to wildlife / Biodi-
versity / would destroy high-value existing green land

e Harmful to transport mobilisation and road users / increase in
number of vehicles on the current narrow road / increase in
speed on the road by disposing of a 'clawdd'.

o Detrimental impact on the visual amenities and character of
the area both locally and broader.

e Local need not proven.

o Detrimental impact on residential amenities / loss of privacy
/overlooking.

e Permission already exists for new affordable housing in Ab-

erdaron.

Loss of natural hedgerows.

Lighting impact on wildlife.

Overdevelopment /unsuitable design / poor setting.

Detrimental to local infrastructure including the sewerage

system and water supply.

o Traffic data is misleading as it was collected at quiet times of
the year.

¢ A harmful impact on the Welsh language and the local cul-
ture.

e Misleading/incorrect information.

e Lack of consultation with the local community.

Provision of more housing than projected for the village's

growth.

Weak language mitigation strategy.

Lack of compliance with adopted policies.

Location not accessible.

Total lack of assessment in terms of the development's impact

locally.

Increase in noise and disturbance during construction.

e Several houses for sale in the village and it would be better if
these houses were purchased.

o Detrimental impact on designations such as Special Area of
Conservation and Site of Special Scientific Interest/lack of
impact assessment on these designations and relevant ecology
considerations.

e Pressure on the local school
Concerns with regard to ensuring that the dwellings are af-
fordable in perpetuity

Page 25



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

5. Assessment of the material planning considerations:
The principle of the development

51 Policy PCYFF 1 of the Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint Local Development Plan (LDP) notes that
the plan itself identifies development boundaries for a range of settlements within the county and
that proposals within development boundaries will be approved in accordance with the
requirements of other relevant policies in the Plan. It also states that "outside the development
boundaries, proposals will be refused unless they are in accordance with specific policies in this
Plan or national planning policies or that the proposal shows that its location in the countryside is
essential".

5.2 In this case, the proposal has been submitted as an application for development on an exception
site and therefore consideration is mainly given to policies PS 17 and TAI 16 in such cases.

5.3 The village of Aberdaron is defined as a rural/coastal village in the LDP with approximately 95
houses and a few facilities within the current development boundaries. According to the latest
information received from the Planning Policy Unit, the indicative supply level for housing in
Aberdaron over the plan period, is 13 units (including a 10% 'slippage allowance', which means
that the method of calculating the figure has taken into account potential unforeseen
circumstances which could influence the provision of housing, e.g. land ownership matters,
infrastructure restrictions, etc.). Based on the settlement size a development of this scale would
mean a growth of 7.6% to the settlement, however, we must bear in mind that recent permission
was granted for another exception site for 5 units in the settlement. The two sites together mean a
growth of 12.35% which equates to the expected growth level of the settlement.

5.4 Policy TAI 5 is relevant to locations within the development boundary but in this case, the
proposal's boundary only partially touches the boundary and therefore must be regarded as an
exception site outside the development boundary and therefore the relevant policy in this case
would be policy TAI 16 which states:

“Where it is demonstrated that there is a proven local need for affordable housing (as defined in
the Glossary of Terms) that cannot reasonably be delivered within a reasonable timescale on a
market site inside the development boundary that includes a requirement for affordable housing,
as an exception, proposals for 100% affordable housing on sites immediately adjacent to
development boundaries that form a reasonable extension to the settlement will be granted.
Proposals must be for a small-scale development, which are proportionate to the size of the
settlement, unless it can be clearly demonstrated that there is a demonstrable requirement for a
larger site, with priority, where it is appropriate, given to suitable previously developed land".

55 Evidence has been submitted in the form of a Housing Mix and Affordable Housing Statement.
This information as well as chapter 5.3 within the Planning Statement is the justification for the
need for these eight houses. The information submitted refers to the need highlighted in the Social
Housing Register and Tai Teg in Aberdaron and the village of Rhiw, and it is noted that Rhiw is
located within 6km east of Aberdaron and has not been included as a designated settlement,
including as a cluster, in the LDP and therefore it is not possible to provide any new housing
development within the settlement. Table 16 in the document confirms the combined data from the
Social Housing Register and Tai Teg for Aberdaron and Rhiw, and having considered the
contribution application C24/0011/30/AM that was granted for 5 self-build units would offer to the
area.

Page 26



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Tabl 16 — Data Cyfunol o’r Cofrestrau Tai Cymdeithasol a Thai Teg ar gyfer Aberdaron (net) a'r

Rhiw
Maint eiddo Canran Nifer

1 ystafell 14% 2
wely

2 ystafell 21% 3
wely

3 ystafell 29% 4
wely

4 ystafell 36% 5
wely

Cyfanswm 14

5.6 Policy TAI 8 promotes proposals that contribute to improving housing balance and meeting needs
identified in the whole community. It is therefore necessary to consider if the mix of units and
tenure proposed here is suitable to promote a sustainable mixed community. It is therefore
important to consider the contents of the 'Housing Mix' SPG when establishing if what is proposed
here is suitable, and it is noted that the guidance expects every applicant who submits a planning
application for a housing development for Use Class C3 which includes 5 or more housing units to
submit a Housing Statement to support the planning application. As noted, a Housing Needs and
Affordable Housing Statement has been submitted, and this confirms that the proposal compares
well with the need highlighted in the combined register (table 16 above), although it recognises that
no 1-bed units are offered at all (as they more suitable within urban areas), and that the number of
4-bed units is an under-provision (as households that require such accommodation are fairly rare
and can therefore lead to under-use), and that 2 and 3 bed units are a small over provision relative
to the proportion of recorded need (as they are a common type of house and offer the most flexibility
for households both now and in the future.

5.7 The Plan's List of Glossary Terms defines Local Need Affordable housing within or on exception
Local Rural/Coastal sites as; "... people in need of an affordable house who have resided within the
Village or in the surrounding rural area for a continuous period of 5 years or more, either
immediately before submitting the application or in the past..."

Paragraph 8.1.3 of the Affordable Housing SPG provides a definition of the 'surrounding rural area"
for applications in the Local, Rural / Coastal Villages namely:

"surrounding rural area’, which is a distance of 6km from the site of the application and the extent
of any Community Council area bisected by the 6km distance but excluding properties within the
development boundary of any settlement other than the settlement within which the application is
located.”

The information submitted as part of this application confirms that there is a need with a 5 year
connection for this development. The proposal will provide a neutral plan in terms of occupancy,
which means that it could provide a mix of tenure (social rented housing, intermediate affordable
rented housing, part-ownership) to be able to satisfy a wide range of need at the time and enable
households to move from rental to part-ownership as their circumstances change. This offers a
totally different local affordable provision to what has already been recently approved under
permission C24/0011/30/AM. Based on the information submitted as part of the application, the
need has been confirmed for the development.

Page 27



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

5.8 Paragraph 4.1.7 of the Affordable Housing SPG confirms:

“Where primary sources (LHMA, Common Housing and Tai Teg register) or evidence submitted
by the applicant do not identify a need for Affordable housing for local need in a rural locality (e.g.
because households in need have not chosen to register their need or preference for specific
settlements) a local survey is the preferred option to demonstrate a need for affordable housing.
The survey should be undertaken by a qualified individual / company / service such as the Rural
Housing Enabler, with the methodology agreed with the Council.”

In this case therefore, as the need has already been proven through the primary sources and evidence
submitted by the applicant, in accordance with the requirements of the SPG there is no purpose to
undertake a local survey by the Rural Housing Enabler.

5.9 It is therefore deemed that the application provides sufficient information in terms of justifying the
mix and the types of housing provided and how the proposal addresses the needs of the local
community. This is reiterated in the response received to the consultation from the Strategic
Housing Unit by saying that the information submitted via an affordable housing statement is
consistent with the information regarding need in the area and based on this information, the Plan
addresses the area's need.

5.10  The need for evidence is completely essential to undertake a full assessment and is a fundamental
requirement with this type of application and to this end the proposal is for housing where an
affordable local need has been proven on a site located outside but abutting the development
boundary for Aberdaron. It is considered that the proposal is formally a logical extension to the
village and therefore fully conforms to the requirements of policies TAI 8, TAI 15 and TAI 16 of
the Local Development Plan as well as the relevant advice given within the Supplementary
Planning Guidance and national direction within Planning Policy Wales and the Technical Advice
Notes.

Visual amenities

5.11  The existing houses nearby are a mix of two-storey, single-storey, dormer buildings, etc. However,
the setting of the proposed housing would be within an existing open field with 6 of the houses
away from the existing built pattern and therefore would stand out and change the visual appearance
of the site. Criterion 1 of policy PCYFF 3 notes that proposals will only be granted if "...they
complement and enhance the character and appearance of the site, the building or the area in terms
of siting, appearance, scale, height, massing and elevation treatment".

In the same manner, paragraph 7.8.3 of the SPG: Affordable Housing states that: "The exception
site needs to be immediately adjacent to the development boundary and form a reasonable
extension to the settlement. “Immediately adjacent” means that the proposed exception site
should be linked to the development boundary in the vicinity of the site. In relation to whether the
proposal would be considered as a reasonable extension to the settlement, regard will be given
towards whether the proposal is a rounding-off of the built form or whether it would form an
unacceptable intrusion into the open countryside. The impact of the proposed site on the
landscape will be an important consideration in judging its suitability™.

5.12  The site would be fully visible within the AONB and from places beyond the site due to the open
nature of the land from the application site mainly towards the east. However, it can be seen from
the observations of the AONB Unit that they do not consider that the development would be
intrusive in the landscape. They also refer to a relevant policy within the AONB Management Plan

Page 28



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

that promotes the provision of affordable homes where there is a real local need. A Landscape
Visual Evaluation was submitted as part of the application which is a relevant consideration and
based on a full assessment of all the relevant considerations it is believed that the visual impact is
one that can be handled and reduced via suitable landscaping measures.

5.13  The proposed design and finishes convey the type of elevations that can generally be seen within
the local area i.e. the use of render, stone and timber cladding and slate roofs. Comparatively recent
scattered residential development can be seen near L&n Deunant and therefore it is not believed that
a new residential development such as this, albeit more prominent in terms of density than the
detached houses already constructed nearby, would be out of character within the local area’s built
context. It is therefore considered that the proposal is acceptable based on compliance with the
relevant requirements of policies PS 5, PCYFF 3 and TAI 16.

General and residential amenities

5.14  Itis inevitable that there would be an increased impact on the general amenities of the local area
and nearby residents compared to the existing situation, as the site is currently open agricultural
land.

5.15  The nearest two houses will be constructed near the southern boundary and therefore these will be
nearest to existing houses called Penllech Bach and the Vicarage, and previously were in the form
of a bungalow and therefore due to their height and the proposed landscaping, the element of over-
looking would be very low. By now the semi-detached houses closest to Vicardy have amended
from two bungalows to two-storey 3 and 4 bedroom houses. Despite this, it is considered that there
is enough distance (over 20m) between the front two-storey part of the 4-bedroom house and the
boundary with Penllech Bach. Similarly, the design of the 4 bedroom house has been designed in
order that the side elevation facing the back of the Vicarage is a single storey garage, and there are
no first floor windows. The nearest house is to the north namely Y Dddl which will remain approx-
imately 23m from its nearest corner to the nearest corner of the proposed property on plot number
8, which by now are a pair of bungalows. The nearest part of the new house would be the single-
storey element although the rest of the house is two-storey, and no windows have been included on
the higher gable-end of the new house. The proximity of the house to the nearest boundary of Y
Ddol back garden is obviously closer, however, approximately 10m remains with a right of way
between both boundaries which creates a type of buffer between both sites. It is recognised that
some impact will be inevitable considering the current agricultural use of the land and its proposed
residential use, however, it is considered that a further attempt has been made to design and set the
proposed housing so the direct impact is reduced and therefore the proposal is not considered to be
totally unacceptable based on all the relevant requirements of policy PCYFF 2.

Consideration of the Welsh language

5.16  Criterion (2) of Policy PS 1 states that a Welsh Language Impact Assessment will be required for
a proposed development on an unexpected windfall site for a large-scale housing development. The
fact that this is an exception site outside the development boundary therefore means it is an
unexpected windfall site. Large-scale is defined in Diagram 7 of the Supplementary Planning
Guidance 'Maintaining and Creating Distinctive and Sustainable Communities' as five or more units
in a Rural/Coastal Village such as Aberdaron.

5.17 It is noted that a Language and Community Impact Statement has been submitted with the
application. In their response to the consultation, the Language Unit confirmed that a development
of affordable housing such as this would be likely to appeal to Welsh speakers in the area and the
size of the development would be likely to address the local demand for housing. Therefore, in light

Page 29



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

5.18

5.19

5.20

521

of these considerations, as well as the high percentage of Welsh speakers in the community, it is
agreed that there is sufficient evidence to support the opinion of moderate positive impact.
Consequently, the proposal is not considered to be contrary to the material requirements of policy
PS 1.

Transport and access matters

A response was received from the Transportation Unit and there is no objection to the proposal
subject to imposing standard conditions. Access together with details of the estate road and
parking spaces are part of the proposal and therefore consideration is given to the form and
location of these elements in terms of the relevant requirements of policies TRA 2 and TRA 4.
Parking spaces are proposed on the site for individual plots. Therefore, it is considered that the
proposal is acceptable in terms of the current parking requirements and is in accordance with
policy TRA 2. The proposed entrance appears to be fairly standard to serve a site of this type and
is located on a section of the road, although narrow, within a 20mph zone with fairly clear
visibility in both directions. To avoid any obstruction from having an impact on visibility, it is
proposed to include a condition to prevent planting or installing obstacles within the entrance
visibility splay. It is therefore deemed that the entrance would be acceptable and in accordance
with the relevant requirements of policy TRA 4.

It is also noted that there is currently no formal provision for pedestrians along the road that links
the site with the village. The developer has offered to mark a 1.2m wide footpath over 280m,
which would improve access to existing pedestrians and provide a better link for the residents of
the new development. It is recognised that concerns have been highlighted regarding the impact
of the development on the public road and vehicular and pedestrian movements, however, it is
believed that what has been shown is acceptable and is supported by the Transportation Unit, in
accordance with the current requirements in terms of the standard and the technical requirements
of such developments.

Biodiversity matters

The Biodiversity Unit has confirmed that the ecological report submitted with the application has
been made to a good standard. However, they note the need to amend the element regarding the
drainage course and information is requested regarding the relocation of the ‘clawdd'. In response
to these matters, confirmation was received from the agent that an additional Pollution Prevention
Plan had been prepared which refers to the management steps taken during the construction period
to prevent pollution. This document is in addition to the Construction Environmental Management
Plan (CEMP) submitted with the application which includes an outline of the measures that would
be implemented to control and prevent pollution. It is also noted that the applicant's ecologist has
responded to the comment made by the Biodiversity Unit noting that the information submitted
indicates that there would be no harm to local biodiversity and ecology because of the proposed
drainage arrangements. Regarding the relocation of the ‘clawdd’, the agent confirms that there
would be no objection to providing a method statement regarding this work and therefore it is
believed that it is possible to attach a condition to agree on the details of this element.

It is recognised that the objection received refers to the need to undertake an assessment regarding
the impact of the proposal on the Pen Llyn a’r Sarnau Special Area of Conservation. Natural
Resources Wales in their response to the consultation do not advise the Council to carry out such
an assessment, as they would usually do so. However, and for completeness, the Local Planning
Authority as the competent authority under the Habitats Regulations has considered the proposal
in relation to the Pen LIyn a'r Sarnau SAC and has concluded that the development wo%dabe

ge 30



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

unlikely to have an impact on the SAC on the basis that the proposal includes pollution prevention
measures. It is therefore deemed that the proposal is acceptable and in accordance with the
requirements of policies PS 19 and AMG 5.

5.22  In accordance with recent legislative changes to Planning Policy Wales (PPW) and the need to
submit a Green Infrastructure Statement, a statement has been submitted and for the purpose of
satisfying PPW in terms of this particular aspect, it is believed that this has been done in this case.

Educational Contribution

5.23  The Education Department was consulted regarding the proposal and confirmation was received
that capacity is available at Ysgol Crud y Werin (primary) and Ysgol Botwnnog (secondary).
Specifically:

e Ysgol Crud y Werin: Capacity 74 - Existing total - 48 (Sept.25) - Projected numbers -
September 2026 - 45; September 2027 - 40.

¢ Ysgol Botwnnog: Capacity 550 - EXxisting total - 467 (Sept.25) - Projected numbers -
September 2026 - 449; September 2027 - 406.

5.24  As there is existing capacity within the local schools, it would not be relevant to consider an
educational contribution in this case for the additional pupils resulting from the proposed
development.

Drainage Matters

5.25  Inaccordance with the requirements of paragraph 7.6 of Technical Advice Note 15: Development,
Flooding and Coastal Erosion, a Drainage Strategy must be submitted as part of an application to
outline the drainage scheme for surface water from the site, unless a separate application has been
made to the approval body i.e. Cyngor Gwynedd's Land Drainage Unit. A separate application was
submitted for approval to the Land Drainage Unit for sustainable drainage arrangements for the
site, Unit officers have confirmed that this application has been approved and as a result the
Drainage Unit has no objection to the planning application.

Response to the public consultation

5.26 It is acknowledged that objections have been received to this proposal, and we consider that all
relevant planning matters have been duly addressed as part of the above assessment. A decision is
made based on full consideration of all the material planning considerations and all the comments
received during the public consultation and that no one was let down when considering this appli-
cation.

6. Conclusions:

6.1 Having considered the above and all the relevant matters including the local and national policies
and guidance, as well as all the observations received, it is believed that this proposal is acceptable
and satisfies the requirements of the relevant policies as noted above.

7. Recommendation:
7.1 To approve — conditions

1. Time
Page 31



PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 08/12/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

In accordance with the plans

Materials

Affordable housing condition

Highway conditions

Biodiversity conditions/protection of the ‘clawdd’
Landscaping condition

Welsh Water Condition

©COoON>OT~wWN

10. Drainage matters.
11. Building Control Plan
12. Method statement for the relocation of the ‘clawdd’

. Removal of permitted development rights involving extensions and use

Page 32



el Deunant

& 3
=

e

/ =

i e

! gnsiugh
A

oy III‘.
A
/
\/ \\

\_ " Penllech Bach _
N — e

Talafon 3 !

Om 10m 20m 30m

1 s

VISUAL SCALE 1:500 @ A3

Cynllunio

Derbyn - DB/0B/2025

B |BOUNDARIES COORDINATED | 25.05.00 | AL
WITH DRAINAGE/SUDS DESIGN

A |BOUNDARIES COORDINATED | 25.03.20 | AL
WITH DATRYS DRAWINGS/
SUDS DESIGN etc

|RE\"| DESCRIPTION ‘ DATE |BY ‘

THIS DRAWING 15 THE COPYRIGHT OF AINSLEY GOMMON
ARCHITECTS. CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS OM SITE. DISCREPANCIES TO
BE NOTIFIED TO ARCHITECT. ELEMENTS OF STRUCTURE SHOWN
ARE INDICATIVE AND FOR GUIDANCE. FINAL DESIGN TO BE AS
STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS DETAILS AND SPECIFICATION.

PROJECT

LON DEUNANT,
ABERDARON
for GRWP CYNEFIN

DRAWING TITLE

PLANNING - LOCATION
PLAN

SCALE DATE DRAWN CHECKED
1:1250 @M| 20/11/15 | OR | sv

DRAWING

STATUS PLANNING

JOB No DRAWINGNo  REVISION

C1113 o001 B

AINSLEY
GOMMON
ARCHITECTS

THE OLD POLICE STATION, 15 GLYNNE WAY, HAWARDEN, CHS 3MS
Tek: H244 537 100 | ke | wwew. agarchi sk

Airslisy Gameman Architects Ltd. Registered in England & Wales Mo, 4187348

Regestered Office: 1 Price Street, Hamilton Square, Birkenhead CHA1 6JN
PRINTED: 09/05/2025 16:16:46 A4



Cvynllunio

Derbyn - 06/06/2025

AFON CYLLYFELIN

C |BOUNDARIES COORDINATED | 25.05.09 | AL
WITH DRAINAGE/SUDS DESIGN

B |[BOUNDARIES COORDINATED | 25.03.20 | AL
WITH DATRYS DRAWINGS/

SUDS DESIGN etc

A |REVISED ANNOTATION ETC 25.02.17 | AL

] xsrron [oe [v]

THIS DRAWING IS THE COPYRIGHT OF AINSLEY GOMMON
ARCHITECTS. CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE. DISCREPANCIES.
TO BE NOTIFIED TO ARCHITECT. ELEMENTS OF STRUCTURE
SHOWN ARE INDICATIVE AND FOR GUIDANCE. FINAL DESIGN TO
BE AS STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS DETAILS AND SPECIFICATION.

EXISTING
CLAWDD

Bronafon

LON DEUNANT,
ABERDARON
for GRWP CYNEFIN

DRAWING TITLE
PLANNING - EXISTING SITE
PLAN

EXISTING STONE WALLS

SCALE | DATE | DRAWN |CHECKED
1:500 @A3! 29/07/22 [ sv

DRAWING

STATUS PLANNING

JOB No DRAWING No REVISION

Talafon C1113 002 C

N AINSLEY
10m 20m 30m 40m AG A AremecTs

ARCHITECTS
Om

(O OO | I = e R

PRINTED: 09/05/2025 12:06:01

\ \ s o
VISUAL SCALE 1:500 @ A3 ‘



HOUSING KEY

3x 3P2B BUNGALOW

3x 5P3B HOUSE

1x 5P3B HOUSE SIDE

1x 7P4B HOUSE

PLOT NO.

2,3,4.
5,67

ENTRY

=

Ease
Ment  toTAL: 8 PLOTS

e S

EXISTING
CLAWDD
TRANSLQCATED

/
/

NEW HEDGEROW

-
L
)
eemannsrugh
N

5,

QL \
®

%

10m
I

20m 30m

Om
ANERENANER,

2 \ VISUAL SCALE 1:500 @ A3

N

/

AFON CYLLYFELI®

PLOTS3-4 & 7-8
REPOSITIONED

COORDINATED WITH LATEST
LANDSCAPE LAYOUT
BOUNDARIES COORDINATED
WITH DRAINAGE/SUDS DESIGN

25.10.14 | AL
25.05.13 | AL

25.05.09 | AL

[#]
THIS DRAWING IS THE COPYRIGHT OF AINSLEY GOMMON
ARCHITECTS. CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE. DISCREPANCIES
TO BE NOTIFIED TO ARCHITECT. ELEMENTS OF STRUCTURE
SHOWM ARE INDICATIVE AND FOR GUIDANCE. FINAL DESIGN TO
BE AS STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS DETAILS AND SPECIFICATION.

[h[\fl DESCRIPTION | DATE

 PROJECT

| LON DEUNANT,
ABERDARON
for GRWP CYNEFIN

DRAWING TITLE

PROPOSED SITE LAYOUT

SCALE

DATE
1:500 @ASl ‘

DRAWN ‘
29/01/25

o

CHECKED
sV

DRAWING

STATUS PLANNING

JOB No DRAWING No

C1113 004

AG|A

THE OLD POLICE STATION, 15 GLYNNE WA, HAWARDEN, CHS IS
Tek: 01244 337 100 | walesmagarchitects.co.uk | mwnw. sgarchiteces ca. ok

A3

REVISION

F

AINSLEY
GOMMON

ARCHITECTS

1P

PRINTED: 14/10/2025 15:47:55



Gg abed

L

STREET SECTION

SCALE: 1:200

SECTION A

SCALE: 1:200

SECTION B

SCALE: 1:200

SITE BOUNDARY

SITE BOUNDARY

SITE BOUNDARY.

STREET SECTION

8m 12m

PLOTS 34 & 76
REPOSITIONED
CODRDINATED WITH LATEST 25.05.13 AL
LBNDSCAPE LAYOUT
REVISEDLEVELS,DRYING  2505.07 AL
AREAS, ECOLOGY, THEES

UPDATED TO MATCH LAND

25538 10

€

STUDID LANDSCAPE PLAN

ot |
5 1 230136 AL
CLAWDD TRANSLOCATED &
PARKING UPOATED 70K
PLOTS 434
A |evsenwareas  |ase217|a
[ Jonomrmen [ an [n]
o o

PROJECT
LON DEUNANT, ABERDARON
for GRWP CYNEFIN

DRAWING TITLE
STREET ELEVATION + SITE
SECTIONS - SHEET 1/2

SCALE | OaTE ORAWN | CHECKED
Asindened®Al Iy | on
DRAWING

STATUS PLANNING

108 Ne DRAWING No HEVSION

C1113 007 E

AINSLEY
GOMMON
ARCHITECTS

20 o cumoucesraron, v e war mamssi, o v

AEEEE= - |
VISUAL SCALE 1:200 @ A2

I e
ey By ATAETL L1, Ry g § e s 11T
egecered i 1 ek rae, asstin Sasat. Bebeim 1) B0

PRINTED: 18/11/202% 09:27:37 A2



9%eﬁed

STREET SECTION

SECTION C

SCALE: 1:200

E PLOTS34&TE 51118 1©
REPOSITIONED
COORDINATED WITH LATEST 25.05.13 AL
LANDSCAPE LAYOUT
REVISED LEVELS, DRYING  25.05.07 AL
AREAS, ECOLOGY, TREES
UIPDATED TO MATCH LAND
| STUDID LANDSCAPE PLAN
et
B |REVISED FRONTAGE, 250226 [ AL
CLAWDD TRANSLOCATED &
|PARKING UPDATED FOR
PLOTS 434
A |n:v|so:n MATERIALS 250217 | AL

L]

 SITEBOUNDARY
SITE BOUNDARY
n

ooy e [ o [e]

PP 5 0B 4 31T UL SRS DEARS AN SR AT,

PROJECT
LON DEUNANT, ABERDARON
for GRWP CYNEFIN

DRAWING ¥|TLE7
STREET ELEVATION + SITE
SECT'ON D SECTIONS - SHEET 2/2

SCALE: 1:200

SCALE DATE DRAWN | CHECKED
nmm«sw‘ ames | oon | =

108 N0 DRAWING No REVISION

C1113 008 E

AINSLEY

GOMMON

ARCHITECTS
4m 8m 12m 16m 2O e e e sranon, 1 oo war, rimasses, o8 s

M T i | i I f Tel 44T 100 | et .k | e s <.k
v Camuron et L1 g  Enqians B Wi 50 41TSAR
e

PRINTED: 18/11/2025 09:29:56 A2

VISUAL SCALE 1:200 @ A2



L€ eﬁred

Same  PROJECT

E [PLOTS3-4& 78 25.11.18 | 10
REPOSITIONED
D |COORDINATED WITH LATEST | 25.05.13 | AL
LANDSCAPE LAYOUT
[se] [er]

LON DEUNANT,
ABERDARON
for GRWP CYNEFIN

DRAWING TITLE

3D VIEW LOOKING NORTH

SCALE | DATE ‘ DRAWN | CHECKED
1:1@A3 310125 | OR v
DRAWING
STATUS PLANNING
JOB No DRAWINGNo  REVISION
C1113 012 E
AINSLEY
GOMMON
ARCHITECTS
THe o o s ¥, HAWARDEN, CHS 305,
it g e A A

5 e [
PRINTED: 18/11/2025 10:06:45 A 3



g€ abed
|

E |PLOTS3-4&78 25.11.18 | 10
REPOSITIONED

D |COORDINATED WITH LATEST | 25.05.13 | AL
LANDSCAPE LAYOUT

] e [oe []

THIS DRAWING IS THE COPYRIGHT OF AINSLEY GOMMON
ARCHITECTS. CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE. DISCREPANCIES
7O BE NOTIFIED TO ARCHITECT. ELEMENTS OF STRUCTURE
SHOWN ARE INDICATIVE AND FOR GUIDANCE. FINAL DESIGN TO
BE AS STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS DETAILS AND SPECIFICATION.

PROJECT

LON DEUNANT,
ABERDARON

for GRWP CYNEFIN

DRAWING TITLE

3D VIEW LOOKING SOUTH

SCALE | DATE | DRAWN | CHECKED
1:1@A3 310125 | OR sv

DRAWING

STATUS PLANNING

JOB No DRAWINGNo  REVISION

C1113 013 E

AG

‘THE OLD POLICE STATION, 15 GLYNNE WAY, HAWARDEN, CHS 385
Tel: 01244 57 100 | weles Sogerchutects.ca.uk | ww sgarchilects. . uk

o fices 1 Br il N
PRINTED: 18/11/2025 10:18:03 A3

AINSLEY
GOMMON

ARCHITECTS




eﬁeﬁed

PLOTS 3-4 & 7-8 25.11.18 | 10
REPOSITIONED

COORDINATED WITH LATEST | 25.05.13 | AL
LANDSCAPE LAYOUT

o

Iﬁrvl DESCRIPTION ‘ DATE | By ‘

“THIS DRAWING IS THE COPYRIGHT OF AINSLEY GOMMON
ARCHITECTS. CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE. DISCREPANCIES
TO BE NOTIFIED TO ARCHITECT. ELEMENTS OF STRUCTURE
SHOWN ARE INDICATIVE AND FOR GUIDANCE. FINAL DESIGN TO
BE AS STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS DETAILS AND SPECIFICATICN.

PROJECT

LON DEUNANT,
ABERDARON
for GRWP CYNEFIN

DRAWING TITLE

3D VIEW LOOKING WEST

SCALE ‘ DATE ‘ DRAWN ‘ CHECKED
1:1@A3 31/01/25 | OR sv

DRAWING

STATUS PLANNING

10B No DRAWING No REVISION

C1113 011 E

AINSLEY
AG|A s

ARCHITECTS

‘THE OLD POLICE STATION, 15 GLYNNE WAY, HAWARDEN, CHS 315
Tek: D1264 537 100 | wlesagarcltects.co uk | wrew sgarchilcts co. ok

ey Gernman Architects Lic. Regiateres in England & Woies Ho. 4187945
1Price Sureet am

PRINTED: 18/11/2025 10:33:20 A3




ot abed

E |[PLOTS3-4 & 7-8 25.11.18 | 10
REPOSITIONED
D |COORDINATED WITH LATEST 25.05.13 | AL
LANDSCAPE LAYOUT
o e [ o]

PROJECT

LON DEUNANT,
ABERDARON
for GRWP CYNEFIN

DRAWING TITLE

3D VIEW LOOKING EAST

SCALE ‘ DATE | DRAWN ‘EHECKED
1:1@A3 31/01/25 OR sV

DRAWING

STATUS PLANNING

JOB No DRAWINGNo  REVISION

C1113 010 E
AINSLEY
GOMMON
ARCHITECTS

THE OLD POLICE STATION, 15 GLYNNE WAY, HAWARDEN, CHS 315
Tel: 01264 537 100 | welesagarchstats e uk | w sgarchitact.co.

i i an
PRINTED: 18/11/2025 09:45:44 A3




T obed

Cynllunio

Derbyn - 06/06/2025

GROUND FLOOR PLAN
SCALE: 1:100

.

FRONT ELEVATION REAR ELEVATION

SCALE: 1:100 SCALE: 1:100

[

SIDE ELEVATION
SCALE: 1:100

Om 2Zm 4m 6m 8m 10m

Plot #4

Area Schedule (GIA) 3P2B...
Level Area
DQR MIN 58 m?
GROUND 61.06 m?
FLOOR LEVEL
Total 61.06 m?
Storage - 3P2B BUNG
Name Area
DQR MIN 2.00m?
STORE 0.44 m?
STORE 1.50 m?
AC 0.62 m?
Total 2.56 in2
B [REVISED WINDOW 25.02.26 | AL
A [REVISED MATERIALS 25.02.17 |OR
[awl DESCRIPTION | oaTe ‘ m\

THIS DRAWING IS THE COPYRIGHT OF AINSLEY GOMMON
ARCHITECTS. CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE. DISCREPANCIES
TO BE NOTIFIED TO ARCHITECT. ELEMENTS OF STRUCTURE
SHOWM ARE INDICATIVE AND FOR GUIDANCE. FINAL DESIGN TO
BE AS STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS DETAILS AND SPECIFICATION.

PROJECT

ABERDARON
for WILLIAMS HOMES
(BALA)

DRAWING TITLE
3P2B BUNGALOW
(HANDED)

SCALE | DATE | DRAWN ‘CHECKED
1:100 @A3! 01/02/25 OR sV

DRAWING
STATUS PLANNING

JOB No DRAWING No REVISION

C1113 060(1) B

AINSLEY
A A GOMMON

ARCHITECTS
‘THE OLD POLICE STATION, 15 GLYNNE WAY, HAWARDEH, CHS 3H5.
Tel: 01244 537 100 | walesmagarchiterts.co.ub | wew.Sgarchitects.ca.ub

ENARINAREN T e - ! !
VISUAL SCALE 1:100 @ A3

sy Archiescis Lid.

1Price St e
PRINTED: 26/02/2025 12:19:34 A3




Cynllunio

Derbyn - 06/06/2025

FRONT ELEVATION
SCALE: 1:100

LIVING
11.79m?

GROUND FLOOR PLAN SIDE ELEVATION
SCALE: 1:100 SCALE: 1:100

2y abed
B

BAT BOX.
REFER TO
ECOLOGY
REPORT

REAR ELEVATION
SCALE: 1:100

Om 2m 4m 6m 8m 10m
I s I | |

VISUAL SCALE 1:100 @ A3

Plot #3

Area Schedule (GIA) 3P2B...
Level Area
DQR MIN 58 m?
GROUND 61.06 m?
FLOOR LEVEL
Total 61.06 m?
Storage - 3P2B BUNG
Name Area
DQR MIN 2.00m?
STORE 0.44 m?
STORE 1.50 m?
AC 0.62 m?
Total 2.56 2
C |ECOLOGY NOTES 25.05.07 | AL
B |REVISED WINDOW 25.02.26 | AL
A |REVISED MATERIALS 25.02.17 [OR
[rev] oesemeron el
THIS DRAWING IS THE COPYRIGHT OF AINSLEY GOMMON
ARCHITECTS. CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE DISCREPANCIES
T0 BE NOTIFIED TO ARCHITECT. ELEMENTS OF STRUCTURE
SHOWN ARE INDICATIVE AND FOR GUIDANCE. FINAL DESIGN TO
BE A5 STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS DETAILS AND SPECIFICATION.
PROJECT
ABERDARON
for WILLIAMS HOMES
(BALA)
DRAWING TITLE

3P2B BUNGALOW

SCALE [ DATE ‘ DRAWN |CHECKED
1:100 @A3 01/02/25 | OR sv

DRAWING

STATUS PLANNING

108 No DRAWINGNo  REVISION

C1113 060 c

AINSLEY
GOMMON
ARCHITECTS

‘THE OLD POLICE STATION, 15 GLYNNE WAY, HAWARDEN, CHS IHS.
Tel: 1244537 160 | wall 2 agarchitects ca.uk | mown agarchitects.co. uk

TPrice Street, [
PRINTED: 07/05/2025 16:58:54 A3




Cynllunio

Derbyn - 06/06/2025

FRONT ELEVATION
SCALE: 1:100

LIVING
11.79 m?

GROUND FLOOR PLAN SIDE ELEVATION
SCALE: 1:100 SCALE: 1:100

s%aﬁed

REAR ELEVATION

SCALE: 1:100

Om 2m 4m

BAT BOX.
REFERTO
ECOLOGY
REPORT

<

10m

101

VISUAL SCALE 1:100 @ A3

Plot #2

Area Schedule (GIA) 3P2B...

Level Area
DQR MIN 58 m?
GROUND 61.06 m?
FLOOR LEVEL
Total 61.06 m?
Storage - 3P2B BUNG
Name Area
DQR MIN 2.00 m?
STORE 0.44 m?
STORE 1.50 m?
AC 0.62 m?
Total 2.56 m?
C |ECOLOGY NOTES 25.05.07 | AL
B [REVISED WINDOW 25.02.26 | AL
A [REVISED MATERIALS 25.02.17 | OR
o ron o]

THIS DRAWING IS THE COPYRIGHT OF AINSLEY GOMMON
ARCHITECTS. CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE. DISCREPANCIES.
TO BE NOTIFIED TO ARCHITECT. ELEMENTS OF STRUCTURE
SHOWN ARE INDICATIVE AND FOR GUIDANCE. FINAL DESIGN TO
BE AS STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS DETAILS AND SPECIFICATION.

PROIJECT

ABERDARON
for WILLIAMS HOMES
(BALA)

DRAWING TITLE
3P2B BUNGALOW STONE +
RENDER

SCALE ‘ DATE ‘ DRAWN ‘ CHECKED
1:100 @A3' 14/02/25 OR sV

DRAWING

STATUS PLANNING

JOB No DRAWING No REVISION

C1113 o061 C

AINSLEY

GOMMON

ARCHITECTS
‘THE OLD POLICE STATION, 15 GLYNNE WAY, HAWARDEN, CHS 305

Tek: 01204 537 100 | walesagorchitects.co.uk | ww agarchitects co. ok

ey

Thre st an
PRINTED: 07/05/2025 16:59:17 A3




vt abed

Plot #6

Area Schedule (GIA) 5P3B

MY
BIRD BOX.
REFER TO
ECOLOGY
REPORT

Level | Area
DQR MIN 93 m?
00 - GROUND FLOOR (47.13 m?

\J w) 01 - FIRST FLOOR 47.13 m2
l _ A A AL Total 94.26 m2

| | BEDROOM 1

_ ngim

Storage - 5P3B
Name Area
© DQRMIN  2.50 m?
AC 0.59 m?
ST 1.38 m?
. sT 0.73 m?
Total 2.69 m2
FIRST FLOOR PLAN FRONT ELEVATION REAR ELEVATION
SCALE: 1:100 SCALE: 1:100 SCALE: 1:100
o e o]

THIS DRAWING IS THE COPYRIGHT OF AINSLEY GOMMON
ARCHITECTS. CHECK ALL DIVENSIONS ON SITE. DISCREPANCIES
TO BE NOTIFIED TO ARCHITECT. ELEMENTS OF STRUCTURE.
SHOWN ARE INDICATIVE AND FOR GUIDANCE. FINAL DESIGN TO
BE AS STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS DETAILS AND SPECIFICATION.

PROJECT

ABERDARON

Cyn”u n |O for WILLIAMS HOMES

(BALA)

Derbyn - 06/06/2025

DRAWING TITLE

5P3B HOUSE (HANDED)

SCALE | DATE [ DRAWN | CHECKED
1:100 @43 01/02/25 | OR sv

DRAWING

STATUS PLANNING

10BNo DRAWINGNo  REVISION

C1113  063(1) B

SIDE ELEVATION AG|A sy

Om 2m 4m 6m 8m 10mM  neowroucesmnon e o os s
SCALE: 1:100 SCALE: 1:100 0 Y B g | D
VISUAL SCALE 1:100 @ A3 PRINTED: 07/05/2025 16:59:36 A3



Plots #5 & #7

Area Schedule (GIA) 5P3B

Level ‘ Area
DQR MIN 93 m?
00 - GROUND FLOCR [47.13 m?
01 - FIRST FLOOR 47.13 m?

BIRD BOX TO PLOT
5 ONLY. REFER TO
ECOLOGY REPORT

: "ﬁE [ ] Total 94.26 m2
= Storage - 5P3B
Name Area
DQR MIN 2.50 m?
AC 0.59 m2
ST 1.38 m?
ST 0.73 m?
Total 2.69 m2
FIRST FLOOR PLAN FRONT ELEVATION REAR ELEVATION
SCALE: 1:100 SCALE: 1:100 SCALE: 1:100 ool
o EmO

THIS DRAWING IS THE COPYRIGHT OF AINSLEY GOMMON
ARCHITECTS. CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE. DISCREPANCIES
TO BE NOTIFIED TO ARCHITECT. ELEMENTS OF STRUCTURE
SHOWN AREINDICATIVE AND FOR GUIDANCE. FINAL DESIGN TO
BE AS STRUCTUIRAL ENGINEERS DETAILS AND SPECIFICATION.

PROJECT

i ABERDARON
Cyn”un |O for WILLIAMS HOMES
Derbyn - 06/06/2025 (BALA)
DRAWING TITLE
5P3B HOUSE
SCALE DATE DRAWN CHECKED
1:100 @A]l 01/02/25 ‘ OR ‘ SV
DRAWING
STATUS PLANNING
JOB No DRAWING No REVISION
0_ _ __1L C1113 063 B
AG|A o
GROUND FLOOR PLAN SIDE ELEVATION SN
Oom 2m 4m 6m 8m 10m T L P STaT 15 G W, v, G
SCALE: 1:100 SCALE: 1:100 [N ENRNEREN I I [ q ; ! ""mmw*m“

VISUAL SCALE 1:100 @ A3 PRINTED: 07/05/2025 15:35:54 A3



[

o abed

I =

ED3
6.5m?

12.7 m?

[ BEDROOM 2 UU

|

LANDING

8.1m?
BEDROOM 1
116 m? '?‘C’
A4 m?]
- BATHROQOM
47 m?
! o

FIRST FLOOR PLAN
SCALE: 1:100

LOUNGE

19.5m? @

GROUND FLOOR PLAN
SCALE: 1:100

Cynllunio

FRONT ELEVATION
SCALE: 1:100

REAR ELEVATION
SCALE: 1:100

SIDE ELEVATION - ENTRANCE
SCALE: 1:100

Om 2m 4m 6m 8m

Plot #1

Area Schedule (GIA) 5P3B SE

Level Area

DQR MIN 93 m?

FIRST FLOOR 46.58 m?

GROUND FLOOR |46.58 m?

Total 93.17 m?

Storage - 5P3B SE

Name Area

DQR MIN 2.50 m*

STORE 1.95 m?

STORE 0.87 m?

AC 0.41 m?

10m

0 s I ;

VISUAL SCALE 1:100 @ A3

Total 3.23m?

A [POSTS TO CANOPY 25.02.26 | AL

[a:\/l DESCRIPTION ‘ DATE ‘ By I

THIS DRAWING IS THE COPYRIGHT OF AINSLEY GOMMON
ARCHITECTS. CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE. DISCREPANCIES
TO BE NOTIFIED TO ARCHITECT. ELEMENTS OF STRUCTURE
SHOWN ARE INDICATIVE AND FOR GUIDANCE. FINAL DESIGN TO
BE AS STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS DETAILS AND SPECIFICATION.

PROJECT

ABERDARON
for WILLIAMS HOMES
(BALA)

DRAWING TITLE

5P3B SIDE ENTRY

SCALE | DATE | DRAWN | CHECKED
1:100 @A3! 01/02/25 | OR sv

DRAWING

STATUS PLANNING

JOB No DRAWINGNo  REVISION

C1113 065 A
AINSLEY
GOMMON
ARCHITECTS

THE OLD POLICE STATION, 15 GLYNNE 'WAY, HAWARDEN, CHS 3NS.
Tek: 01244 537 100 | walesSagarchilects.co uk | www agarchitects o, ok

1Price Sireet, [
PRINTED: 26/02/2025 08:37:31 A3




—

Arca Schodule (GIA) TP4B
114 m* DOR MIN
Level Area

00 - GROUND B8.860 m#
FLOOR

01 - FIRST 46.23 m#
FLOOR

Tatal 115.03 m#

Storage - 7P4B
3 m? DQR MIN
Mamea Arsa

AT 043 m*
ST 053 m?
ST 127 me
8T 082 m*
Total 3.04 m?

— FRONT ELEVATION
FIRST FLOOR PLAN SCALE: 1:100 ‘

SCALE: 1:100 BAT BOX. REFER TO
ECOLOGY REPORT

|=|l.\-| DESCRPTE |c.d.|l | L] |

IS DAWSNT 5 THE COPTRGHT OF ARSLET GOMMTR
AROWITRCTS. DM ALL DML O BTT. CECREPAMOIES
T RTTRE T ARCHITECT, REMIRTS OF STRUCTLES
ST ARE [ RISCATIVY AME T8 SUEDARCE. FbAL DESGN TO
B A STRUCTIRAL PHGIMIIRS BETALS AND S IORCATON

PROECT

ABERDARON
for WILLIAMS HOMES
(BALA)

DIREWNNG TITLE

7P4B (HANDED)

o sl "o T
REAR ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION i oo

ARCHITECTS

5 :
&ROUND FLOOR PLAN Om __2m  4m  6m __8m  10M  sscome e s

! .
00 s A 1 ! e

%ALE: 1:100 VISUAL SCALE 1:100 @ A3 s, s 2 g

SCALE: 1:100 SCALE: 1:100 AG‘ A COMMON






















Agenda Item 5.2

PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT REPORT

Number: 2
Application C25/0625/39/LL
Number:

Date Registered: 05/09/25

Application Full

Type:

Community: Llanengan

Ward: Abersoch and Llanengan

Proposal: A resubmission with improvements of a previously refused

full application for a caravan site, to include a toilet block
and environmental improvements

Berth Ddu Caravan Park, Bwichtocyn, Pwllheli, Gwynedd,
LL53 7BY

Location:

Summary of the
Recommendation: TO REFUSE

Page 54


https://gwynedd-planning.idoxcloud.com/locations/index.html?fa=edit&id=84691
https://gwynedd-planning.idoxcloud.com/locations/index.html?fa=edit&id=84691

PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025
ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT REPORT

1 Description:

1.1 This is a resubmission of a previously refused full application for a touring caravan site, as well as
erecting a toilet block and landscaping work. It is proposed to create 13 plots for touring caravans,
erect a permanent building to include toilets/showers, as well as undertaking soft landscaping im-
provements by reinforcing and filling gaps in cloddiau and hedges, as well as planting a new hedge
on the verge of the site with the nearby public road.

1.2 The main changes made between the previous refused application (C25/0008/39/LL) and the cur-
rent application would be:

¢ Reduce the number of plots from 15 to 13
¢ Plant a new hedge

1.3 The site is located outside any development boundary as shown in the Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint
Local Development Plan (LDP) Inset Maps; therefore the site is considered as open countryside.
The Berth Ddu property itself stands to the south of the application site and there are dispersed
residential houses within the local area. The site is within the LIyn Area of Outstanding Natural
Beauty and within the LIyn and Enlli Landscape of Outstanding Historic Interest. The site is served
by the relatively narrow and winding unclassified public road. The land that is the subject of this
planning application is land graded as class 2 land, namely good quality agricultural land.

1.4 From the site's planning history, it appears that no planning permission exists (except for the pre-
viously refused planning application) to create a caravan site here. It is known that the location
has operated as a "Caravan and Motorhome Club" certified site in the past. However, the existing
site does not operate through the exempt Club as confirmed by the Club's representatives on
30/10/25. Therefore, it is believed that the current application is for a brand-new touring caravan
site due to the lack of any planning permission in the past or any exemption certificate to operate
a caravan site through these arrangements.

1.5 The application is submitted to the Planning Committee instead of being considered through the
delegated procedure as the application is on a site measuring 0.5 hectare or more in size.

2. Relevant Policies:

2.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and paragraph 2.1.2 of Planning
Policy Wales emphasise that planning decisions should be in accordance with the Development
Plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Planning considerations include National
Planning Policy and the Local Development Plan.

2.2 The Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015 places a duty on the Council to take
reasonable steps in exercising its functions to meet the 7 well-being goals within the Act. This
report has been prepared in consideration of the Council’s duty and the 'sustainable development
principle’, as set out in the 2015 Act. In reaching the recommendation, the Council has sought to
ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of future generations
to meet their own needs.

Page 55



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025
ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT REPORT

2.3 Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint Local Development Plan 2011-26, adopted 31 July 2017
PS 1: The Welsh Language and Culture
TRA 2: Parking standards
TRA 4: Managing transport impacts
PS 6: Alleviating and adapting to the effects of climate change
PCYFF 1: Development boundaries
PCYFF 2: Development criteria
PCYFF 3: Design and place shaping
PCYFF 4: Design and landscaping
PS 14: The visitor economy
TWR 5: Touring caravan sites, camping sites and temporary alternative camping accommodation
AMG 1: Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty Management Plans
AMG 5: Local biodiversity conservation

AT 1. Conservation Areas, World Heritage Sites and Registered Historic Landscapes, Parks and
Gardens.

Also relevant in this case are the following:
Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG): Tourist Facilities and Accommodation

SPG: Maintaining and Creating Distinctive and Sustainable Communities

2.4 National Policies:
Future Wales: The National Plan 2040
Planning Policy Wales (Edition 12 - February 2024)
Technical Advice Note (TAN) 13: Tourism
TAN 18: Transportation
TAN 12: Design
TAN 5: Planning and Nature Conservation
TAN 6: Planning for sustainable rural communities
TAN 20: Planning and the Welsh Language

TAN 23: Economic development

Page 56



PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 08/12/2025

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT REPORT

TAN 15: Development, Flooding and Coastal Erosion

3. Relevant Planning History:

3.1 Application C25/0008/39/LL - Increase the number of caravans to a total of 15 mobile units,
construction of toilet/shower block, landscaping and associated work - Refused 14/07/25

4, Consultations:

Community/Town Council:

Transportation Unit:

Natural Resources Wales:

Welsh Water:

Keep to the same observations submitted with the original case,
namely to support, but concerned about the number of caravans in
Bwlchtocyn.

Not received

We do not oppose to the proposed development as submitted and we
provide standard advice relating to matters, including landscape and
protected species.

We refer to your planning consultation relating to the above site, and
we can provide the following comments in respect to the proposed
development.

Firstly, with respect to the submitted application form and
accompanying plans, we acknowledge that the development
proposes to discharge foul and surface water flows to a public sewer
and soakaway respectively.

FOUL WATER

The proposed development site is located in the catchment of a
public sewerage system which drains to Abersoch Wastewater
Treatment Works (WwTW). We have considered the impact of foul
flows generated by the proposed development and concluded it is
unlikely that sufficient capacity exists to accommodate the
development within the immediate public sewerage system without
causing detriment to the existing services we provide to our
customers, or in regard to the protection of the environment.

Having reviewed the revised Proposed Site Plan, we note it is
proposed to re-direct surface water drains from existing buildings

Page 57



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT REPORT

from public sewer to new soakaway crate  system.
However, additional information is required in order to assess
whether this would sufficiently offset the new foul flows from the
development.

SURFACE WATER

Turning to surface water drainage, as of 7th January 2019, this
proposed development may be subject to Schedule 3 of the Flood
and Water Management Act 2010. In the event this proposed
development amounts to a total impermeable area of 100sqm or
more, approval of Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) features
will be required in accordance with the 'Statutory standards for
sustainable drainage systems — designing, constructing, operating
and maintaining surface water drainage systems'. In this instance, we
offer no objection to proposals for disposal of surface water flows
into a soakaway, in principle, subject to consultation and agreement
with the regulatory body or riparian owner of this system.

ASSET PROTECTION

In addition, this site is crossed by a public pressurised main with the
approximate position(s) being marked on the attached statutory
public watermain record. In accordance with the Water Industry Act
1991, Dwr Cymru Welsh Water requires access to its apparatus at all
times in order to carry out maintenance and repairs. Having regard
to the revised Proposed Site Plan, it appears the a new hedge row
would be situated above and within the protection zone of the public
asset measured 3 metres either side of the centreline. Please note, the
distance specified for this protection zone is indicative and based on
industry standard guidelines. However, the depth of the asset will
need to be verified on site which may infer a greater protection zone.
For completeness, we recommend the developer refer to their title
deeds to confirm if there are any covenants or restrictions associated
with the asset(s) crossing the proposed development site.

We would advise that it is not permissible to locate any building,
structure, trees, SuDS features, ecological mitigation or the raising or
lowering of ground levels above or within the protection zone of our
assets.

In this instance, it appears there is sufficient space and scope to re-
position the hedge outside the protection zone of the asset. Therefore,
it is strongly recommended that the proposed site plan is amended to
take into account the location of the asset crossing the site and we
respectfully request we are re-consulted on receipt of this information.

Page 58



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT REPORT

It is also recommended that the developer contact our

Plan and Protect team (PlanandProtect@dwrcymru.com) to carry out
asurvey to verify the location of the asset and establish its relationship
to the proposed development.

Conclusion

Accordingly, for the reasons outlined above, we offer a Holding
Obijection until such time as additional/amended information has been
submitted and request we are re-consulted on receipt of this
information.

Our response is based on the information provided by your
application. Should the proposal alter during the course of the
application process we kindly request that we are re-consulted and
reserve the right to make new representation.

Biodiversity Unit: The plans show that additional trees will be planted in existing
hedges, as well as creating a wildflower meadow. There are no
ecological concerns.

AONB Unit: Berth Ddu caravan site is located in the Sarn Bach area and in the
Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB). The land is visible
from some nearby public vistas, but it is not very prominent in the
landscape. This is an amended application to create a site for 13 units
and a toilet/shower block on two agricultural fields. It is noted that
there is a proposal to plant trees and create a new hedge on the
southern boundary which would, in time, contribute towards
biodiversity and screen the site.

Viewpoints are provided on touring caravans in the AONB in policy
TP9 of the Management Plan, which notes: Resist new caravan
developments and extensions to existing sites in prominent locations
in the landscape or coast of the AONB and promote landscaping of
existing sites. Overall, there is now a substantial number of touring
caravans in the community of Sarn Bach / Bwlchtocyn, which puts
pressures on the local environment and services. It would be useful to
undertake a survey to obtain detailed information about the number
of caravans and to consider the ability of the area to cope with more
units.

Licensing Unit: Following any planning application permitted in relation to a caravan
or camping site under the 1960 and 1936 Acts, the applicant would
be required to make an application for a site licence to the Licensing

Page 59



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT REPORT

Service.
Language Unit: Not received
Fire Service: The Fire Authority has no observations regarding the access for Fire

vehicles and water supply.

Land Drainage Unit: It is clear that the toilet block will be 47.74m2. However, it is unclear
whether there is any construction work in relation to the touring
caravan plots. At the moment, we offer a temporary objection until
we receive confirmation on the point above. If construction work is
required and the general construction area of the development is
equivalent to or larger than 100m2, a drainage statement will be
required, with evidence.

Public Consultation: A notice was posted on the site and nearby residents were notified.
The advertisement period has expired, and two letters / items of
correspondence have been received, objecting on the following
grounds:

e Although there are changes from the previous application and
improvements in the form of suitable landscaping and Biodi-
versity improvements, they are cosmetic changes and do
nothing to prevent the visual impact of this open site within
the AONB;

e transport concerns and poor access to the site;

¢ lack of capacity within the area to accept an increase in cara-
vans;

e concerns about the permanent presence of touring caravans
on sites, which is contrary to policy;

e work has already been undertaken without Planning permis-
sion.

Assessment of the material planning considerations:
The principle of the development and visual amenities

5.1 It is acknowledged that the site has operated as a site with an exempt certificate in the past. This
means that such a site can be operated by installing up to 5 touring units. If the site was used by
numbers above 5 at any time, then this was unauthorised use. As noted, an exempt certificate does
not exist on the site by now and it is therefore considered, due to the lack of any formal planning
permission to use the land as a caravan site, it must be considered as a new site and as this is a site
relating to touring caravans, the application must be considered mainly under the requirements of
policy TWR 5 of the LDP, which sets a series of criteria to approve such developments.

Page 60



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025
ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT REPORT

5.2 Criterion 1 in policy TWR 5 states that any new touring caravan development should be of a high
guality in terms of design, layout and appearance, and well screened by existing landscape features
and/or where the units can be readily assimilated into the landscape in a way which does not
significantly harm the visual quality of the landscape.

5.3 It is intended to locate up to 13 touring caravans and erect a permanent building to be used as
toilets/showers on the site. It is acknowledged that some trees and hedges are present on the site,
but it is not considered that the quality of the landscaping on the site's boundaries or verges manage
to fully protect the site's visual amenities. Given the site's elevated and open location, there is no
assurance that the landscaping would establish itself and it is emphasised that it would take many
years to adequately screen the site, if at all. A reliance on landscaping to create a sufficient screen
includes an element of risk and there is doubt as to whether it would be possible to ensure adequate
screening in the short-term. Criterion 1 is clear in the fact that it is requested that sites in non-
intrusive sites have been well concealed by the existing features of the landscape and / or in a place
where the touring units can be easily assimilated into the landscape. In this case, the site is not well
concealed by the existing features of the landscape, and there is no assurance that the mitigation
measures to improve the screening would establish or succeed to a degree to conceal and assimilate
the units effectively into the landscape. It is also noted that Welsh Water has objected based on
locating the hedge along the site's boundary as it would likely be within 3m of the watermain that
runs along the boundary. There would therefore be a need to consider moving this hedge and there
IS no assurance that its new location would blend in with the current landscape or create effective
screening. Therefore, the proposal does not meet the requirements of criterion 1 of policy TWR 5
of the LDP.

5.4 Itis believed that the presence of caravans on the site would be visible from the nearby public road,
as well as from the relatively close public footpath to the west of the site. Due to the level nature of
the land, it can be argued that the views will be restricted from nearby plots, however it would be
visible from the nearby road and from higher lands within the dispersed area of Bwlchtocyn,
including areas along the area's public footpaths. It is acknowledged that there is an intention to
reinforce the site screening by improving and adding landscaping to existing cloddiau, however,
although the existing cloddiau would screen the lowest parts of the units, due to the height of the
touring caravans, it is believed that they would be visible in the broader landscape. Due to the
difference between its use in the past and the proposed use, the site would be more prominent within
the landscape. The amenity building and ancillary relics that come because of caravan site use, such
as parking vehicles, play equipment, etc., highlights the presence of the site and is therefore unlikely
to contribute positively to the AONB landscape. The village of Bwichtocyn is generally in a high
area and is prominent where there is high density of historic touring and static caravan sites. There
is concern that approving another touring site in the area would harm the visual amenities of the
area which is known for its outstanding natural beauty.

55 Policy AMG 1 notes that proposals that are within or affect the setting/views into or out of the
AONB, will need to consider the AONB Management Plan. Despite not fully objecting to the
proposal, the AONB unit's comments note "Viewpoints are provided on touring caravans in the
AONB in policy TP9 of the Management Plan, which notes: Resist new caravan developments and
extensions to existing sites in prominent locations in the landscape or coast of the AONB and
promote landscaping of existing sites... There is now a substantial number of touring caravans in
the community of Sarn Bach / Bwichtocyn, which puts pressures on the local environment and
services."

Page 61



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025
ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT REPORT

5.6 Paragraph 6.3.81 of the explanation of policy TWR 5 notes: "There are areas that are under
extreme pressure in a number of communities located near the coast, including large parts of the
Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty. The Council will need strong evidence that proposals for
more accommodation units in such areas will not add to problems for services and will not harm
the natural character or resources of these areas.” The Local Planning Authority has a duty to
protect the interests of the AONB. No evidence was presented to prove that the proposal would not
add to problems for services, and we are not convinced that establishing a new touring caravan site
in such a sensitive site would make a positive contribution to the views and visual amenities of the
landscape in this case. The proposal is, therefore, contrary to the requirements of policy AMG 1 of
the LDP.

5.7 The second criteria of Policy TWR 5 asks to avoid excessive areas of hard standing. In this case,
no hard standings are shown for the caravans, and therefore it is considered that this is acceptable.
The third criterion requires assurance that the site would only accommodate touring units - this can
be controlled with a suitable planning condition, should the decision be made to approve the
application. There is concern that the site would go from operating as an unnoticed exempt small
site into a more formal site with a tendency in the vicinity to site touring caravans every season.
The fourth criterion requires assurance that any ancillary facilities should be located in an existing
building if possible, or should this not be possible, that they are commensurate to the scale of the
development. There will be a new modern toilet/shower facility block measuring approximately
12.73m x 3.75m with internal provision for disabled users. The roof will be covered with slate
which will be in keeping with other building roofs and the colour of the render walls has not been
detailed. It is believed that the size of the block is equivalent to the scale of the development and
satisfies the fourth criteria of criterion TWR 5. In terms of the fifth criterion, the policy requires the
site to be located close to the main roads network and that adequate access can be provided without
significantly harming landscape characteristics and features - highway matters are discussed below.
The sixth criterion requires assurance that occupancy is restricted to holiday use only - this can be
ensured with a suitable planning condition. The seventh, and the last of the criteria, requires
assurance that the site is used for touring purposes only and that the units are removed from the site
during periods when not in use - again, this is a matter of imposing a suitable planning condition.
Although the proposal meets some of the criteria of policy TWR 5 of the LDP, it is considered that
the proposal fails on the main criterion which requires that the development is in a non-intrusive
location which is already well concealed.

General and residential amenities

5.8 The Berth Ddu dwelling itself is part of the site, but the nearest houses are a field or more away
from the application site. It is not considered that the site would likely have a significant impact on
the nearby residential dwellings. Therefore, it is not considered that the proposal would likely cause
obvious significant harm to the amenities of the local neighbourhood and residents and the proposal
is considered to be acceptable in terms of Policy PCYFF 2 of the LDP.

Transport and access matters

5.9 It is intended to use the existing access to serve the development. It is noted that the access track to
the land has already been resurfaced with fine slate waste and work to widen the access has been
completed. Widening the access has improved visibility to the road, which is considered
satisfactory. The site plan shows parking spaces adjacent to the caravans, with more room for more
vehicles if needed. No observations were received from the Transportation Unit at the time of
writing this report, but it is known from observations presented with the previous application, that

Page 62



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025

ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT REPORT

5.10

511

512

5.13

there was no objection to the proposal at the time. On these grounds, it is accepted that the proposal
satisfies the requirements of policies TRA 2 and TRA 4 of the LDP.

It is noted however that criterion 5 of policy TWR 5 requires that touring sites are close to the main
roads network and that an adequate access can be provided without substantially disrupting the
features and character of the landscape, with Supplementary Planning Guidance: Tourist Facilities
and Accommodation noting in paragraph 6.3.1 "It is important that new sites are located as near
as possible to the main highways network (i.e. class A and B). Unclassified country roads are
usually single-track lanes and are considered unsuitable for heavy traffic. No proposal will be
supported when the Authority is of the view that it has not been located close to the main highway
network." The nearest classified road (class 3) abuts the village of Sarn Bach approximately 1.37km
from the application site. A narrow unclassified rural road with hidden and winding corners serving
the Bwlchtocyn area and there is concern about approving more touring sites where there is a high
density of caravan sites as they are on a rural road where passing places are scarce. Certainly, in
such a location, visitors would use their own transport to transport a caravan to the site and overall
are reliant on private transport to travel from day-to-day, as it is not possible to rely on regular
public transport here. It can be argued that the Bwlchtocyn area, in particular in the holiday season,
has reached a saturation point where no more towing vehicle traffic should be encouraged on the
road, which is mainly single-lane. Due to the nature of the road and its distance from a classified
road and the adaptations to the access, it is not believed that the proposal meets criterion 5 of policy
TWR 5 of the LDP.

Biodiversity matters

A Green Infrastructure Statement was submitted as part of the application that outlines biodiversity
enhancements through additional landscaping measures in the form of planting hedges and trees,
as well as the installation of a bat box and a bird nesting box on the gable ends of the toilets building
and creating a wildflower meadow. The Biodiversity Unit confirmed that these improvements are
acceptable in this case and there is no ecological concern regarding the proposal. It is noted that
Welsh Water has objected to the location of the hedge along the site's boundary, and although there
are concerns over moving the hedge in terms of its efficiency to screen the development and its
visual impact (see paragraph 5.3 above), it is considered that it could be possible to ensure further
biodiversity improvements through a planning condition should the proposal be acceptable in
principle. It is therefore considered that the proposal meets the relevant requirements of policy
AMG 5, together with the requirements of chapter 6 of Planning Policy Wales relating to green
infrastructure and the phased approach.

Linguistic matters

It is noted that there are some specific types of developments where it will be required for the
proposal to submit a Welsh Language Statement or a Welsh Language Impact Assessment. The
thresholds when it is expected to submit a Statement/Report have been highlighted in Policy PS1
of the JLDP as well as Diagram 5 of the SPG Maintaining and Creating Distinctive and Sustainable
Communities (SPG). The development in question does not meet any of the thresholds in Policy
PS 1 of the LDP.

Excluding the developments that meet the thresholds for submitting a Welsh Language Impact
Statement / Assessment noted in Policy PS1, guidance is provided in terms of the type of relevant
applications where it is needed to consider the Welsh language in Appendix 5 (The Screening
Procedure) of the SPG (sections Ch to Dd). The guidance included within Appendix 5 notes that
every retail, commercial or industrial development where there is no need to submit a \egeésa

e 63



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025
ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT REPORT

Language Impact Statement / Assessment should show how consideration has been given to the
language.

5.14 In this case, a Welsh Language Statement was provided to support the proposal. The statement
notes that the site will only generally be used for holiday use during the summer period, with the
development contributing directly and indirectly towards the rural economy as visitors spend in
local pubs, restaurant and shops. The development would mean a significant investment from the
applicant with local providers and contractors benefiting from that. It is anticipated that the
development would need one part-time worker to run the caravan site, and it would keep the original
Welsh name of Berth Ddu with all the signs on the site bilingual. It is therefore believed that some
consideration has been given to the Welsh language in accordance with the principles of policy PS1
of the LDP.

Drainage Matters/Infrastructure

5.15 Observations were received from Welsh Water on concerns regarding the development and they
object to the proposal. The development is located within the catchment area of the sewerage
system which drains to the Abersoch Water Waste Treatment Works. Welsh Water state that it is
unlikely that there will be adequate capacity within the public sewerage system without causing
harm to customer services and relating to safeguarding the environment. Without appropriate
information to fully assess the proposal, it cannot be assumed that suitable arrangements would be
in place to address waste from the site, it is therefore not believed that the submitted application is
acceptable based on the relevant requirements of policy ISA 1 which note that proposals are only
approved when sufficient infrastructure capacity exists.

5.16 It is also noted that the Council's Land Drainage Unit offers a temporary objection to receive
confirmation whether there is an intention to provide hard standings for touring units. The
application does not confirm that there is an intention to provide hard standings, and therefore, to
this end, it is not considered that the proposal provides a hard standing or a building over the
threshold of 100m square which means that there would be a need to submit a drainage statement.
It is noted that hard standings require their own planning permission and therefore, should the
proposal be acceptable, it would be possible to provide hard standing through a separate planning
application. To this end, it is considered that the proposal complies with the requirements of
Technical Advice Note 15: Development, Flooding and Coastal Erosion (2025).

Any other considerations

5.17  According to the current Welsh Government maps, the land that forms the application site is known
as registered land 2. Paragraph 3.58 of Planning Policy Wales states that "agricultural land of grade
3a, as well as classes 1 and 2, in the Agricultural Land Classification (ALC)16 is deemed as the
best and most versatile and should be conserved as a finite resource for the future." As was the
case with the previously refused application, no evidence has been submitted as part of the
application to justify the loss of quality 2 land and therefore, the proposal is considered contrary to
criterion 6 of policy PCYFF 6, which requests that the best agricultural land is safeguarded, as well
as part 3.58 of Planning Policy Wales.

Response to the public consultation

5.18 It is acknowledged that objections have been received to this proposal, and we consider that all
relevant planning matters have been duly addressed as part of the above assessment. The
recommendation is made based on a full assessment of all relevant planning considerations,

Page 64



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025
ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT REPORT

including all the observations received during the public consultation, and nobody was wronged in
any way when considering this application.

6. Conclusions:

6.1 Having considered the above and the requirements of all the relevant local and national policies
and guidance, as well as all the observations received, it is not believed that the plan as submitted
is acceptable as it does not comply with the requirements of relevant local and national planning
policies and guidelines as set out in the report.

7. Recommendation:
7.1 To refuse — reasons

1. The proposal involves the creation of a new touring caravan site in open countryside away from
the main road network. It is not considered that the proposed units would easily assimilate to the
local landscape, and it is not considered as an unobtrusive location that was well-concealed by the
existing features of the landscape, and it is therefore considered that the development would be
harmful to the visual quality of the landscape. The proposal would not add to the maintenance,
enhancement or restoration of the recognised character of the LIyn Area of Outstanding Natural
Beauty and creating a new caravan site some distance from the main public road network on a busy
rural road where there is a high density of holiday sites would have an impact on the features and
character of the area. It is therefore considered that the proposal is contrary to the relevant require-
ments of policies TWR 5 and AMG 1 of the Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint Local Development
Plan and the Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG): Tourist Facilities and Accommodation.

2. Insufficient evidence had been presented as part of the planning application to demonstrate that
full account had been given to the loss of the best and most versatile agricultural land. It is therefore
considered to be contrary to the requirements of criteria 6 of Policy PS 6 of the Anglesey and
Gwynedd Joint Local Development Plan 2011-2026 and advice provided in paragraphs 3.58 and
3.59 of Planning Policy Wales.

3. Due to lack of information to fully assess the impact of the new sewerage flow from the proposed
development, the proposal is unacceptable based on the requirements of policy ISAL1 which notes
that proposals are only approved if sufficient infrastructure capacity exists, or when it is provided
in a timely manner.

Page 65



99 abed

= »
08w | 78
Y e
K
64.9m
557w | SLT
-
N
Berth Ddu Caravan Park .
G5 MasierMap 125072500 ale
Bwichtacyn, Thitt iy, Dacamnes 12:302 PMUP-01198955 The Map Shop
Gwynedd www i3 emapshap ok Upton upon Sevem
LL53 7BY wan TRMALSROD 00 LK

1 1250 stale printar Ad Cantre 2321150 € 325752N

SCiiwn CopprighiiTg nance Sutvey. Cikanceno

TH 1684 SO0 148
FAX. 0584 3943599
Peacarcodttraret oo

Berth Ddu, Bwichtocyn

Location plan

Cefn Bryn, 24 Stryd Fawr, Criccieth LL52 0BT

Tel: 0770 925 8926
ebost: gwyn@ty-newydd.com

Design & project management www.ty-newydd.com

Dylunio a rheolaeth project

Ty-Newydd

$

1:1250
05-09-2025



5

N

3

N

=2

SR

SN

“\%‘m\;\:&%\

.

N

AR

/9 abed

P e

=

A\

&

% [*/

W

N

0

3\ W

N

B

\\‘x\‘\}\
3R
N

o

i,
Sy,

i
\\,\\\:\

G, L, |

;s
o,

¥

N

f?fg/f»ﬂf%

i

SR

=

A

AR

=

»
“%

g,

3 3 S .
M}N\

.
=
&

f‘f/f’/ﬂ/‘ L,

Dy,

W

Yo

(3

&
“iy,

i

DERBYN

Adran Gynllunio 05-09-2025

Berth Ddu, Bwichtocyn

Site plan (as existing)

Cefn Bryn, 24 Stryd Fawr, Criccieth LL52 OBT

ebost: gwyn@ty-newydd.com

Tel: 0770 925 8926

Design & project management www.ty-newydd.com

Ty-Newydd

Dylunio a rheolaeth project

2006/ g2

1:500 @ A3

05-09-2025



5

N\

S

N

N

g

\\\

R
R

N

R
Ny

SN

.

NN

N\

89 abed
N

b Y,
f%? |2 & ﬁ/f/%/éf, S
g Y ”"%ﬁ

new hedging to be planted in two rows
staggerred at 45cm apart to consist of a

yﬁ%%{/,/{%f;@
2 7

fff/} T existing hedging to be supplemented with 5

%f 8 | U >N & ‘52:/ a mix of: Willow; Hawthorn; Blackthorn mix of

/// 2) oo 2 Elder; Dog rose; Guelder rose;

/f/’ % < % Hawthorn; Blackthorn; Hazel; Holly; Bird
fire point N ’;}?/ cherry; Cherry plum

i
% : 2x 101 water e ¢z
L /

ot 7 ) / P
/ﬁf}% / I %’ " / /
4 %
%, Py S , -y, F
%/;‘f'f %W /5 o recycling and bins %’?’( 7 g
b - A : = 7 P
% f% NS % / //
, i, L) 7 Vi
& 7 b =/ N i s T B
% &' o N’\ )ﬁ%%? ) /J/M / / / vision splay
L g ~ s W
1 & /e o ' [ 1/ & , ¢ % /
/ o/ I % \7 ¥ f”.'] existing gravel track £ f@&?{// y
= & s NS o
3/ h ~/ ﬁ% ; rl/;’ 3
% WILD FLOWER MEADOW i B ¢ - i _—
12 fire point a not be ploughed or sprayed with 3¢ 4 / , existing site entrance ~
- 2x40] waler weedkiller. The fields should be cut for ’ / /
= - hay at the end of the summer /7 /
Touring 5 A4
; enfls{lng sparse hedge to be supplemeted y
1 gg:ﬁ:ﬁn S with planting as new hedge new hedge row

lollstishower polydrain soakaway crate system

»
/c Hlock ; atleast 5m from building
2?;/'( .7'-\4\ 3 ¥ )
%} _ > E— yellow rattle seed and wildflower mix to
///’//M% P be sown in area's of disturbed ground
44% 5 & d
e : 4
WILD FLOWER MEADOW %ﬁ 7
( i

surface water drains from
existing building to be
diverted from public sewer to
new scakaway crate system.

not be ploughed or sprayed with
weedkiller. The fields should be cut for
hay at the end of the summer

/ T
4 / existing drainage connection

yellow rattle seed and wildflower mix to f , \
be sown in area's of disturbed ground ; o ’/

» /)
/ 4 ' .
Site plan (proposed)

R,
/W mﬁzuxflfin -

DERBYN

Adran Cynilunio 05-09-2025

\ Berth Ddu, Bwichtocyn

[

o

o

o

wn

|

-

=]

£

2

(5]

L €

=

o S

s 3

.-

-

T ©d

> NC

= oL

" oz
w0

3 Q%

e 22
o

> KO

m | bl
[ R ~3

c 1]

T 38

O Fo

Design & project management www.ty-newydd.com

Ty-Newydd

Dylunio a rheolaeth project

2006/ 03

1:500 @ A3

05-09-2025



woo ppAmau-Armmm

woo ppAmau-Al@UuAmb :1soge
9268 526 0L£0 :19L

190 26717 Wietoou) med pAiS g ‘ukig ued

sluice

m
2
@
c
L)
£

disabled toilet

ladies toilet

SLE

swabeuew 109foid B ubisaq
109foud yieejoays e OIUNIAG | Z

ppAMaN-AL § ¢

Berth Ddu, Bwichtocyn

toilet block plan

1213

05-09-2025

DERBYN

-U
m Adran Cynilunio 05-08-2025
«Q
@D
)]
(o]






Agenda Item 5.3

PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 08/12/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Number: 3

Application
Number:

Date Registered:

Application Type:

Community:

Ward:

Proposal:

Location:

Summary of the

Recommendation:

C25/0755/14/LL

15/10/25
Full
Caernarfon

Peblig

Change of use of the former VOSA testing station to form a
Timber and Builders’ Merchants

Vehicle Inspectorate, Lon Cae Ffynnon, Cibyn Industrial
Estate, Caernarfon, Gwynedd, LL55 2BD

RIGHT TO ACT - TO APPROVE WITH CONDITIONS
SUBJECT TO THE RECEIPT OF CONFIRMATION THAT

WELSH WATER IS WITHDRAWING ITS OBJECTION

Page 71


https://gwynedd-planning.idoxcloud.com/locations/index.html?fa=edit&id=28669
https://gwynedd-planning.idoxcloud.com/locations/index.html?fa=edit&id=28669

PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

1 Description:

1.1 Full application for the change of use of a VOSA MOT testing station which is a unique use, to a
timber and builders' merchants, in association with an existing site to the rear with the exact same
use. The proposal does not include any alterations to the building, yard or access. The building is
of a significant size and measures 50 metres long and 17 metres wide.

1.2 The site is situated within Cibyn industrial estate and a safeguarded area as a principal employment
site for employment use (B1, B2 and B8) and is within Caernarfon Town development boundary
as defined in the LDP. The site is served by the estate's service road.

1.3 The following documents have been submitted as part of the application:

Green Infrastructure Statement
Drainage Statement

Welsh Language Statement
Planning Statement

1.4 A revised landscaping plan has been submitted to alleviate Welsh Water's concerns.
2. Relevant Policies:

2.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and paragraph 2.1.2 of Planning
Policy Wales emphasise that planning decisions should be in accordance with the Development
Plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Planning considerations include National
Planning Policy and the Local Development Plan.

2.2 The Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015 places a duty on the Council to take
reasonable steps in exercising its functions to meet the 7 well-being goals within the Act. This
report has been prepared in consideration of the Council’s duty and the 'sustainable development
principle’, as set out in the 2015 Act. In reaching the recommendation, the Council has sought to
ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of future generations
to meet their own needs.

2.3 Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint Local Development Plan 2011-26, adopted 31 July 2017
PS 1. The Welsh Language and Culture
PS 4: Sustainable transport, development and accessibility
TRA 2: Parking standards
TRA 4: Managing transport impacts
PS 5: Sustainable Development
PS 6: Alleviating and adapting to the effects of climate change
PCYFF 1: Development Boundaries
PCYFF 2: Development Criteria

PCYFF 3: Design and Place Shaping Page 72



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

PS 13: Providing opportunities for a flourishing economy
CYF 1: Safeguarding, allocating and reserving land and units for employment use
PS 19: Conserve and where appropriate enhance the natural environment

AMG 5: Local Biodiversity Conservation

SPG Change of use of community facilities and services, employment sites and retail units (2021)

SPG Maintaining and Creating Distinctive and Sustainable Communities (2019)

2.4 National Policies:
Future Wales: The National Plan 2040
Planning Policy Wales (Edition 11 - February 2021)
Technical Advice Note (TAN) 23: Economic Development (2014)

Technical Advice Note (TAN) 18: Transportation

3. Relevant Planning History:
3.1 CO7A/0767/14/LL - EXTENSION TO CREATE A CANOPY Approved on 23.11.2007

C05A/0761/14/C3 - DEMOLISH EXISTING BUILDINGS AND RE-ERECT NEW TESTING
STATION TOGETHER WITH AN ADDITIONAL ACCESS - Approved on 29.11.2005

CO03A/0122/14/C3 - TEMPORARY BUILDING FOR VEHICLE EXAMINER - Approved on

17.03.2003
4. Consultations:
Community/Town Council: Support the application with the observation that the council is
pleased to see a local company making use of existing infrastructure
(Unanimous).
Transportation Unit: No response
Welsh Water: The site is crossed by a public sewer, public watermains and an

abandoned public watermain with their approximate positions being
marked on the attached statutory public sewer and watermain records.
In accordance with the Water Industry Act 1991, Dwr Cymru Welsh

Page 73



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Water requires access to its apparatus at all times in order to carry out
maintenance and repairs.

Having regard to the proposed plans, it appears a new tree is proposed
to be planted above and within the protection zones of our assets when
measured 3 metres either side of the centrelines. We would advise that
it is not permissible to locate any building, structure, trees, SuDS
features, ecological mitigation, the raising or lowering of ground
levels above or within the protection zones of our assets. Please note,
the distance specified for this protection zone is indicative and based
on industry standard guidelines. However, the depth of the asset will
need to be verified on site which may infer a greater protection zone.
For completeness, we recommend the developer refer to their title
deeds to confirm if there are any covenants or restrictions associated
with the asset(s) crossing the proposed development site.

In this instance, it appears there is sufficient space and scope to re-
position the proposed planting outside the protection zones of the
assets. Therefore, it is strongly recommended that the proposed site
plan is amended to take into account the location of the assets crossing
the site and we respectfully request we are re-consulted on receipt of
this information. It is also recommended that the developer contact
our Plan and Protect team (PlanandProtect@dwrcymru.com) to carry
out a survey to verify the location of the assets and establish their
relationship to the proposed development.

Accordingly, for the reasons outlined above, we offer a Holding
Obijection until such time as additional/amended information has been
submitted and request we are re-consulted on receipt of this
information.

Biodiversity Unit: This development avoids significant impact to biodiversity by
utilising unused but already developed land. The biodiversity
enhancement measures proposed in the GIS are suitable to achieve a
net benefit for biodiversity.

Language Unit: Not received

Public Consultation: A notice was posted on the site and nearby residents were notified.
No responses were received.

5. Assessment of the material planning considerations:
The principle of the development

5.1 The site is situated within the development boundary of Caernarfon as defined in the Joint Local
Development Plan and within a 'site safequarded as a principal employment site' for emplo nt
p g p p ploy p Yﬂgg e 74



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

use (B1, B2 and B8) in accordance with Policy PS13 (Providing opportunities for a flourishing
economy) and Policy CYF 1 (Safeguarding, allocating and reserving land and units for employment
use) in the Joint Local Development Plan.

5.2 The proposal relates to the change of use of an existing site which has been used as an MOT testing
centre by VOSA to a timber and builders' merchants linked to the applicant's existing site
immediately to the rear. This site would operate separately, but by the same company. The use of
a building or warehouse with a counter for trading falls within use Class B8 (Storage and
Distribution). To this end, it is considered that the proposal complies with the requirements of
policies PS13 and CYF 1.

Visual amenities

5.3 Policy PCYFF 3 states that proposals will be approved, including extensions and changes to
existing buildings and structures, if they comply with a number of criteria including that the
proposal adds to or improves the character or appearance of the site, the building or the area in
terms of setting, appearance, scale, mass, the height and elevation treatment; that it respects the
context of the site and its place in the local landscape; that it uses materials that are appropriate to
their surroundings and incorporates soft landscaping; that it improves a safe and integrated transport
and communications network; that it limits the risk and danger of flood water run-off and prevents
pollution; that it achieves an inclusive design that allows access for all and helps to create healthy
and vibrant environments taking into account the health and well-being of future users.

54 The site is situated within the town's industrial estate at Cibyn. The existing building is substantial
and prominent within the estate and is positioned as part of the wider site when viewed from a
distance. The application includes the use of the site and the existing building. The applicant states
that there is no intention to make external alterations to the building or yard, and as such there
would be no greater impact on the landscape than the existing situation. To this end, the application
would meet the objectives of PCYFF Policy 3 within the LDP.

General and residential amenities

5.5 The application was advertised at the site and nearby residents were notified. No response was
received. The site is located within an industrial estate in the middle of commercial uses, and is
approximately 100 metres away from residential houses to the north. While the proposal would be
probably lead in an intensive use of the site, it is not considered that it would have a significant
negative impact on the amenities of the residents of the nearest houses. Therefore, it is not
considered that the proposal is contrary to the objectives of Policy 2 within the LDP.

Transport and access matters

5.6 The site is served by an existing access to the estate's service road. The applicant states that there
would be no change to the access and that there is sufficient space for parking within the yard. The
site previously operated by VOSA as an MOT testing centre, and therefore the current arrangement
is suitable for large vehicles. The proposed site's change of use is not considered to cause harm to
road safety and although no observations have been received from the Transportation Unit, due to
the location and nature of the site and the proposal, it is considered to be acceptable and complies
with the requirements of policies TRA 2 and 4.

Page 75



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Biodiversity matters

5.7 The application involves the use of an existing yard without disturbing green land and is therefore
unlikely to adversely affect the site’s biodiversity. A green infrastructure statement has been
submitted as part of the application and the Biodiversity Unit's observations have been received
stating no objection to the proposal. It is noted that the proposed planting of a tree at the front of
the site has been amended due to an objection from Welsh Water, but a revised plan has been
submitted with the location of the proposed tree having changed. This is considered to be acceptable
and therefore the proposal complies with the requirements of policies PS 19 and AMG 5 of the
LDP and Chapter 6 of PPW.

Language Matters

5.8 In accordance with the Planning (Wales) Act 2015, it is a duty when determining a planning
application to consider the Welsh language, where it is relevant to that application. This is reiterated
further in para 3.28 of Planning Policy Wales (Edition 12, 2024), along with Technical Advice
Note 20. The Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) 'Maintaining and Creating Distinctive and
Sustainable Communities' (adopted July 2019), provides further guidance on how it is expected for
Welsh language considerations to be incorporated in each relevant development. It is noted that
there are some specific types of development where it will be required for the proposal to submit a
Welsh Language Statement or a Welsh Language Impact Assessment. The thresholds in terms of
when it is expected to submit a Statement/Report have been highlighted in Policy PS1 of the Joint
LDP, along with Diagram 5 of the SPG. It appears that the thresholds for producing a Welsh
Language Statement (area and number of employees) have been met with this application and
therefore a Welsh Language Statement will be required.

5.9 A Welsh Language Statement has been submitted as part of the application stating that the applicant
is a local company with an existing site adjacent to the application site. The company's existing
sites include bilingual signage, and it is intended for job advertisements to be bilingual and
available to local people of working age. Observations from the Language Unit have not been
received at the time of writing the report but based on the content of the statement together with
planning conditions to ensure bilingual signage, the proposal is considered to be acceptable and is
not contrary to the requirements of policy PS 1 and the SPG.

Welsh Water Matters

5.10 Itis noted that Welsh Water's comments confirm an objection to the proposal on the grounds that
it is intended to plant a tree within the protection zone of pipes crossing the site. A revised plan that
moves the proposed tree away from the pipe protection zone has been submitted in response to the
objection. At the time of writing, no response has been received from Welsh Water to the second
consultation on the revised plan, but the proposal is deemed to be acceptable subject to positive
comments from Welsh Water withdrawing its objection on the basis that the location of the
proposed tree is moved.

6. Conclusions:

6.1 Having given full consideration to all material Planning issues, it is considered that the application
can be supported, and it is recommended that it should be approved subject to the following
conditions.

Page 76



PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 08/12/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

7. Recommendation: Right to act - To approve with conditions subject to receipt of confirmation

from Welsh Water withdrawing its objection.

7.1 Conditions:

1. Five years.

2. In accordance with plans and documents.

3. To restrict use of the site to use class B1, B2, B8 within the proposed Use Classes Order 1987.
4, Biodiversity enhancements

Page 77



Jf

) aobed

Cynllunio

Derbyn - 15/10/2025

DMM International

Vehicle

Cibyn Veterinary
Clinic

Caernarfon Royal
Mail Delivery
Office

C.L. Jones-
builders merchants

LOCATION PLAN

Lz & G~

I
A

I [ ;E?'jr,
Fl)G A

NARCHITECTS

EDGE Archilects NW Lid.
10 Everard Road, Rhos on Sea
Corwy, LL28 4EY
01745 585517
info@edae-archilects com
—

CLIENT:

CL Jones Ltd

ADDRESS:
Former VOSA Testing Station, Lon Cae Fiynnon,
Cibyn Industrial Estate, Caemarfon LL55 2BD

PROJECT:
CHANGE OF USE FROM SUI GENERIS TO
TIMBER AND BUILDERS MERCHANTS

DRAWING No: , DATE: JUNE 2025
25-0OTH-132- LPOI I SCALE: 111250 @ A3

iy 4

VA4




6/ abed

Retention of vehicular access

LOCK PLAN: PROPO D

Cynllunio

Derbyn - 17/11/2025

Retention of vehicular access

Cibyn Veterinary
Clinic

T
Offices to be re-purposed
to support Timber and single storey
Builder's merchants
/ roller shutter door

space to be used as
warehousing for
Timber & Builder's
merchants

infrastructure

DMM International

/

Revision A: 13.11.25 Proposed tree repositioned

Cynllun Diwygiedig

Amended Plan

Proposed free - see green

builders merchant

Caernarfon Royal
Mail Delivery
Office

&

EDG

NARCHITECTS

EDGE Architects NW Ltd.
10 Everard Road, Rhos on Sea
Corwy, LL28 4EY
01745 585517
info@edge-archilects.com

CLIENT:
CL Jones Ltd

ADDRESS:
Former VOSA Testing Station, Lon Cae Fiynnon,
Cibyn Industrial Estate, Caemarfon LL55 2BD

PROJECT:
CHANGE OF USE FROM SUI GENERIS TO
TIMBER AND BUILDERS MERCHANTS

DRAWING No: , DATE: October2025
25-OTH-132- PLUZAI SCALE: 1:500 @ A3




08 abed

Cynllunio

Derbyn - 15/10/2025

disabled l
4 Office e Office Office Office registration counter Reception g

\

a - \ L
¥ 5 B S
X Office — /':I 2 : J B dis;t;led = public entrance
— [ — ] —

J’\ Lk \ﬂ

portal stanchion bays

covered vehicle testing bay
Dual height vehicleitesting centre

roller shutter door i
raller shutter door

|

|
&
T
}

|

\

|

\

|

|

| S ———

FLOOR PLAN: EXISTING ElDG4

ARCHITECTS

CLIENT:

CL Jores Lid

ADDRESS:
Fommer VOSA Testing Station, Lon Cae Flynnon,
Citsh Industiial Exlate, Coemation LS5 2860

PROJECT:
CHANGE OF USE FROM St GENERIS TO
TIMBER AND BUILDERS MERCHANTS

—————————————
DRAWING No: , DATE: October 2025
25-GTH132- PLOT ! SCALE: 1:100 @ A2




T8 obed

Cynllunio

Derbyn - 1510/2025

e ——— e e —— ———

Hjisabled |
{ Office we Office Office Office Office Reception

@ = - =
X ofice = ,«Mﬁ\ 4 [ ;abledu,.\

Y we Y
\ '_ )

H ["\1 Link t\m

public entrance

portal stanchion bays

L ]

covered vehicle loading bay

raller shutter door
roller shutter door

T
|
|
|
|
|
Dual height warehouse | |
|
|
|
|
|
|

|
|
¢
!
I
|
|
|
|
|

FLOOR PLAN: PROPOSED E)G4

ARCHITECTS

CLIENT:

CL Jonas Lid

ADDRESS:
Formar VOSA Tesfing Station. Lon Cos Fiyrincn
Cibyn Industiiol Extote, Cosmarfon LL5S 280

PROJECT:
CHANMGE OF USE FROM SUI GEMERS TO
TIMBER AND BUILDERS MERCHANTS

DRAWING No: | DATE: October 2025
25-OTH-132- FLO2 l SCALE: 1:100 & A2




2q abed

Telephone 0145

9 79!

4 1 &







8 abed

Ny
1|

!

L

I

F——E
.

" il

i
i




Gg abed




Agenda Item 5.4

PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Number: 4

Application C25/0647/11/LL
Number:

Date Registered: 10/09/25

Application Full

Type:

Community: Bangor

Ward: Dewi

Proposal: Change of use of a current industrial unit (B2 Use Class)

into an indoor padel sports centre (D2 Use Class) and
associated work

Denis Ferranti Meters Ltd, Denis Ferranti Meters Caernar-

Location:
fon Road, Bangor, Gwynedd, LL57 4SP

Summary of the
Recommendation: To APPROVE WITH CONDITIONS

Page 86


https://gwynedd-planning.idoxcloud.com/locations/index.html?fa=edit&id=42010
https://gwynedd-planning.idoxcloud.com/locations/index.html?fa=edit&id=42010

PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

1 Description:

1.1 This is an application to convert the former Denis Feranti factory in Bangor into an indoor padel
play facility. The application involves changing the use of the unit, known as Unit F of the site,
into a padel sports centre, including 8 padel courts, 2 pickleball courts, a warm-up zone, a reception
and toilets, as well as a facility to park bikes. Furthermore, existing parking within the site will be
specifically allocated and used, earmarking 36 parking spaces to the proposed use. The proposal is
to open the facility to be used from 07:00am until 11:00pm every day of the week.

1.2 The application site includes a warehouse unit located centrally within the estate. The estate, oper-
ated by the aerospace parts company since 1951, has been on the market since 2022. This applica-
tion represents the first presentation in a broader programme to transfer the estate by creating new
employment opportunities. It is expected that the plans for the wider estate will follow in due
course.

1.3 The site is located within the Bangor Sub-regional Centre Development Boundary but is located
outside the City Centre and the defined Main Shopping Area. The Flood Map for Planning indicates
that the site is located within Flood Zone 3 (Rivers and Surface Water) associated with the Afon
Adda that runs through a nearby culvert.

1.4 The estate is surrounded by a mixture of residential and commercial uses whilst the application site
itself is located within an existing unit, with the estate directly continuing to the north and the south.
To the west, residential dwellings are located along Cilcoed, whilst to the east, there are further
dwellings located along Bryn Llwyd. The site can be reached from the western side via Bryn
Llwyd, which in turn, leads from Caernarfon Road, namely the A4087.

1.5 The following information was submitted in support of the application:
¢ Planning Statement (including a Welsh Language Assessment)
e Impact Assessment
¢ Retail Impact Assessment

o Noise Assessment (as well as an update to respond to the Public Protection Service's ob-
servations)

e Energy Statement
e Transport Statement
e Green Infrastructure Statement

e Social Impact Statement

2. Relevant Policies:

2.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and paragraph 2.1.2 of Planning
Policy Wales emphasise that planning decisions should be in accordance with the Development
Plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Planning considerations include National
Planning Policy and the Local Development Plan.

2.2 Under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 the Council has a duty not only to
carry out sustainable development, but also to take reasonable steps in exercising its functions to
meet its sustainable development (or well-being) objectives. This report has been prepared in
consideration of the Council’s duty and the 'sustainable development principle', as set out in the
2015 Act, and in making the recommendation the Council has sought to ensure that the needs of
the present are met without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs.
It is considered that there would be no significant or unacceptable impact upon the achievement of
well-being objectives as a result of the proposed recommendation.
Page 87



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

2.3 Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint Local Development Plan. (July 2017)
ISA 2: Community Facilities

PCYFF 1: Development Boundaries

PCYFF 2: Development Criteria

TRA 2: Parking Standards

TRA 4: Managing Transport Impacts

MAN 1: Proposed Developments in Town Centres

MAN 2: Principal Retail Areas (the Retail Core)

PS 6: Alleviating and Adapting to the Effects of Climate Change

PS 15: Development of Town Centres and Retail

PS 19: Conserve and where appropriate enhance the natural environment

2.4 National Policies:
Planning Policy Wales.
Technical Advice Note 4: Retail and Commercial Developments

Technical Advice Note 15: Development, Flooding and Coastal Erosion

3. Relevant Planning History:

C96A/0053/11/CL: EXTENSION TO CREATE A WAREHOUSE AND INDUSTRIAL USE (AN
AMENDED DEVELOPMENT TO WHAT WAS APPROVED UNDER APPLICATION NUMBER

3/11/349L): Approved 07/06/96

4. Consultations:

Community/Town Council: No response received

Transportation Unit: No objection

Public Protection: The additional information submitted as part of the application above

has been assessed and our observations are as follows:

The response is based on revised information by the Applicant and

Acoustic Consultant in the following documentation:

. Noise Impact Assessment for a Proposed Padel Tennis and
Pickleball Facility S3, Caernarfon Road, Bangor LL57 4SP Report
Reference 22236.NIA-RPT.01. Rev A dated 29th of October, 2025

produced by es acoustics. (NIA)

. S3, Caernarfon Road, Bangor LL57 4SP — Technical Note

(TN)

Page 88



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

The additional information includes the properties known as Bryn
Llwyd Bungalows and responds to the Departments comments on
nearby properties omitted from the initial NIA. In addition the NIA
and associated technical note clarifies that the noise assessed as
cumulative ad worst case with all courts pickle and padel in operation.

Our comment still stands in relation to point 4 and 5 of the TN:

Comment 4: “Noise from traffic arriving and leaving the site has not
been assessed and the Service would recommend that this is
incorporated into the noise assessment. Vehicle movement to the rear
of the properties on Bryn Llwyd will be a new noise source.”

The technical note makes the comment that ‘the change in site
operation is expected to result in a neutral or beneficial effect in terms
of traffic-related noise’. This conclusion is based on the assumption
that the industrial use and coming and goings of personnel to the site
would have the same or less impact.

The nature of the shift patterns would have meant that once shifts were
commenced, that cars would not be coming and going all day and
night until 23:00hrs. The nature of the sport would mean that visitors
would be on site for a shorter duration. This can result in management
issues and overall increase in noise levels from the coming and goings
of vehicles, slamming doors and voices. | would suggest that
customer car parking activity noise in the context of guideline noise
values and the existing ambient noise climate should be included.

It is necessary to evaluate this noise over an appropriate time period,
the closure after 23:00 hrs would bring this noise withing night time
levels (23:00 — 07:00hrs), when an increased degree of noise
protection should be expected. The applicant is advised to include
this assessment or consider mitigating this by reducing operational
hours so that the night time is not compromised.

The development hereby approved will be carried out in full
accordance with the noise impact assessment, prepared by ES
Acoustics - Noise Impact Assessment for a Proposed Padel Tennis
and Pickleball Facility S3, Caernarfon Road, Bangor LL57 4SP
Report Reference 22236.NIA-RPT.01. Rev A dated 29th of October,
2025.

The predicted levels in Table 10 of the NIA shall not be exceeded.
Post completion condition

Within 3 months of the site becoming operational, a post completion
noise survey shall be undertaken by a suitably qualified acoustic
consultant, in accordance with the NIA and a report submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Page 89



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

The report shall provide information on the measured sound emitted
from the site at 1.0m from the facade of the residential receptors
identified at Maes Berea, Pen y Wern, Cilcoed and Bryn Llwyd
Where operational noise, are found to be more than the minimum
background noise levels, or and plant rated noise levels are above the
external plant condition below, a detailed noise mitigation scheme
shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for written
approval. Any scheme of mitigation shall be implemented within 3
months of the date of written approval in full accordance with the
approved details, and it shall be retained in accordance with those
details thereafter.

External Plant

Operational phase fixed plant and equipment external noise emissions
can be suitably mitigated through imposing noise limits in accordance
with the assessment criteria at the nearest or most exposed noise
sensitive receptors.

The consultant has stated that there will be no fixed plant/external
plant associated with the development. The Service would
recommend that should any mechanical plant, air
conditioning/heating units be installed, they shall comply with the
condition below:

The cumulative noise from new plant associated with scheme shall be
limited to 5dB below the

background noise level (LA90) at surrounding noise sensitive
properties during the day and evening. On

this basis noise from the scheme would have a low to negligible
impact on the residents of surrounding

properties. Plant noise (biomass, boiler etc) shall be assessed in
accordance with the principles in BS

4142:2014 +A1:20191.

In addition any noise emitted by plant and machinery used in
connection with the Development will not

exceed Noise Rating Curve NR25 between the hours of 2300 — 0700
and NR 30 at all other times when

measured within the nearest noise sensitive dwelling (windows can be
open for ventilation). The noise

emanating from any plant and machinery used on the premises should
not contain any discernible tonal

component. Tonality shall be determined with reference to BS 7445-
2.

Construction Noise

No construction or demolition work shall take place on Sunda)ﬁ

dge 90



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Public Holidays or outside the hours
of 08:00 to 18:00 Monday to Friday and 08:00 to 13:00 on Saturdays

Propose conditions to control noise levels, external lighting and
monitoring in case there is contaminated land on the site

Welsh Water Request a condition for the protection of the public sewer and standard
guidance for the applicant

Natural Resources Wales No objection

The application proposes to change the use to a use that is less open
to harm as defined in Technical Advice Note 15: and, because of this,
it is considered that the proposals could be acceptable, subject to
making the developer aware of the potential flood outcomes and risks.

The proposal is for a use that is less vulnerable, agrees with
paragraphs 6.28 and 6.29 of the planning statement and recommend
using measures to withstand flooding and draw up a plan to measure
flood management for the site.

Land Drainage Unit There is no need to have an application from the SuDS Approval
Body, and there is no need to have a drainage statement to approve
the plan.

Public Consultation: A notice was posted on the site and nearby residents were notified.

The advertising period for the planning application has ended and the
objection below was received in response to the public consultation
process:

e Concern about the noise impact on the amenities of nearby
residents, the activities, and the transport produced, especially
noise late at night.

5. Material Planning Considerations:

Principle of the development:

51 It is a requirement that planning applications be determined in accordance with the adopted
development plan, unless other material planning considerations indicate otherwise. The Anglesey
and Gwynedd Joint Local Development Plan (LDP) is the adopted 'Development Plan' in this case.
The site of the proposal is located within the Bangor development boundary as identified in the
(Anglesey and Gwynedd) Joint Local Development Plan and therefore complies with Policy
PCYFF 1.

5.2 The proposal relates to changing the use of an existing industrial unit (B2 Use Class) to an indoor
padel sports centre (D2 Use Class) and associated work. It is considered that the main relevant
policy is policy ISA 2 (Community Facilities) of the LDP. Point 1 of policy ISA 2 notes:

"The Plan facilitates to maintain and improve community facilities through:
1. Granting the development of new community facilities, provided that:

i. they are located within or adjoining development boundaries or they are

Page 91



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

ii. located outside development boundaries but within clusters where the proposal will provide an
essential facility to support the local community;

iii. in the case of new buildings, the needs of the local community cannot be satisfied by making
dual use of existing facilities or converting existing buildings

iv. where the proposal is for the relocation of a facility, it can be demonstrated that the existing site
is no longer suitable for that use

v. the proposal is of an appropriate scale and type compared to the size, character and function of
the settlement, the proposal is easy to reach by foot, bike and public transport

It is encouraged to provide new or improved multi-purpose community facilities, including co-
locating health care facilities, schools, libraries and leisure in accessible locations.”

5.3 Considering this proposal in the context of the criteria above in turn:
i.  The site is within the development boundary
ii.  Not relevant
iii.  The development would involve the conversion of an existing building.
iv.  Not relevant

v.  When considering the status of Bangor as a Sub-regional Centre and the site's accessibility for a
high percentage of the city's population, it is believed that this facility is completely appropriate for
the nature of the location and status of the settlement.

5.4 Given the above, it is believed, by redeveloping an existing building for the purpose of the
community that will also provide employment opportunities, this proposal is consistent with the
objectives of Policy ISA 2 as it attempts to protect and improve community facilities.

Amenities

55 The Public Protection Service responded to the consultation on the application by expressing
concern regarding the noise deriving from the site. In addition, correspondence was received by a
local resident that the use of the facility could impact the amenities of neighbours, especially if the
use continued late at night. An acoustic expert responded on behalf of the applicants, stating the
information below in response to the individual points raised by the Public Protection:

¢ An Amended Noise Report has been produced to include a noise model that considers the impact
on the Bryn LIiwyd bungalows.

e This site is in an urban environment, which includes various environmental noise sources that pro-
vide some level of effective noise cancellation.

e The highest noise levels anticipated from this development continues to be lower than the threshold
to start irritation noted in the CIEH Guidelines (Chartered Institute of Environmental Health) for
Clay Pigeon Shooting (quoted by Public Protection)

e The survey data includes evening periods when nearby commercial activities are not operational,
and therefore it is considered that it provides a robust representation of the lowest background noise
levels likely to occur in the area.

e Itisestimated that the general movements of vehicles associated with the proposed centre are lower
than what was produced by the previous industrial use.

e It is expected that the proposed use of padel and pickleball generates significantly lower noise
levels than those associated with the site's industrial former operations.

Page 92



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

e The noise model has been developed based on the worst, conservative assumption regarding con-
structing the existing warehouse structure. Practically, it is anticipated that the building envelope
will provide audio insulation that is equal or more than what is assumed in the model.

e The model will be configured to evaluate the worst operational scenario, assuming that every padel
and pickleball court is used at the same time.

e The operator notes the intention to operate additional noise absorbing treatment, should post-own-
ership conditions show that players' comfort or internal echo can be improved.

e The applicant has confirmed that there is no mechanical ventilation, air-conditioning or heating
work being proposed as part of the existing application.

5.6 The views of the Public Protection Service were sought on the additional information submitted
and the response has been noted in the table above, and it is noted that the information presented in
terms of noise emitting from the building was unacceptable. It is acknowledged that there is concern
regarding the movement of vehicles and noise emitting from the parking behind the houses of
Ffordd Bryn LIwyd. Parking spaces already exist here, and a Lon Adda footpath (including a cycle
path) runs between the site's boundary and behind the Bryn Llwyd houses.

5.7 Noting the concerns raised, given the specialist evidence submitted, especially in the context of the
existing right to use the building for industrial purposes within B2 use class (General Industrial)
without any control in terms of time or activity within B2 use class, and its urban location, and from
imposing appropriate conditions, it is not considered that the use of the building as a sports facility
would likely cause additional amenity impacts that would cause significant harm to the amenities
of neighbours. Given the above, it is not believed that the proposal is contrary to policy PCYFF 2
of the LDP as it relates to protecting the amenities of private and public amenities.

Transportation Matters.

5.8 A Transportation Statement was submitted with the application and noted that the development is
anticipated to be safe, accessible and well-located to make the most of sustainable travel. The
Transportation Unit had no objection to the proposal, noting that they do not expect the density of
the traffic attending the site to increase compared with the previous use. The number of parking
spaces noted in the application is also sufficient. The site is in the city centre in an accessible
location, and it is not considered that the proposal would likely cause parking and traffic problems.
It is therefore considered that the proposal is in accordance with policy TRA 2 and TRA 4.

Flooding Matters

5.9 The application proposes to change the use to a use that is less open to harm from flooding as
defined in Technical Advice Note 15: Development, flooding and coastal erosion (TAN15). For
this reason, Natural Resources Wales consider that the proposal could be acceptable, subject to
making the developer aware of the potential flood outcomes and risks. It would also be expected
for the developer to benefit from the opportunity to incorporate a flood prevention design where
possible. Natural Resources Wales suggest adopting the recommendations included in the Planning
Statement and recommend using flood prevention measures and draw a flood implementation plan
for the site. From including appropriate conditions to ensure the above, it is believed that the plan
meets the requirements of policy PS 6 and TAN 15 as they relate to protecting development sites,
and the surrounding areas, from flooding.

Page 93



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Green Infrastructure

5.10

A Green Infrastructure Statement was submitted to support the application and that identified that
the development would not have any harmful impact on biodiversity and, due to the nature of the
development and its location, the only practical measures for the site is to install a bird / bat box
on the building and planters outside the unit to create additional habitat for wildlife. It is considered
that this satisfies the requirements of Policy PS 19 and Planning Policy Wales in relation to
ensuring that every development highlights the consideration given to contribute towards providing
green infrastructure.

The Welsh Language

5.11

512

5.13

Excluding the developments that meet the thresholds for submitting a Welsh Language Impact
Statement/Assessment noted in Policy PS1, guidance is provided in terms of the type of relevant
applications where consideration should be given to the Welsh language in Appendix 5 (The
Screening Procedure) of the Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) 'Maintaining and Creating
Distinctive and Sustainable Communities’. The guidance included states that every retail,
commercial or industrial development that is not required to submit a Welsh Language Impact
Statement / Assessment should show how consideration has been given to the language.

A Welsh Language Statement was submitted as part of the Planning Statement and that notes the
consideration given to the Welsh language when drawing up the plan, including:

The company will use bilingual signs across the site for every advertisement,

The Welsh language will be prioritised, from being in front (or above) the translated English.
All the advertisements/signs will be easy to read, without any preferential treatment for English.
The accuracy of the signs will be ensured by using a professional translator

New posts are advertised in Welsh to attract the highest proportion of suitable applicants.

The need for Welsh skills will be noted within the job descriptions' criteria.

Training will be offered through the medium of Welsh to staff members to improve their skills and
increase confidence when using the language.

Whilst it is unlikely that any change to the general number of Welsh speakers will derive from the
development, the development will offer an opportunity for local residents to obtain employment
and stay in their community. It is believed, from imposing a condition relating to the use of the
Welsh language on documents and signs, that it can be ensured that the development contributes
towards the visual presence of the language in accordance with the requirements of policy PS 1.

Retail Matters

5.14

Policies MAN 1 and MAN 3 of the LDP state that there is a need for commercial developments
outside of defined town centres to satisfy the sequential approach set out in Planning Policy Wales
and the relevant Technical Advice Note (TAN 4). A Retail Impact Statement was submitted with
the application which concludes, due to the location and nature of the development, that the
proposal will not have any unacceptable impact on the existing retail provision. Given the content
of the document in the context of the nature of the development and its specific requirements in
terms of space, it is agreed that it is acceptable under the requirements of policies PS 15, MAN 1
and MAN 2 and the development will not be harmful to the High Street retail role of the city.

Page 94




PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Conclusions:

5.15 Based on the assessment above and given all the relevant planning matters, it is not considered that
the proposal is contrary to the national and local guidelines and policies noted within the assessment
and any potential harmful impact could be managed through relevant conditions. Indeed, ultimately
it is believed that this offers an opportunity to ensure a viable use to a significant city-centre
building, in a manner that would be an improvement, in terms of managing the potential amenity
impacts, compared with what could happen under the current planning permissions. Based on the
above, it is considered that the proposal is acceptable subject to relevant conditions.

Recommendation:

7.1 To approve the application subject to relevant planning conditions in relation to:

Time

Compliance with the plans

Permitted use of the unit as a Pickleball / Padel Sports Centre only and not for any other purpose

The mitigation measures from flooding recommended in parts 7.29 - 7.34 must be followed in the

Planning Statement

Opening Hours: 07:00 to 23:00 daily

6. The development approved through this is held in accordance with the noise impact assessment,
prepared by ES Acoustics - Noise Impact Assessment for a Proposed Padel Tennis and Pickleball
Facility S3, Caernarfon Road, Bangor LL57 4SP Report Reference 22236.NIA-RPT.01. Rev A
dated 29th of October, 2025. Noise should not be higher than the levels anticipated in Table 10 of
the NIA.

7. Within the 3 months of the site becoming operational, a noise survey will be undertaken by a suit-

able qualified acoustic adviser, in accordance with the NIA, and submit a report to the Local Plan-

ning Authority and approved by them in writing. The report will provide information about the

measured audio emitted from the site on 1.0m of the fagade of the residential receptionist noted in

Maes Berea, Pen y Wern, Cilcoed a Bryn Llwyd. Should it be discovered that the operating noise

is higher than the lowest background noise levels, or there are noise levels from the external me-

chanical equipment with a higher score than the external condition above, a detailed noise mitiga-

tion plan should be presented to the Local Planning Authority to be approved in writing. Any mit-

igation plan will be implemented within 3 months of the date of the written approval in accordance

with the approved details, and it is kept in accordance with those details afterwards.

Working Hours

Details of any external equipment installed on the building must be submitted.

10. A Site Management Plan should be presented and agreed, including a mechanism to deal with
complaints from public members.

11. Act in accordance with the Green Infrastructure Statement

12. Ensure Welsh / Bilingual signs

el NS

o

© ®©

Notes

1. Welsh Water

Page 95



96 abed

11/09/25

Adran Cynllunio - Cyngor Gwynedd

0 1 I;?ZS’ATION PLAN

Scale Bar. 1:1250

= om o

50m

1
100m

notes

AN dimensions must be chacked by he contracter before
commencing work on &1

Ho deviation from this drawing wdl be parmitad without the pror
wiitten cansent of the Architzct,

This arawing is to be read win all relsvant Morse Webb Lid,
Structural, MAE and Specialist drawings, reports and speciications.
Any or detalls on ar

drawings ! reports | speciiicatians shouid be braught io the attention
af Marsa Wbk Lid in wriing for clarficabon

e
morsew

architects

The Byre The Street Bramiey Hampshire AG285DE
T:O1256 587888 W. www.mersewebb.ta.uk

P
Proposed Padel Courts,
Bangor

Social Sports Society Lid

House of Sport

190 Great Dover Street
= | London

SE14YB

tile.

Location Plan

scale status

1:1250 @A2 PLANNING

fob na. awg no. i
1057 $3-BNG-00-A-001 PLO1



/6 abed

\ P§ MOrsewess
) sreh texcts

S p 5 | Socs Sports Sty Lt
v N 3 SE14Y8

Block Plan

wale s
1:250 @az PLANNING
bro. awano ™

(01 BLockrray




86 abed

0

PROPOSED SITE / GA FLOOR PLAN

1250

O

o pd

12no. Cycles

@-&

DM0A0D5 Bl stora kit
Z0SRIS  Paing mands

MOrSewWEBB
architects

Tha By Tha Siroet Bramioy Haashen FIG2GSOE
T DE35A SETREE W wars Ms3ewODE 00 ok

pomt
Proposed Padel Courts,
Bangor

=g | Secial Sporis Society Lid
@ 3§ House of Sport
180 Great Dover Srest
= | Londan

QCIAL SPORTS OCIETY | SE1 4YB.

™
Car Parking &
Cycles
scale st
1:250 @az PLANNING
o o -
1., 1057 $3-BNG-00-A-006 PLO3
i



66 abed

| 1| | L] =

Struchsl, MAE s Spacialst Srawins. ropts and speeitoatons.

! Padal Cout o4 ////////

i) | e,

N

Ay

NN

"

g
N

Padel Court No.8

1

= 12no.cydles T
wens pasad

revisicncin ot

MOrseweBs
architects

T By Tha et Beviy Hampstios AZ8 106
101258 SAT000 W man morsemebh <5 ub

Parking

Proposed Padel Courts,

AR R — Bangor
""‘I ’ : : o ":,/:' DeaTsm
. = s - -:I,,__-.'
o s 2 s | 7

o Il? | Hause of Spurt
| 2 Di: = R " ait
Dis |- H | Londen
% g i . SPORTS LOCIETY | SET 4B
1 = ‘ Proposed Site /
Existing Site: Spaoe Han
Enfrance

el ks
1:250 @az PLANNING
0 PROPOSED SITE / GA FLOOR PLAN saaia Bar, 1250 "Iy Py e
1250 — = e 1057 $3-BNG-00-A-005 PLO4

P






Page 101



Agenda Iltem 5.5

PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Number: 5
Application C25/0428/14/LL
Number:

Date Registered: 17/06/25

Application Full

Type:

Community: Caernarfon

Ward: Caernarfon Town Centre

Proposal: Change of use of offices to 5 residential flats, including a

rear extension. Installation of an Air Source Heat Pump
and door to the waste storage.

L ocation: Mona, 4 High Street, Caernarfon, Gwynedd, LL55 1RN.

Summary of the
Recommendation: To ApPROVE WITH CONDITIONS

Page 102


https://gwynedd-planning.idoxcloud.com/locations/index.html?fa=edit&id=26773

PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

1 Description:

1.1 Full application for the change of use of offices to 5 residential flats, C3 use, as a main residence
(3 flats with one double bedroom and 2 flats with two double bedrooms), including a rear extension.
Installation of an Air Source Heat Pump and a door to the waste storage.

1.2 Modification work includes internal changes and building a 3-floor extension within the property's
back yard. The work would include the installation of 3 ground floor windows and 2 windows on
the first floor for the back bedrooms. It is not proposed to change the front nor the side elevations
that are prominent from the high street.

1.3 The substantial building is situated on the corner of the town's High Street and within 30 metres
to Porth yr Aur. The design and size of the building make a positive and substantial contribution
to the street's look and character.

1.4 The building is situated within Caernarfon Town's development boundary, the town's World Her-
itage Site, 500m from an ancient monument and amongst listed buildings.

1.5 The property is served by a Class 2 county road and an unclassified road.

2. Relevant Policies:

2.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and paragraph 2.1.2 of Planning
Policy Wales emphasise that planning decisions should be in accordance with the Development
Plan, unless material planning considerations indicate otherwise. Planning considerations include
National Planning Policy and the Local Development Plan.

2.2 The Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015 places a duty on the Council to take
reasonable steps in exercising its functions to meet the 7 well-being goals within the Act. This
report has been prepared in consideration of the Council’s duty and the 'sustainable development
principle’, as set out in the 2015 Act. In reaching the recommendation, the Council has sought to
ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of future generations
to meet their own needs.

2.3 Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint Local Development Plan 2011-26, adopted 31 July 2017
PCYFF 1: Development Boundaries
PCYFF 2: Development criteria
PCYFF 3: Design and place shaping
PCYFF 4: Design and landscaping
PS 5: Sustainable development
PS 6: Alleviating and Adapting to the Effects of Climate Change

AMG 3: Protecting and improving features and qualities that are unique to the character of the
local landscape

AMG 5: Local Biodiversity Conservation

Page 103



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

PS 19: Conserving and where appropriate enhancing the natural environment
PS 4: Sustainable transport, development and accessibility

TRA 2: Parking standards

TRA 4: Managing transport impacts

AT 1: Conservation Area, World Heritage Sites and Landscapes, Registered Historic Parks and
Gardens

PS 20: Preserving and where appropriate enhancing heritage assets

PS 17: Settlement Strategy

TAI 1: Housing in the Sub-regional Centre and the Urban Service Centres

TAI 8: An appropriate mix of housing

TAI 15: Threshold of Affordable Housing and their Distribution

TAI 9: Sub-dividing Existing Property to Self-contained Flats and Houses in Multiple Occupation

PS 1: The Welsh Language and Culture

2.4 National Policies:
Future Wales: The National Plan 2040
Planning Policy Wales (Edition 11 - February 2021)
Technical Advice Note 12: Design
Technical Advice Note 18: Transportation
Technical Advice Note 24: The historic environment
3. Relevant Planning History:

3.1 C24/0865/14/LL - New main entrance to the building to improve accessibility, maintenance work
to the external area of the building and close the current entrance and install a thin double-glazed
window to be in-keeping with the existing windows. Approved 20-02-2025

4. Consultations:

Community/Town Council: Object as the information about use is not clear and there might be
an over density of such developments should the use be clearer.
(Unanimous).

Transportation Unit: I refer to the above application and | confirm that the transportation

Page 104



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

unit does not have any objection.

Natural Resources Wales: We do not oppose the proposed development as submitted and we
provide the following advice.
Protected Sites

Special Area of Conservation (SAC)

The application site is located within 55m of the Menai Strait and
Conwy Bay Special Area of Conservation (SAC).

From the information provided, we are of the view that the proposal
could have an impact on the SAC, and we have noted pollution as a
possible impact path in terms of the site's characteristics.

However, we are of the view that the above path would lead to a
detrimental impact should the developer adhere to the pollution
prevention guidance, for further guidance refer to GPP 5 and GPP6
in the following link: Guidance for Pollution Prevention (GPP)
documents | NetRegs | Environmental guidance

As the competent authority under the Habitat and Species Protection
Regulations 2017 (as amended), it is your Authority which will
undertake the Likely Significant Impacts test for the proposed
development. Should you conclude that the proposal is likely to have
a significant impact on the Special Area of Conservation, either in
isolation or in conjunction with other plans or projects, a proper
assessment of the project's implications for that site must be carried
out taking into account its conservation objectives. You must, for the
purposes of the assessment, consult NRW and have regard to any
representations we make within such reasonable time as you specify.

Protected Species

We note that there is no information regarding protected species
with the application and therefore we presume that your authority
has screened the application and concluded that there is no
reasonable likelihood of protected species being present.

Welsh Water: We would request that if you are minded to grant planning consent
that the following Condition and Advisory Notes are included to
ensure no detriment to existing residents or the environment and to
Dwr Cymru /Welsh Water's assets:

Condition

No surface water from any increase in the roof area of the building
/or impermeable surfaces within its curtilage shall be allowed to drain
directly or indirectly to the public sewerage system.

Page 105



PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 08/12/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Public Protection Unit:

We have considered the planning application, and our
comments/advice is as follows:

ASHP

Applications that include Air Source Heat Pumps (ASHP) are
expected to increase significantly in accordance with the movement
to decarbonise buildings. ASHPs are seen as one option in this
process and the Public Protection Service does not wish to place
unnecessary burdens on applicants when providing these solutions.
However, ASHPs operate differently to existing oil or gas boilers
and therefore can cause noise concerns.

I note that there are no details regarding the noise levels that will
derive from the unit. There are no details in the report regarding
noise mitigation measures and whether the unit conforms to MSC
020 standard.

The MCS has produced guidelines for registered installers
(MICROGENERATION INSTALLATION STANDARDS): MCS
020 - Planning Standards for Permitted Developments to install
Wind Turbines and Air Source Heat Pumps on Domestic Sites).
Although these guidelines have been developed to enable installers
to determine whether retrospective installation applications are
permitted developments or not, they can be applied in the same
manner to new applications as this will provide a basic level for each
ASHP.

Required details - Domestic Air Source Heat Pumps:

Details of the MCS020 assessment will be provided to the Planning
Department for the installation of any air source heat pump(s) for
approval.

Where the MCS020 satisfies the noise criteria noted, then full details
of the unit proposed, and details of the anti-vibration installations
and other noise attenuation measures will be required. It is possible
that the distance between the unit and the nearby property should be
increased. The Plan will be implemented as approved and will then
be maintained.

Details regarding the location of the assessment should be included
to demonstrate how far the unit is from the nearest door/window
(nearby property), photographs of the unit's location and the nearby
area should be provided to the Authority.

If more than one unit is to be installed, a full noise assessment must
be provided. | attach an information leaflet regarding noise
assessments.

To safeguard the area'’s residents, any building work should be
undertaken between the hours of 08.00 - 18.00 Monday to Friday,
08.00 - 13.00 on Saturday and not at all on Sundays and Bank
Holidays.

Additional Note:

Giving permission and/or any permitted development rights for any
Air Source Heat Pump (ASHP) does not indemnify any measures
that may be required under the Environmental Protection Act 1990
for statutory noise nuisance. Should confirmed noise complaints be
received in the future regarding operating and running an air source

Page 106



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

heat pump and that it is considered to be a statutory nuisance in a
nearby property, a noise prevention notice will be issued. It is likely
that insulation/noise attenuation measures would need to be set such
as an enclosure and/or acoustic barrier to the unit to reduce the noise
emissions to an acceptable level.

To avoid noise complaints, it is recommended that operational noise
from the ASHP should not increase the existing background noise
levels on the boundary of the development site and should be free of
tonal or other obvious acoustic features. In addition, equipment such
as Air Source Heat Pumps that use fans and condensers are likely to
emit more noise as the units suffer from natural ageing, wear and
tear. Therefore, it is important that the equipment is
maintained/serviced satisfactorily and that any defects are rectified
to ensure that the noise levels do not increase over time.

The development must also adhere to the guidance on noise
insulation and ventilation in Approved Document E and F of the
Building Regulations. Noise levels between flats must adhere to the
levels included in these documents.

Biodiversity Unit No objection.

CADW Having carefully considered the information provided, we have no
objection to the proposed development in regard to the scheduled
monuments or registered historic parks and gardens listed in our
assessment of the application below.

The national policy and Cadw’s role in planning are set out an
Annex A.

Assessment

Scheduled Monuments

CNO034 Caernarfon Town Walls
CNO79 Castell Caernarfon

World Heritage Sites:
The Castles and Town Walls of King Edward in Gwynedd -
Caernarfon Castle and Town Walls

The application area is located inside 500m of the above scheduled
monument and is inside the identified essential setting of the
Caernarfon Castle and Town Walls section of The Castles and Town
Walls of King Edward in Gwynedd World Heritage Site.

The major elements of the proposed development are internal to the
existing building except for the proposed flat-roofed two storey rear
extension. This will not be visible from scheduled monument CN079
Castell Caernarfon but will be seen in views from a very small part
of scheduled monument CN034 Caernarfon Town Walls, that
currently cannot be accessed by the public. In these views the
extension will not look incongruous to the area, given similar flat
roofed extensions at the rear of other buildings and will be seen as
part of the existing building. Consequently, the proposed change is

Page 107



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

so slight that any visual change will not have any impact on the way
that the town walls are understood, experienced or appreciated.
Consequently, the proposed development will not have any impact
on the settings of the scheduled monuments or on the outstanding
universal values of the World Heritage Site.

Public Consultation: A notice was posted on the site and nearby residents were notified.
No responses were received.

5. Assessment of the material planning considerations:
The principle of the development

5.1 The site is located within the town's development boundary and therefore the proposal complies
with the objectives of Policy PCYFF 1 in the JLDP.

5.2 The site is within the development boundary of Caernarfon as noted in the Anglesey and Gwynedd
Joint Local Development Plan (JLDP). Caernarfon is identified as an Urban Service Centre under
Policy Tai 1. This policy supports housing developments to meet the Plan's strategy, through
housing designations and suitable windfall sites located within the development boundary, based
upon the indicative provision contained in the Policy.

5.3 The indicative supply level for Caernarfon over the Plan period is 415 units (including a 10%
'slippage allowance', i.e. the method of calculating the figure has taken into account potential
unforeseen circumstances which could influence the provision of housing, e.g. land ownership
matters, infrastructure restrictions, etc). During the period between 2011 and 2025, 271 units were
completed in Caernarfon. The land bank, i.e. sites with extant planning permission, in April 2025,
was 51 units (all on windfall sites). Please note that an indicative figure of 29 units has been
designated for T26 (Behind Maes Gwynedd) that do not have planning permission. Taking into
consideration all the above information collectively, it means there is currently adequate capacity
within the indicative supply for Caernarfon.

5.4 In accordance with Policy TAI 8, consideration should be given to the proposed development and
whether it is able to prove evidence of need and demand for housing recorded in a Market Housing
Assessment and other relevant local sources of evidence. It is realised that it is proposed to adapt
the building to 5 flats to include 3 flats with one double bedroom and 2 flats with two double
bedrooms. Given the building's position, it is considered that the proposal is reasonable.

5.5 Policy TAI 15 of the LDP states that Councils will attempt to ensure an appropriate level of
affordable housing in the plan's area. In Caernarfon, the threshold is two or more housing units. As
the proposal is to provide 5 residential units, Policy TAI 15 is relevant and therefore an affordable
element should be provided with the proposal.

5.6 Caernarfon is within the Larger Coastal Settlements Housing Price Area where it is expected that
30% of the provision will be affordable. Based on 5 residential units this would mean 1.5 affordable
units. In accordance with the guidance in the SPG 'Affordable Housing', when the affordable
housing requirement is calculated, a proportion of the total houses that need to be affordable is
rounded-up to the nearest whole number (where half will be rounded upwards). This means that
two of the proposed units will be expected to be affordable units.

5.7 In accordance with paragraph 4.2.30 of Planning Policy Wales, all the affordable units must meet
the Welsh Government’s development quality standards. In addition, consideration should be gjven
pre Ay Page 108



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

to part 3.4 of the SPG Affordable Housing that highlights considerations in relation to the size of
the affordable unit.

5.8 The proposal provides 1- and 2-bedroom flats. In accordance with the Welsh Government's Quality
Requirements for affordable units, the 1-bed unit would need to be 53m2 in size and the 2-bed unit
would need to be 65m2.

5.9 Additional information submitted as part of the application confirms that the property is in the
ownership of Cyngor Gwynedd, and the proposed use will be part of the Council's statutory
response to the duty to accommodate homeless persons (in accordance with the Housing Act
(Wales) 2014). It is emphasised that the plan's target group are low risk homeless individuals, not
accommodation with complex support or the type of use that would create a high impact on the
community. The units would comply with the Welsh Government standards (WDQR/WHQS) for
affordable units in terms of size and the proposed use would tackle an important social issue
(homelessness) without overloading the local housing provision and would provide affordable units
in accordance with the requirements of the planning policy.

5.10  To this end, and as the proposal would not be provided as social property under the Council's
management within an Urban Service Centre to satisfy the need throughout Gwynedd, the
proposal meets with the requirements within policy TAI 15 subject to an affordable unit condition
to ensure that the proposal prepares affordable units in perpetuity.

5.11  Policy TAI 9 allows sub-division of current buildings to self-service flats as long as the building is
suitable for conversion to the number and type of units without the need for significant extensions
and external adaptations and will not have a detrimental impact on residential amenities showing
that enough parking spaces and a place to store refuse can be provided. If designated parking spaces
cannot be provided, the proposal should not exacerbate existing parking problems in the local area.

5.12  The proposal involves constructing a three-floor rear extension to create an acceptable layout for
the flats. The extension would be at the rear of the building, and it would not create a prominent
feature to the public. A space for litter is situated on the ground floor with direct access to the street
but there is no parking provision. Given the location of the building and the public parking
provision within the town, the proposal is not considered to greatly contravene the aims of the
above policy.

Visual amenities

5.13  Policy PCYFF 3 states that proposals will be approved, including extensions and changes to
existing buildings and structures, if they comply with a number of criteria including that the
proposal adds to or improves the character of the site, the building or the area in terms of setting,
appearance, scale, mass, the height and elevation treatment; that it respects the context of the site
and its place in the local landscape; that it uses materials that are appropriate to their surroundings
and incorporates soft landscaping; that it improves a safe and integrated transport and
communications network; that it limits water run-off and flood risk and prevents pollution; that it
achieves an inclusive design that allows access for all and helps to create healthy and vibrant
environments taking into account the health and well-being of future users.

5.14  The work involves adapting and extending a substantial building into 5 flats. The plans indicate
that there is no change to the front elevation and the side that faces the street. The extension is
located at the rear of the building, and it would not affect the front elevation or the building's char-
acter which is prominent to the public.

Page 109



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

5.15

5.16

It is considered that the proposal retains the building's character and meets with Policy objectives.

The Department consulted CADW due to the location of the building within a World Heritage Site
and their observations were received confirming they had no objection. The proposal is also located
within a Conservation Area, and it is not considered to have an unacceptable impact on this. In
these circumstances, the proposal is not considered to be substantially contrary to policy AT1 or
Policy PCYFF 3 in the LDP.

General and residential amenities

5.17

The application was advertised at the site and nearby residents were notified and no response was
received. The largest external work entails the construction of a three-floor extension on the rear
elevation with new windows (bedrooms) looking over the back yard and the depot. It is proposed
to install an air source heat pump on the building; however, no details of the units were received
with the application. The Public Protection Unit has stated that a condition would need to be
imposed on any permission to ensure that details of the unit and location on the property must be
submitted and agreed by the Local Planning Authority prior to installation. It is not considered that
the proposal would have a substantial detrimental impact on the amenities of nearby residents. The
proposal is not contrary to the objectives of Policy PCYFF 2 in the LDP.

Transport and access matters

5.18

The proposal involves adapting and extending a building into 5 flats and although there is a
vehicular path past the side of the building in the back, there is no parking provision for the
proposal. Despite this, the building is in the town centre where there are on-street parking places
and spaces in public car parks. Although parking provision would be ideal for such a development,
it is considered that no parking space is not a sufficient reason for refusing the application. The
Transportation Unit submitted observations stating that they had no objection to the application. It
is not considered that the proposal is substantially contrary to policies TRA 2 or TRA 4 in the LDP.

Biodiversity matters

5.19

5.20

The plans show the intention to adapt the rooms within the existing building and observations were
received from the Biodiversity Unit stating they had no objection, and the proposal is therefore
considered to comply with the requirements of policy AMG 5 in the LDP. A Green Infrastructure
Statement has been submitted as part of the application and includes the intention to provide
biodiversity enhancements by installing nesting boxes on the building, bat boxes on the western
elevation and one bee pot on the building's southern elevation. It is therefore considered that the
proposal meets the requirements of chapter 6 of Planning Policy Wales relating to green
infrastructure and the step-wise approach.

The application site is located within 55m of the Menai Strait and Conwy Bay Special Area of
Conservation (SAC). Natural Resources Wales have confirmed from the information provided, that
it is possible that the proposal could have an impact on the SAC, and they note pollution as a
possible impact path in terms of the site's characteristics. However, it is not considered that the
above path would lead to a detrimental impact should the developer adhere to the pollution
prevention guidance. To this end, as the competent authority under the Habitat and Species
Protection Regulations 2017 (as amended), it is not considered that the proposal would be likely to
have a detrimental impact on the SAC subject to drawing the applicant's attention to the pollution
prevention guidance. It is therefore considered that the proposal is acceptable in relation to this.

Page 110




PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Language Matters

521

5.22

6.1

Nook~ownhe

In accordance with Diagram 10 of SPG 'Maintaining and Creating Distinctive and Sustainable
Communities' when a statement is not required applicants are encouraged to present a record of
how consideration was given to the Welsh language when drawing up the planning application.
The method of recording the information needs to be tailored to the nature of the proposed
development and the matters that require attention. The methods could include a letter
accompanying the planning application, a Planning Statement, a Design and Access Statement or
a Welsh Language Statement or a Report on the Welsh Language Impact Assessment. Part D of
Appendix 5 of the 'SPG Maintaining and Creating Distinctive and Sustainable Communities' (July
2019) outlines the Welsh language matters that should be considered with a development of this
scale.

A Language Statement was submitted to support the proposal, and states that there is a neutral to
positive impact on the Welsh language and includes proposals that include the use of place-names
with a link to the area, provision of bilingual adverts, together with promoting and learning the
Welsh language. To this end it is considered that the proposal is acceptable and complies with the
requirements of Policy PS1.

Conclusions:

Having considered all relevant matters to the application, it is considered that the proposal can be
supported subject to the following conditions:

Recommendation: To approve

Five years.

In accordance with plans.

Agree details of the air source heat pump units
C3 use only

Affordable housing condition

Biodiversity Enhancements.

Working Hours

Biodiversity Note

Natural Resources Wales Letter Note

Page 111




21T abed

Cynllunio

i ok

1

Menai House Job
Holyhead Road HEN GWESTY MONA, CAERNARFON
o Llanfairpwll
Anglesey Client
LL61 5U) CYNGOR GWYNEDD
ARCHITECTURE
Drawing
e ey e T (01248) 715008 Location Plan
e Fom St
[ cagea
e www.dewis. uk.com Drwg.No. Rev. Scale Drawn by
i Lk eom 1072-DEW-XX-XX-DR-A-001 2 1:1250 Lw
At cimansont s b ctcked o vertid om e batons commancig | PIOt Date Size Issue Status Approved by
‘work or producing shop drawings. The originater should be notified 14’110/24 A4 PLANNING DH

immediately of any dizepa
1. This drawing is copyrigh

2. Only figured dimensions are fo be worked
nd ramains the property of DEWS




Cynllunio

Derbyn - 09/06/2025

Existing North Elevation
1:50

P L e |

ing East Elevation

Praject

Rev | Description | Date | lssuedby
it Menal House
% Holyhesd Rosd
. m§ Lianfairpwll
Anglesey
st suy
ARCHITECTURE piagsmisees
[E T ——
| e avta i com
Sartredig Adeiladu ‘Chanered Suliding Surveyors
Penasiri Siartredig Chartered Architects
hwyr Prosiect Project Managers

| Tachmoleguyr Pansasrnio Siarediy  Ch

artared Architactura Tachnologists
¥gynghoreyr Adeiladis Hamesyddsl Historic Building Consultants

Chient

CYNGOR GWYNEDD

HEMN WESTY MONA, CAERNARFON

Drawing

EXISTING ELEVATIONS (2 of 4)

" D1072.2 - DEW - XX - XX - DR - A - 003
ORIGIN o1sc. ‘ZME | Lever | TYPE
DEW A XK XX DR
| e P e
003 1:50 EH
prm— PR [ R [—

15/04/25 Al Tender DRH

an

any work ar producing shop drawings.
Tho originator clvausid e ROtied IMmediately of any discrepancies.
figured dimensions are to be worked to.

This drawing is copyright and remains the property of BEWIS architecture.




"~

Existing West Elevation
1:50

Existing South Elevation
1:50

Cynllunio

Derbyn - 09/06/2025

Rev | Deswipion [ Dale [ lssvedby |
rmns Houes
F i | [tk
& | e
T i
wersu
ARCHITECTURE s Tistes
Info dewis. ukt.cam |
www dewis.uk.com
I
Syrfewyr Siartredvg Adelisdu Charternd Bullding Surveyars
renca Srred Cvariered AreRISCS.
Vﬂmaun | Architectural €
b e B NS ol e
I nghorwyr Adefladat Hanesyddal Historic Buiiding Comsaul
Oieet
CYNGOR GWYNEDD

HEN WESTY MONA, CAERNARFON

Draming

EXISTING ELEVATIONS [4 of 4)

"t D1072.2 - DEW - XX- XX - DR - A - 004
| amiain Bise. ZONE LEVEL TYPE
DEW | A xx XX DR
P PO e o
‘ 004 1:50 EH
p— P P p——
15/04125 l Al Tender DRH

| This drawing muet Be rend in sonjunction with all relted dravings.
Al dimensians must

o checked and vorified o sita befare commencing
‘any work or producing shop drawings.
oy

iy Figured dimensions are to be

ol workad to.
‘This dravweing is capysight and remaing the property of DEWLS architecture,

VTT abed



Cynllunio

Derbyn - 09/06/2025

%j.i; SCALE 1.100 @ A1

Existing Ground Floor

ARCHITECTURE B
Infopdewis, uk cam
T
g ity ol e o
Rheobwys Prosiect Project Managess

Consukants
Techaglegwyr Pensacimicl Siartredis  Chartered Architectural Technologists
Histaric

CYNGOR GWYNEDD

Project

HEN WESTY MONA, CAERNARFON

Brawing

EXISTING FLOOR PLANS

D1072.2 - DEW - XX - XX -DR - A - 002

oriGN psc.

| ZONE LEVEL TYPE

DEW A ‘ b s i DR
Drwg. Mo Rev. scate Draws by

002 PO1 1;100 EH

Plot Date Size Tasuc Status Approved by

15/04/25 | AL Tender DRH

TS Arawing must Be FaE In COMURETIAN WIth 3l FEEated drIWINGs.
st e
A7) siork or peatach w0y frwinge.

nly Tigured dimensions are to he worked to.
This drawing 5 copyriht ard remalns the progerty of BEWIS a rchitecture,



91T abed

om 2m Am
TR —
VISUAL SCALE 1,100 @ At

Praposed Narth Elevation 1
11100

Proposed South Elevation 1
1100

B 8m om
J— 1

Proposed 3D View

il

N

Proposed East Elevation 1
1:100

Proposed West Elevation 1
11100

L

m—

|Cyn|lunio|

Derbyn - 08062035

P04 | Rearextension added | 19/11/24 |
_Clanl lsous: 1124
POz | _Amendments 0izd
PO4 Preliminary sketch 1024
Rev Description Date | issued by

Y -

01345 715006

infag uwis, ukcom

wwdewis,uk com

Syctewyr Siactradio Adwilads Charterad Builling Survayors
Pansiin Sianrediy Charterad Architadts
Rheobwyr Prosiect Project Managers
| Ymaymgharyr Pensserniot Architecharal Cansultants
{Fectncingwyr Penanrriol Sirtradly CRarares Architestural Tecnalosists
gy mioraryr Adcindau Hanesyddsl | Aistoric Buiding Contuitants
Cllent
CYNGOR GWYNEDD
Progect

HEN GWESTY MONA, CAERNARFON

orawing

PROPQSED ELEVATIONS

" 310722 - DEW - XX - XX - DR - A - 006
FUTTIEN POTS P P
DEW A ® | xx DR
Drug, Na. | e | Drimwn by

008 PO4 1:100 EH

povey wm |owasa [Apeaant
21/10/24 | Al Tender DRH

[ This drawing with anl

and
any work of producing shep drawings.

oniy figures 1 are o e worked to.
This drawing is copyright and remains the property of DEWIS architecture.




/TT abed

Cynllunio

Derbyn - 09/06/2025

VISUAL SCALE 1:100 @ A1

Proposed Second Floor
1:100

Proposed First Floor
1:100

Proposed Ground Floor
1:100

Flat 1

Flat2

Flat3

Flat 4

Flat 5

PG4 | Rearextonsion added | 1911724 | LW
DH

PO3 Clent [ssue 11724
Po2 10724
o1 | Prelminary sketch | 1024 | OH
Rev Description Date | Issued by

w“z% el House
gw S| oiymesd woad

dewis~ =

ARCHITECTURE orasmisos

Syrbewyr Siaetrediy Adeiladu Ehastered Building Survevors.
Punmsirt Sirirediy Chartared Architacts
Rheoivyr Prosiect. Project Managers.

Technolegwyr Fensaerniol Siartredg _Chartered Architectural Technpiogists
Hanespddol Consultants

Clime

CYNGOR GWYNEDD

Project

HEN GWESTY MONA, CAERNARFON

PROPQSED FLOOR PLANS

File W

D10722 - DEW - XX - XX - DR - A- 005

oRIGN | DIsc. 2ome LeveL Tvee
DEW ‘ A XX AX DR
Drwg. Ma, e Scale Draen by
005 P04 | Asindicated EH
Plot Date. size Tssue Status Approved by
28/10/24 | A1 Tender CRH
Tis drawing

site
‘any work ar producing shop deawings.

ot
“onay figured cmansions a7e to ba workes to.
gty










Page 120



Agenda Item 5.6

PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Number: 6
Application C25/0462/02/LL
Number:

Date Registered: 23/06/25

Application Full

Type:

Community: Corris

Ward: Corris / Mawddwy

Proposal: Farm diversification scheme for the siting of 4 mobile

holiday accommodation units on the land together with one
portable unit as a facility for showers and toilets.

Location:
Land Next to Pandy, Corris, SY20 9RJ

Summary of the
Recommendation: To aApPROVE WITH CONDITIONS.

Page 121



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

11

1.2

1.3

14

1.5

1.6

2.1

2.2

Description:

As background, a previous application was refused by the Committee on 19/05/2025 at this site,
planning reference number (C24/0072/02/LL) for the change of use of land and develop a new
holiday accommodation in the form of 5 permanent glamping pods and associated parking,
alterations to the access, drainage and landscaping.

This application is for the change of use of land and to develop new holiday accommodation in
the form of 4 portable holiday units together with 1 portable unit for a shower and toilets facility,
associated parking, alterations to the access, drainage and landscaping. This proposal has also
been submitted as a diversification project on a 120-hectare livestock family farm.

The units would have flat green roofs (plants) with external walls of stained timber cladding and
aluminium frames/doors. Each of the units would sleep 2 people and include a bedroom and
living room and a small open plan Kitchen. The toilets unit will be of the same design as the
holiday units but will include 4 individual bathrooms that will comprise a toilet and shower. The
units will be portable as they have been installed on an axle with two wheels, this will allow them
to be moved from the site and stored out of season.

The following documents have been submitted as part of the application:

Preliminary Ecological Assessment

Green Infrastructure Statement

Trees Survey

Reptile Survey

A planning statement that includes a letter from the applicant explaining the proposal's back-
ground.

Planning statement - re-submitted

Information to support the alterations to the access.
Speed survey

Pollution Prevention Plan

Details of treatment tank and porosity tests

Welsh Language Statement

Management Plan

Storage Plan

Letter / Report by George + Tomos Architects

The site is situated in the countryside and within the Special Landscape Area. To the south of the
site is afon Dulas and to the north is a class 3 road that leads from Corris to Aberllenni. A
residential property abuts the site towards the south-western end and there is an external building
that is not in the applicant's ownership to the east of the existing access. The site's topography
slopes down from the road towards the river. The proposed holiday units would be located on the
slope above the river. The application site is located abutting Fluvial Flooding Zone 2.

The application is submitted to the Planning Committee as the application site is greater than 0.5
hectare.

Relevant Policies:

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and paragraph 2.1.2 of
Planning Policy Wales emphasise that planning decisions should be in accordance with the
Development Plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Planning considerations
include National Planning Policy and the Local Development Plan.

The Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015 places a duty on the Council to take
reasonable steps in exercising its functions to meet the 7 well-being goals within the Act. This
report has been prepared in consideration of the Council’s duty and the 'sustainable development

Page 122



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

2.3

2.4

principle’, as set out in the 2015 Act. In reaching the recommendation, the Council has sought to
ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of future
generations to meet their own needs.

Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint Local Development Plan 2011-2026, adopted 31 July 2017
PS 1: The Welsh Language and Culture

PS 4: Sustainable transport, development and accessibility

TRA 2: Parking standards

TRA 4: Managing transport impacts

PS 5: Sustainable Development

PS 6: Alleviating and Adapting to the Effects of Climate Change

PCYFF 1: Development boundaries

PCYFF 2: Development criteria

PCYFF 3: Design and place shaping

PCYFF 4: Design and landscaping

PS 14: The Visitor Economy

TWR 5: Touring caravan sites, camping sites and temporary alternative camping accommodation
PS 19: Conserve and where appropriate enhance the natural environment

AMG 2: Special landscape areas

AMG 5: Local biodiversity conservation

PS 20: Preserving and where appropriate enhancing heritage assets

AT 4: Protection of non-designated archaeological sites and their setting

Supplementary Planning Guidance: Tourist Facilities and Accommodation (March 2021)

Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG): Maintaining and Creating Distinctive and Sustainable
Communities

National Policies:

Future Wales: The National Plan 2040

Planning Policy Wales (Edition 12 - February 2024)

Technical Advice Note: 5 Planning and Nature Conservation (2009)
Technical Advice Note: 12 Design: June (2016)

Technical Advice Note 15: Development, Flooding and Coastal Erosion

Technical Advice Note: 18 Transport: March (2007)

Page 123



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

3. Relevant Planning History:

3.1 C24/0072/02/LL - Farm diversification plan for the siting of 5 holiday accommodation units on
the land - Refused - 19/05/2025.

4. Consultations:
Corris Community Council At a meeting of the Community Council on 3rd July, the above
application was discussed.
The Councillors unanimously agreed to support the application
based on the following points:

e The need of smaller holiday accommodation units to ac-
commodate visitors to the area, which could free up prop-
erties in the village which could be available for long-term
letting or purchase

e The development is non-permanent and would therefore
have an extremely low impact on the environment

e There is already existing access to the site so very little
landscaping would be needed

e The guests are close enough to the village to be able to use
the facilities such as shop and pub/restaurant, so a benefit
to the local economy. There is also access to the village
via an existing footpath which alleviates the need to walk
along the main road.

e The development is a low impact farm diversification
scheme that would enable a younger generation to stay on
the farm

Transportation Unit: Not received.
Welsh Water: We refer to your planning consultation relating to the above site,

and we can provide the following comments in respect to the
proposed development.

ASSET PROTECTION

The proposed development is crossed by a trunk/distribution
watermain, the approximate position being shown on the attached
plan. Dwr Cymru Welsh Water as Statutory Undertaker has
statutory powers to access our apparatus at all times. We enclose
our Conditions for Development near Watermain(s). It may be
possible for this watermain to be diverted under Section 185 of the
Water Industry Act 1991, the cost of which will be re-charged to
the developer. The developer must consult Dwr Cymru Welsh
Water before any development commences on site.

SEWERAGE

Since the proposal intends utilising an alternative to mains drainage
we would advise that the applicant seek advice from Natural
Resources Wales and or the Local Authority Building control
Department / Approved Building Inspector as both are responsible
to regulate alternative methods of drainage.

However, should circumstances change and a connection to the
public sewerage system/public sewerage treatment works is
preferred we must be re-consulted on this application.

We would request that if you are minded to grant Planning Consent
for the above development that the Advisory Notes provided below

Page 124



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

are included within the consent to ensure no detriment to existing
residents or the environment and to Dwr Cymru/Welsh Water's
assets.

Biodiversity Unit: Confirm that the ecological surveys have been undertaken to a
good standard.

Concerns regarding groundworks and that the soil could move into
the river at times of heavy rain. Concern that the proposed plan is
not correct - including the roads/tracks that do not appear on the
maps/aerial photographs.

Concerns about the content of the pollution prevention plan.
Propose further biodiversity enhancements:

Improve the hedge

Management of grassland

Tree planting

Create level habitats for otters and reptiles who hibernate
over winter.

Suggest removing the hedge along the side of the road outside the
dormouse's hibernation period (November to the end of April).
Suggest that the hedge is relocated.

To conclude, there is no objection, but | have concerns regarding
soil slipping during the construction work and | suggest the
following conditions:

e Recommend following the Reasonable Avoidance
Measures included in the Reptiles Survey.

e The hedges should not be removed during the hibernation
period of dormice (November to the end of April).

e Prior to the commencement of any work a detailed Pollu-
tion Prevention Plan must be submitted, that includes
measures to avoid soil run-off during the construction
work.

e Prior to the commencement of any construction works an
external lighting scheme with the details shall be submit-
ted.

e All the recommendations of the Ecological Report
(Wyndrush 2023) shall be followed.

e Prior to the commencement of any construction works and
scheme for the relocation of hedges and ‘crawiau' (slate
fence) must be provided.

Public Protection Service — Not received.

Environmental Health

Licensing Enforcement The development will be subject to the Legislation stated below
Officer relating to Health and Safety, Fire Safety and Public Health

provision as follows:

The Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974

The Caravan Sites and Control of Development Act 1960
Model Standards 1989 - Static Caravans

Page 125



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

The development must fully comply with licence conditions.
Application for a Site Licence following planning application
approval

We wish that this information is reported on the planning
permission if the application is approved:

'Following any planning application permitted in relation to a
caravan or camping site under the 1960 and 1936 Acts, the
applicant would be required to make an application for a site
licence and present a 1:500 scale detailed plan of the site to the
Licensing Service. To discuss further, you can contact the
Licensing Enforcement Officer, Pollution Control and Licensing
Service, Cyngor Gwynedd on 01766 771000 or
trwyddedu@gwynedd.llyw.cymru

Boundary - Hedges

The location of the proposed caravan indicates that it would be
located close to a hedge. This siting is in breach of a licensing
condition and creates a fire spreading risk. Licensing conditions
recommend a width of 3 metres from any boundary / hedge.
Roads within the site

A road of suitable material should be provided so that no caravan
pitch is more than 50 metres from any road.

Emergency vehicles

Emergency vehicle routes within the site should be kept clear of
obstruction at all times.

Watercourses - Model Standards 1989 - Condition 20.5 / Model
Standards 1983 - Condition 13.4

Watercourses are in close proximity to the proposed caravan site.
On sites prone to flooding, warning notices should be displayed
giving guidance on the flood warning system.

North Wales Fire and Rescue Service

We trust that a consultation will be held with the North Wales Fire
and Rescue Service on matters outside licensing conditions (1983
Model Standards).

Land Drainage Unit Initial SuDS Approval Body Comments
We are satisfied that all relevant details regarding the site location
and existing drainage arrangements have been provided.

Overall, we find the submitted Drainage Statement satisfactory.
However, additional details will be necessary at the full SuDS
application stage to ensure complete compliance with the guidance.
These additional details will not require any amendments to the
current planning application and include:

* Infiltration Testing Requirements

Infiltration tests must be carried out in accordance with BRE Digest
365. This involves excavating a trial pit to the proposed depth of
the soakaway and filling it with a volume of water representative
of the final design. Based on the detail drawing that has been
provided, the soakaway relies on the stone fill below the swale
feature. This would mean that the depth that testing is conducted
should be at 1.8m. 3 tests should be carried out, in quick
succession, in each trial pit. The slowest rate of the three tests
should be used to calculate soakaway storage. The report should
include timestamps for each infiltration test, a location plan
showing the position of all trial pits and photographic evidence of

the trial pits.
Page 126



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

* Groundwater Assessment

Provide clear evidence of groundwater conditions to confirm that
adequate clearance can be maintained between the base of the
soakaway and the groundwater table.

* Soakaway Design

Include detailed calculations to justify the proposed soakaway size,
based on the infiltration test results and site-specific conditions.

In summary, we consider the drainage proposal acceptable at this
stage, subject to a full assessment as part of the SAB application
process and performance is currently acceptable.

Natural Resources Wales Thank you for consulting with Natural Resources Wales (NRW)
about the above, which we received on 24 June 2025.

We have no objection to the proposed development as submitted
and provide the following advice.

Flood Risk

This application is a resubmission which we previously gave you
our observations, where we had not raised any objection regarding
flooding risk, as the revised plans had been accepted.

The submitted drawing number PL-01 demonstrates the flood
extent and the location of the red line boundary. From our flood
maps it appears that the red line boundary runs adjoining the extent
of the flood zone 2 boundary as shown under the Flood Map for
Planning. The same drawing also demonstrates a buffer zone of
15m away from the watercourse, along with drawing PL-03 it is
evident that the cabins have been raised above flood levels.
Nationalised mapping such as the FRAW and FMfP are not
generally suitable for determining site specific flood risk and there
will be significant uncertainties associated with using this method.
However, in the absence of more appropriate readily available data
it is not considered proportionate, on this occasion, to request a full
Flood Consequence Assessment for this application.

Given the nature of the proposed development (and in the absence
of a flood consequences assessment) we consider the proposals
could be acceptable, subject to the developer being made aware of
the potential flood risks and consequences. We would also expect
the developer to take the opportunity to incorporate flood resilient
design where feasible.

Guidance on resilient design can be found in Chapter 13 of
Technical Advice Note 15: Development, flooding and coastal
erosion, dated 2025, which references advice from Construction
Industry Research and Information Association, including a Code
of Practice and Guidance for Property Flood Resilience.

We provide advice on our website Natural Resources Wales /
Preparing for a flood which may be useful for the developer or
occupant of the proposal.

Foul Drainage
We advise that no part of the soakaway should be within 10 metres

Page 127



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

of any watercourse.

If a private drainage solution is to be progressed, the Applicant will
need to apply for an Environmental Permit from us. It is important
to note that a grant of planning permission does not guarantee that
a permit will be granted, should a proposal be deemed to be
unacceptable (either because of environmental risk or because
upon further investigation, a connection to mains sewer was
feasible). The Applicant is therefore advised to hold pre-
application discussions with our Permitting Team on 0300 065
3000, at the earliest opportunity, to try to ensure that there is no
conflict between any planning permission granted and the permit
requirements.

Protected Species

We note that the information submitted in support of the above
application (Preliminary Ecological Assessment for a proposed
development on land at Pandy Fields Corris Gwynedd. Wyndruch
Wild 01/11/2023) found no evidence of protected species present
at the application site. However, we note that the report
recommends that lighting associated with the scheme should be
directed away from the hedges, to ensure a dark corridor is
maintained for the benefit of any roosting or commuting bats. We
have no comments to make on the application as submitted, and
advise that you liaise with your own Authority's ecological advisor
regarding lighting or any other avoidance measures required.

Archaeological Service: Thank you for consulting us on the below application. There are no
archaeological implications regarding this proposal

Fire Service With reference to your consultation dated 23/06/2025, attached is
our inspection report
The report refers to access for fire appliances.
If you should require any further information, please do not hesitate
to contact the Compliance Officer.

ACCESS FOR FIRE APPLIANCE

1. There should be a minimum width of road between kerbs of
3.7m.

2. The minimum width of gateways should be 3.1m.

3. The minimum carrying capacity of the roadway should be 12.5
tonnes for normal rescue pumps.

4. Fire and Rescue service vehicles should not have to reverse more
than 20m from the end of an access road.

Public Consultation: A notice was posted on the site and nearby residents were notified.
The advertisement period has expired, and correspondence was
received objecting on the following grounds:

e Impact on the visual amenities of nearby residents

e Compromising the privacy and detached property of nearby
residents.

e Overlooking by visitors into nearby property from a previous
railway track.

e Increase in traffic and movement

Page 128



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

e Incorrect aspirations regarding the current public footpath i.e.
that additional pedestrians will not make any difference to the
current situation.

¢ Misunderstanding of Committee Members in the application
previously refused regarding the location of the public foot-
paths.

e Lack of consultation by the applicant with neighbours.

The documents of the previous application were submitted
with the current application but had not been updated.

e The plans for the new access are not clear.

e Itis not clear from the proposed plan where visitors will gain
access to, specifically whether they will be able to walk up to
the nearest neighbour's boundary?

e It is not clear whether visitors will be able to gain access to
the riverside.

e Serious concerns regarding the sewerage system's drainage.

e Concern that the development will exacerbate the current sit-
uation of surface water run-off that will create flooding in the
garden and access road of a nearby property.

¢ Inconsistency in the application documents regarding the dis-
tance between the units and the nearest residential dwelling -
the documents do not agree with the plans in terms of the lo-
cation of the units.

e Concern that the applicant cannot control noise and disruption
levels for nearby neighbours late at night or in the early hours
of the morning when they do not live on the site.

e Concern regarding the noise of visitors arriving and leaving,
noise of visitors on the site and music noise from the site.

e Visitors on holiday behave differently, do not keep regular
hours and this may cause disruption to nearby residents.

e Concernregarding large groups of people booking the site for
parties.

e Additional visitors sleeping in vans at the site.

Impact on safety as a result of people unfamiliar with the area
walking around the boundaries of nearby residents night and
day this would be alarming and cause concern to nearby resi-
dents.

e The impact of car lights arriving and leaving, lighting on the
site affecting wildlife and nearby residents.

e Recognition that there is some support to the revised pro-
posal, but the supporters are not directly impacted by the de-
velopment.

e The current landscaping shown on plan PL-01 above the
Pandy boundary is incorrect - there is nothing there.

e The development is not actually a family farm diversification
project as the site is not a development within one ownership
- this is a separate business venture.

e Landscaping around the nearby Pandy property is deciduous
and therefore very little screening would be between the site
and the property from the end of September to mid-May.

Page 129



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

5.1

52

53

54

5.5

Assessment of the material planning considerations:

The application site is in an area that is defined as open countryside and is within a Special Land-
scape Area in the LDP. Policy PCYFF1 of the LDP states that proposals located outside develop-
ment boundaries will be refused unless they are in accordance with specific policies in the LDP or
national planning policies or that the proposal demonstrates that its location in the countryside is
essential.

Reference should be made to Policy TWRS of the Plan when considering this proposal. The pol-
icy notes that it is possible to consider approving applications for new temporary alternative
camping accommodation sites, provided the proposal complies with the criteria as noted in the
policy. Those criteria are as follows: -

That the proposed development is of high quality in terms of design, layout and appearance, and
is sited in an unobtrusive location which is well screened by existing landscape features and/or
where touring units can be readily assimilated into the landscape in a way which does not signifi-
cantly harm the visual quality of the landscape.

The layout of the site as well as appropriate screening are important considerations when consid-
ering this application in the context of Policy TWR 5. Paragraph 6.3.82 of policy TWRS notes
that location, landscaping, site layout, and screening are important considerations in assessing
proposals and state in each case that the applicant will need to submit a landscaping plan with the
application.

The proposal entails the change of use of land and to develop new holiday accommodation in the
form of 4 portable holiday units together with 1 portable unit for a shower and toilets facility, as-
sociated parking, alterations to the access, drainage and landscaping. The application site cur-
rently forms part of an agricultural field. A track goes through the middle of this field and the hol-
iday units would be located on the lower side (to the south) of this track. This land is on a slope
that goes down towards the river. It is proposed to position the holiday units here and there on this
slope between the river and the track. Currently, on the outskirts and within the site are trees and
hedges. Parking spaces would be cut into the northern side of the track and it is proposed to un-
dertake planting around these parking spaces. As part of the proposal, it is also required to make
modifications to the access which involve removing part of the hedge along the road and setting it
back 1 metre. Given the nature of the proposed holiday units, with a green roof of plants and tim-
ber-clad exterior walls, and their location amongst existing trees / hedges and a field, and where
the slope of the land goes lower towards the river, it is considered that the proposal is of a type
that could assimilate into the landscape and would not stand out clearly from nearby viewpoints.
It is likely that the proposal would be seen from higher grounds further afield from the site but
given the above it is not considered that it would stand out prominently in the landscape. Given
the above, it is not believed that this proposal would be an intrusive development in the land-
scape.

Avoids too many hard standing areas.

The proposal would mean installing 4 units on the site measuring approximately 0.56 hectares
and more than 10 metres between each unit. Therefore, it is noted that low density is intended for
the site. It is proposed to create permeable hard standing areas opposite the holiday units and the
4 new parking spaces that will also be permeable hard standing sites. The site would use a perma-
nently grassed surface apart from the permeable hard standing areas noted above. The hard stand-
ing area will be limited to the existing access that will be widened, the access road and current
track that goes through the site. Therefore, it is considered that the proposal manages to avoid too
many hard standing areas.

Its physical connection with the ground is limited and can be moved from the site during the
closed season.

Page 130




PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

5.6

5.7

5.8

59

5.10

The applicant states that the units have been limited in size compared to the previous application
so that it is easier to move them, and it is also possible to store them. The holiday accommoda-
tion units are portable units as well as the toilets and showers unit. The plans show the units on
axles and wheels and a Storage Plan was submitted with the application that confirms the storage
arrangements off the site for the units out of season. It is noted that the storage area is situated on
separate land outside the application site and possibly needs separate planning permission. The
units would be mobile and, therefore, any physical contact with the ground would be minimal.

Any associated facilities, if possible, should be in an existing building or as an extension to exist-
ing facilities. If there are no suitable buildings available, the need for additional facilities must be
shown clearly, and they must be commensurate to the scale of the development.

According to the application the only associated facilities will be the mobile toilets and showers
unit. The size of the units have been reduced so that it is easier to move them and store and there-
fore space within the units is limited and there is no toilet or bathroom within them. It is deemed
that this need for one portable unit for showers and toilets has been established. It is believed that
adding the showers and toilets unit to the holiday units would be commensurate with the scale of
the development, considering its location and setting within the landscape.

That the site is close to the main roads network and that adequate access can be provided without
significantly harming the landscape characteristics and features.

The current access to the site is from a third-class road, situated to the north of the site. However,
the current visibility from the access is inadequate and therefore there is an intention as part of the
application to make alterations to the access which would involve moving it further west by re-
moving part of the hedge and setting it back 1 metre from the visibility splay. It is therefore
deemed that the site is close to the main roads network and following the proposed alterations in-
cluding re-planting the hedge can provide adequate access can be provided without significantly
harming the landscape characteristics and features.

The development's occupancy is restricted to holiday use only.

The proposal involves siting portable holiday units and the units would be removed from the site
to storage outside the holiday season in accordance with the Storage Plan submitted with the ap-
plication. Conditions can be imposed to ensure that the development's occupancy is restricted to
holiday use only.

That the site is used for touring purposes only and that any units are removed from the site during
periods when not in use.

As noted above the applicant's intention is to move the units out of the holiday season for storage
on another site close to the family farm when they are not in use. A condition can be imposed on
any permission so that the units are removed from the site outside the operational period.

In light of the above assessment, it is believed that the proposal is acceptable on the grounds of
location, setting, scale and its impact on visual amenities in the local area and to this end, it is be-
lieved that the proposal is acceptable, subject to imposing appropriate conditions, and complies
with all the requirements of Policy TWR 5 of the LDP.

Page 131




PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Visual Amenities

5.11

5.12

5.13

5.14

Policy AMG3: 'Protecting and improving Features and Qualities which are unique to the Charac-
ter of the Local Landscape' states that proposals must demonstrate that they do not have a signifi-
cant adverse impact upon features and qualities that are unique to the local landscape in terms of
visual, historic, geological, ecological and cultural aspects.

As has already been noted above, the application site forms part of an agricultural field. A track
goes through the middle of this field and the holiday units would be located on the lower side (to
the south) of this track. This land is on a quite steep slope that goes down towards the river. It is
proposed to position the holiday units here and there on this slope between the river and the track.
Existing trees and hedges are on the peripheries and within the site and it is proposed to undertake
further planting as part of the application on the peripheries and within the site. Parking spaces
would be cut into the northern side of the track, and it is proposed to undertake planting around
these parking spaces. As part of the proposal, it is also required to make modifications to the ac-
cess which involve removing part of the hedge along the road and setting it back 1 metre. Given
the nature of the proposed holiday units, with a green roof of plants and timber-clad exterior
walls, and their location amongst existing trees / hedges and a field, and where the slope of the
land goes lower towards the river, it is considered that the proposal is of a type that could assimi-
late into the landscape and would not stand out clearly from nearby viewpoints. It is likely that
the proposal would be seen from higher grounds further afield from the site but given the above
and that the site will only be used seasonally, it is not considered that it would stand out promi-
nently in the landscape and as the new trees and hedges mature, any visual impact would also be
reduced. Given the above, it is deemed that the development will not have a significant impact
upon features and qualities which are unique to the local landscape in terms of visual, historic,
geological, ecological and cultural aspects and is therefore acceptable in terms of policy AMG 3
and PCYFF 3.

Policy CYFF 4: 'Design and Landscaping', states that all proposals should integrate into their sur-
roundings. Proposals that have not given consideration to landscaping matters from the outset as
part of the design proposal should be refused.

The plans and documents submitted with the application show an intention to reinforce the
growth of existing trees and hedges found mainly around the peripheries of the site. An intention
to plant extensively within the site is also shown with trees and hedges and by creating a meadow
of wildflowers. The type of trees and hedges proposed include hazel, holly, alder, elder, rowan,
juniper, apple, cherry and pear trees along with hawthorn, dog rose and spindle. It is considered
that the type of trees/hedges proposed is suitable. The plans do not include a detailed landscaping
plan in terms of the maturity of the trees / hedges to be planted, distances between plantings etc.
but a condition could be imposed for the submission of a detailed landscaping plan if the applica-
tion is granted. This siting is in breach of a licensing condition and creates a fire spreading risk.
Licensing conditions recommend a width of 3 metres from any boundary / hedge and therefore it
will be necessary to ensure that any revised landscape plan considers this. It is considered that
the information submitted is sufficient to demonstrate that the proposal could be integrated with
its surroundings and therefore that the proposal is acceptable in terms of Policy PCYFF 4 of the
LDP.

General and residential amenities

5.15

Generally, policy PCYFF 2 of the LDP permits proposals for new developments as long as they
have no unacceptable adverse impact on the health, safety or amenities of occupiers of local prop-
erties, due to increased activity, disturbance, vibration, noise, dust, fumes, litter, drainage, light
pollution or other forms of pollution or nuisance.

Page 132



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

5.16

5.17

5.18

5.19

5.20

5.21

5.22

5.23

The nearest dwelling house, Pandy, is located at the bottom of the track which would be used by
users of the proposed holiday units, and it therefore abuts the southern boundary of the applica-
tion site. Currently, this dwelling house is surrounded by agricultural fields and the river and is in
a relatively private and quiet location and where there is little activity and disturbance for the oc-
cupants of the property.

The proposal would involve creating an alternative camping site on a section of the field adjacent
to the Pandy property. It is realised that a relatively small development is in question here, namely
4 holiday units which would sleep a total of 8 people. However, it is recognised there is potential
here, due to the location of the proposed development in relation to the Pandy property, for the
proposal to have an adverse impact on the amenities of neighbouring properties.

Observations received from objectors are recognised and have been detailed and summarised
above regarding the impact of the development on the residential amenities of the residents of
Pandy, there are concerns regarding compromising the privacy and detached characteristics of
this property, concern regarding overlooking into the property from the formerrailway track that
is proposed to be used as a footpath from the site to Corris, increase in traffic and movement,
noise and the impact of lighting on the residential amenities of the residents of Pandy.

The application in question offers several amendments to the previous application that was re-
fused to try and deal with the issues raised involving the impact of the development on the ameni-
ties of the occupiers of neighbouring Pandy. In this application, the units have been moved fur-
ther to the east away from the Pandy dwelling, according to the additional information and the
plans submitted with the application the toilets and showers unit is situated approximately 81 me-
tres away from the Pandy dwelling and the nearest holiday unit to Pandy is approximately 100
metres away. It is noted that a comment had been received that there was inconsistency in the
distances between the units and the nearest - the documents do not agree with the plans in terms
of the location of the units. This was as a result to the revisions to the previous application which
means that the plans within some previous documents have not been updated to correspond, alt-
hough the rest of the contents of the documents continue to be relevant. To this end, it is assured
that it is the latest plans that receive attention here and will be the subject of any planning permis-
sion.

The applicant provides photographs taken from 3 different locations of the development site,
from different distances to show that Pandy is not visible due to the current trees, hedges and veg-
etation. As part of the development, it is also intended to implement a significant planting
scheme to further help the screening and create a green zone to mitigate noise and lighting.

It is noted that public footpath number 8 Corris is situated approximately 55 metres away from
Pandy and therefore there is an element of privacy that has already been compromised. The pre-
vious railway track that runs parallel to the Pandy northern boundary is not an official public foot-
path but the intention is that visitors will use this current path which is in the applicant's owner-
ship as a path to link with public footpath number 8 Corris so that they can reach the village on
foot in a safe way. The path is situated approximately 40 metres away from Pandy and therefore
it is considered that this would not cause a significantly detrimental impact because of overlook-
ing from this distance.

This application is for mobile holiday units rather than permanent units as proposed in the previ-
ous application. The units will be removed and stored out of season off the site and therefore the
site will only be in use during periods of the year. A planning condition will ensure that the site
use is restricted to a period between 1 March to 31 October, in the same year in line with the
guidance provided in Paragraph 6.3.87 of policy TWR 5 of the LDP.

A Management Plan was submitted as part of the application, and according to the plan the four
units will be managed by the applicant and her family, who also run the family farm. The site
will be visited daily, and the family will pass through the site several times a day as part of the

Page 133



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

farming operations further up the valley. The family live in Corris and are always available to
deal with any issues on the site 24/7. All bookings would be arranged in advance with directions
regarding how to reach the site and for parking. Arrival time will be restricted to reduce any dis-
turbance and quiet periods will be enforced and there will be information and signage on the site
to emphasise this to the guests. It will also be possible to control activity on the site by imposing
a condition to agree on the further details of the Management Plan prior to site operation.

5.24  Anew alternative camping site in this location would have the potential to cause an unacceptable
detrimental impact on Pandy due to increased activity, noise and disturbance by visitors. The na-
ture of holiday use involves different movements to permanent residential units, with visitors
more likely to keep different hours than permanent neighbouring residents, with early morning
and late-night activity, as well as use during daytime hours. These differences could cause a dis-
turbance due to the nature of holiday use, time of movements and noise, etc. However, because
of the changes outlined above and submitted with the application including the substantial plant-
ing and landscaping plan to create a screen and green zone to mitigate noise and lighting, the
Management Plan to control activity on the site and as the site use will be seasonal it is not
deemed that the impact is not by now significantly detrimental. Therefore, it can be considered
that the proposal is acceptable in terms of criterion 7 of Policy PCYFF 2 of the LDP.

Transport and access matters

5.25  The current access to the site is from a third-class road, situated to the north of the site. However,
current visibility from the access is inadequate and therefore there is an intention as part of the
application to make alterations to the access which would involve moving it further west by re-
moving part of the hedge and setting it back 1 metre from the visibility splay. Following the alter-
ations to the access, visibility splays of 126 metres would be available to the west (Corris direc-
tion) and 62 metres to the east (Aberllefenni direction).

5.26  No observations have been received from the Transportation Unit regarding this application but
observations were received from the Unit regarding the previous application and concern was ex-
pressed about the proposed access as the visibility splays from the proposed access point was in-
adequate, that the proposed access is located within a national speed limit zone, and that the pro-
posed visibility splays do not comply to the standards. However, the Transportation Unit
acknowledges that motorists are unlikely to be travelling near the speed limit, but the applicant
should demonstrate that the visibility splay would be adequate for the nature of the traffic. As a
result of these observations, a speed survey was undertaken, and details of the survey were sub-
mitted as additional information for the previous application and the survey was re-submitted
with this application. Following receipt of this additional information, confirmation was received
from the Transportation Unit that it had no objection to the development subject to imposing con-
ditions on any planning consent in terms of completing the access in accordance with the plan,
nothing higher than 1 metre within the lines of the visibility splays and preventing surface water
discharge to the highway. It is recognised that the plans for the new access have been revised
since the previous application, as the entrance has been moved a little closer towards the direction
of the village of Corris. From the plans, the visibility splay appears to be bigger than what is pro-
posed on the previous application. Therefore, based on this and the observations of the Transpor-
tation Unit on the previous application, it is not considered that the proposal would have a detri-
mental impact on road safety and it is considered acceptable in terms of Policy TRA 4 of the LDP.

5.27  The proposal would provide sufficient parking and turning areas within the site to serve the pro-
posal and it is considered acceptable in terms of Policy TRA 2 of the LDP.

Trees and Biodiversity Matters

5.28  The following documents have been submitted as part of the application based on Biodiversity
and Trees matters:
e Preliminary Ecological Assessment

Page 134



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

5.29

5.30

5.31

5.32

5.33

Green Infrastructure Statement
Trees Survey

Reptile Survey

Pollution Prevention Plan

Observations were received from the Biodiversity Unit on the Preliminary Ecological Assessment
that it had been carried out to a good standard with knowledge and a good understanding of vege-
tation and species. A Trees Survey was also provided for the proposal and the Biodiversity Unit
confirmed that this is acceptable. It was noted that the Biodiversity Unit was satisfied with the
reptiles’ survey. As a slow worm had been found on the site, there was a recommendation to use
Reasonable Avoidance Measures, and the unit considered this to be reasonable. It was proposed to
create four areas of stone heaps for slow worms, and this is shown on the plans. The plans also
show two acidic grassland areas to protect them.

A Green Infrastructure Statement was submitted that offers biodiversity enhancements. The plans
indicate an intention to plant native trees, and the details have been provided in the Green Infra-
structure Statement (GIS). Hedges to the east have gaps and the plans show that they would be
enhanced by planting to plump and widen the hedge. The unit recommends that this could be
done by fencing to prevent grazing animals and create a 3-metre-wide hedge which should be
planted with native trees at a density of nine trees per square metre. The unit recommends that the
granddad on the site is managed like traditional wild grassland. It is suggested that the river could
be fenced off and planted with more trees. A hide could be created for the otter and a hibernation
site for reptiles. The GIS plan indicated these enhancements.

As previously noted, it is also intended to reinforce the growth of trees and hedges around the
site's boundaries and undertake extensive planting within the site with trees, hedges and also by
creating a wildflower meadow. It is considered that the type of trees/hedges proposed are suitable.

It is noted that the Biodiversity Unit has raised concern regarding the accuracy of the plans and
note that some of the paths shown outside the application site do not exist on the maps or the aer-
ial photographs. Case officers and the Planning Committee have visited the site in the past and it
can be confirmed that the tracks/paths shown exist on the site.

Based on the above and appropriate planning conditions, it is considered that the proposal is ac-
ceptable and conforms with the requirements of policies PS19 and AMG 6 of the LDP, as well as
an update to Chapter 6 of Planning Policy Wales which ensures that developments consider a
step-by-step approach and offers appropriate biodiversity enhancements.

Archaeological Matters

5.34

The Gwynedd Archaeological Planning Service was consulted, and it was confirmed in their re-
sponse that there are no archaeological implications regarding this application. Based on this, it
is considered that the proposal is acceptable and complies with the requirements of policies PS20
and AT4 of the LDP.

Sustainability matters

5.35

Policy PS 5 (Sustainable Developments) supports developments which are consistent with sus-
tainable development principles, and where appropriate, developments should:

"Reduce the need to travel by private transport and encourage the opportunities for all users to
travel when required as often as possible by means of alternative modes, placing particular em-
phasis on walking, cycling and using public transport, in accordance with Strategic Policy 4"
(Bullet point 12, Policy PS 5)".

This is supported by bullet point 4 of PS 14 (The Visitor Economy), which states:

Page 135



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

5.36

5.37

"Supporting appropriately scaled new tourist provision and initiatives in sustainable locations in
the countryside through the reuse of existing buildings, where appropriate, or as part of farm di-
versification, particularly where these would also benefit local communities and support the local
economy and where they are in accordance with sustainable development objectives;"

It is considered that the policies of the LDP are consistent with local and national planning poli-
cies in terms of how it deals with sustainable development principles.

Although it is recognised that users of the holiday units would be likely to use private vehicles to
reach the site, there are various alternative transport options available once they reach the site,
including cycling, public transport and on foot. The site is also within walking distance of the
village of Corris where some facilities are available.

In the context of all the relevant material planning considerations, it is considered that the loca-
tion of the site is sustainable and acceptable in relation to the requirements of policies PS4, PS5
and PS14 of the LDP, and complies with the advice included in TAN 18 and PPW.

Flooding and Sustainable Drainage matters

5.39

5.40

541

542

Since submitting the application, the Welsh Government has published a revised TAN 15 on 31
March 2025. The revised TAN 15 is entitled 'Development, flooding and coastal erosion' and Cir-
cular 002/2025 'Guidance on The Town and Country Planning (Flood Risk Area Development)
(Notification) (Wales) Direction 2025', 'The Town and Country Planning (Flood Risk Area Devel-
opment) (Notification) (Wales) Direction 2025' and 'Main Plan (Wales) Direction 2025' have been
published. The Government's Planning Directorate.

Natural Resources Wales confirm in their response that the application site abuts on but is located
outside Flood Zone 2 (Rivers). Their advice also confirms given the size of the proposed develop-
ment (and in the absence of a flood consequence assessment) NRW is of the opinion that the pro-
posals may be acceptable, subject to the developer being notified of the possible flood risks and
consequences. It would also be expected that the developer would benefit from the opportunity to
incorporate a flood prevention design where possible.

It is also a requirement by now for proposals that require sustainable drainage (SUDS) submit a
drainage statement as part of the planning application. A drainage statement has been submitted,
and the observations of the SuDS Approval Body overall confirm that the Drainage Statement
submitted is satisfactory, and although additional details will be necessary at the full SuDS appli-
cation stage to ensure complete compliance with the guidance, these additional details will not
require any improvements to the current planning application.

Based on the above, it is considered that the proposal is acceptable and that it complies with the
requirements of policy PS6 of the LDP, as well as Technical Advice Note 15: 'Development,
flooding and coastal erosion (2025)'.

Foul Water Drainage

543

It is intended to dispose of foul drainage to a private sewerage system, i.e. package treatment
plant. The observations from Natural Resources Wales confirm that no part of the soakaway
should be within 10 metres of any watercourse. No observations were received from Public Pro-
tection, but confirmation was received with the previous application that the porosity / percolation
tests were acceptable and therefore it is considered that the land is suitable for a private sewage
treatment system and is acceptable in terms of Policies PCYFF 2 and PS 6 of the LDP and PPW.

Page 136




PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 08/12/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Welsh Language Matters

5

5

5

6.

PO

44 In accordance with the Planning (Wales) Act 2015, it is a duty when making a decision on a plan-
ning application to consider the Welsh language, where it is relevant to that application. This is
further reiterated in para. 3.28 of Planning Policy Wales (Edition 11, 2021), and Technical Advice
Note 20. The Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) 'Maintaining and Creating Distinctive and
Sustainable Communities' (adopted July 2019), provides further guidance on how it is expected
for Welsh language considerations to be incorporated in each relevant development.

45  Itis noted that there are some specific types of development where it will be required for the pro-
posal to submit a Welsh Language Statement or a Welsh Language Impact Assessment. The
thresholds in terms of when it is expected to submit a Statement/Report have been highlighted in
Policy PS1 of the Joint LDP, along with Diagram 5 of the SPG. The proposal does not reach these
thresholds. This proposal does not reach the thresholds to submit a Welsh Language Statement or
a Report on a Welsh Language Impact Assessment; however, the guidance included within Ap-
pendix 5 notes that every retail, commercial or industrial development where there is no need to
submit a Welsh Language Impact Statement/Assessment should show how consideration has been
given to the language.

A Welsh Language Statement was submitted to support the application explaining how the Welsh
language was considered when formulating this plan, noting the following points:

e The family has farmed the land around Corris for three generations and the whole family has been
brought up in Corris and are Welsh speakers. This diversification development enables the family
and the younger generation to make the family farm more sustainable.

e The marketing material would be bilingual.

e [tis intended to give a Welsh name to every unit with the names based on the names of nearby
fields e.g. Fronfelin, Ganethwen, Ty n Cae, Caecenau, Castell, Brynderw.

e The welcome packs would use local produce.

e The development would support local businesses - the shop and the pub in Corris and Tafarn y
Dwynant in Ceinws and support the Craft Centre in Corris Uchaf and Ogof Arthur, creating jobs
to keep people in the area.

e Corris has a high level of houses used as second homes and Airbnb properties. This development
will provide accommodation for visitors without putting pressure on the local housing stock,
which would lead to expanding the market for permanent residents such as the younger genera-
tion of the family applying for the diversification development.

e Therefore, the development will have a positive impact on the language, the local community and
the local economy.

46  Itis deemed that sufficient information has been submitted to satisfy the requirements of policy
PS 1 and the SPG in terms of demonstrating that the Welsh language has received appropriate
consideration in creating this proposal and a Welsh name and bilingual signage can be ensured by
imposing conditions.

Conclusion

1 Having considered the above and all the relevant planning matters including the local and na-
tional policies and guidance, as well as the observations received, it is believed that the proposal
is acceptable based on the matters noted in the report and that it would not have a substantial im-
pact on the landscape, amenities of the neighbourhood or road safety.

Recommendation: To approve subject to conditions

Five years.

In accordance with the revised plans and specialist reports.

Restrict numbers to 4 touring units and 1 touring unit for use as a toilet block
Holiday season / siting

Page 137



PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 08/12/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

5 Restrict the units for holiday use.

6 No portable units to be stored on the site outside the season

7. Complete the access in accordance with the plans

8 No structure will be placed more than 1m within the visibility splay.

9 Pollution prevention plan that includes measures to avoid run-off from soil during the construc-
tion work.

10. No tree felling, hedge cutting or clearing of vegetation within the nesting season.

11. Agree/control lighting.

12. Method Plan to transfer hedges and ‘crawiau’ (slate fences)

13. Soft and hard landscaping to include details of the permeable hard standing

14. Landscape maintenance

15. Site Management Plan

16. Welsh name

17. Welsh language advertisements

Notes

Licensing

SUDS - Sustainable Drainage Systems
Letters Natural Resources Wales, Dwr Cymru

Page 138



6ST obed

Cynllunio

Site Plan AI@1:500

Location Plan Al@1:1250

KEY

E Cabin

=3 Toilet Block
casm
. Proposed Site Boundary

b Existing Area in Client Ownership

i

~_ Proposed Foul Drainage

Package treatment plant
Existing Vegitation

Proposed Planting

Existing River + Extent of Flood Risk
Map provided by NRW

Flood Extent Updated

NCEES

|

1

Porosity Holes
|5 Meter From River

Existing Tree Root
Protection Area

Permeable Hard standing

GEORGE + TOMOS

PENSEIRI : ARCHITECTS Cyf.
et o ot Fos SGBAL @O
e ok 88 6 0

B
Sandels

[Profect.
Farm diversification, Holiday
accommadation units

@Sandells Farm, Pandy Fields, Corris

X5-24

PL5

o

e e
1-100 @At
1200 ks

Jun'25 |

[PLANMING DRAWSNG




ot T abed

SECTION - D-D
A @1.200

SECTION - E-E
A1 @1.200

Cynllunio

Derbyn 19.06.25

Exising Evisting Main
Ground Level  Track Existing

Fillto Create Sioped Agicutral fild
Level Access rmf:.‘is ¥y

Eﬂ"ﬂ Sloped Agricultural field
nee. Towards River
Gate + Fence

PENSEIRI : ARCHITECTS Cyf
s ot e o L S [PLANIG DRAWING
e it rpanben o & o

e =0 =
Farm diversification, Holiday X5-24 PL-0
accommadation units e | e
(@Sandells Farm, Pandy Fields, Corris fgm‘_“ Jan24




T T obed

Exsting Planting

Existing Entrance Plan AI@ 1:500

KEY

‘\‘ Proposed Site Boundary

*

\L Existing Area in Client Ownership

&g
GEORGE + TOMOS  [swns
FENSER) | ARCHITECTS O onmermone
. ook perpmmcaBaten ok B 300

[Prapect. ELE [Crveng .
Farm diversffication, Holiday X5-24  ||PL-06
accommeodation units || oo
@Sandells Farm, Pandy Fields, Corris :g& H Jan'24 .




Cynllunio

Derbyn 12.06.25

7

-

KEY

Cabin

Toilet Block

- Proposed Site Boundary

Existing Area in Client Ownership
Proposed Foul Drainage

Package treatment plant

Existing Vegitation

Proposed Planting

Existing River + Extent of Flood Risk
Map provided by NRW

Flood Extent Updated
Porosity Holes

I5 Meter From River
Frotection Area

Permeable Hard standing

Bin Storage

111250 N

PROPOSED PLANTING

1, Landiscaping in Genaral
i rges, planls & grassiand seeds W be e of local
provenance indigenous {here pssitie), 25
haghghoed on e applcation dramings.

Grass.

Swcing
Grass seed .06 BTCY "Lang Season’ mios o B3¢
19 ab-purpose landscapng seed.

Souirng

Pnts.
Al plants o BER08 Pan 11600

Ay me ganing Wikin e st should uoe species of
valuz to widife anc specmens of ol prvence.
Deveinpmert: of the sile provdes the agporturily i
gy qul enhancements la bonafil iadversiy n s
part of the Sevem valiey The ceveiopment woud be
prover by @ small amount of naive Ires and sheb
plariing Itsmizes s Beiow of sutiin species for s
sl Ang rees or sheubs lanted rust oome bom

Sow betwean Aoy
(nchsive). Sprest evnly 3t the spacied raies in wa
Transverse drechons o 3 anss of resr & side lawns

e of gane-slock
nalr® o e area, Thisis rereasingly imperiant o
inil e spread of tisease in parks,

HOTE
Piasse s tsctad Regar which
enmon e wh: Taeisk el b Gsea

13 st Mabyulinh Py ST AL
e gk ¢ oo bk

GEORGE + TOMOS  [su:

PENSEIR| : ARCHITECTS Cyf.

-

armund iz propeny.
Racommended Nathva Treas and Shrubs
Sawig rale: 50,00 g Sclantic Hame: Comngn biarke
Cversend etz 20,00 2 ey Campesy e ek M
Ausgutinasa Meer
Planting Spocfication Bedppubescens Doy Bich
Bl weres carmied oul in 1080 & i Dogwaad
Cotl of Pracics for Genra Landscaping Operatrs. Coryhos avetlana Hazel
Crimegusrrmgna  Hauthom
ex squikim Faly
Mas syvesiris Crab Apple
Samibuns igea Elr

Sarbus s R

[PLANNING DRAWING.

Farm giversification, Holiday
accommodation units
P

@Sandells F

oo




In accordance with Reptile

< Survey report, create four areas
2 IRock Piles, around the existing
. 4 sheets where Slow-worms were
Cynllunio ot i Tenim
recommendations.
Derbyn 19.06.25

Avoid Acid Grassland habitat

Thicken Eastern hedge with native bushes and
shrubs, as recommencad in the ecologists report,
B Native trees 9 trees per square meter

| Plant Wild flower meadow in

accordance with the ecologists
eport.

Enhancements to screening from
neighbouring property

Fence river and plant with further
native trees, create otter holl and
reptile hibernation site. Outside
Reot protection Zone,

Install gate for access into field

Avoid Acid Grassiand habitat

> = Plant native trees such as hazel,

holly, rowan, elder, alder

7 : 7""““7. ‘.. e N
.. ../;/,/ -
" Block Plan Al@1:250 ‘

Create soil protection run-off
Catchment Barrier, Use Geotex G I Pro&%ﬁgg +PT|g[[‘I] 85 e
membrane to block soil parficles g
but to allow clean water through, PENSEIRI : ARCHITECTS Cyf. SReeroe
12 e i Poms SO T
e W 5 3
i i e B ==
{ Farm diversification, Holiday %5-24 PL-04
e ) ‘accommodation units (it | [Dyadd e
@Sandells Farm, Pandy Fields, Corris :g% s




v T abed

Cynllunio

Derbyn 19.08.25

; Road - Thick Existing Existing
Hedgerow 3.1 meters tall Track +
Fence

Car Parking Exisling Main —,  Dashedredline denales -, Holiday Acoommodalion 15 Meter —  Flood ~ New treesishrubs planted ta furlner
Space L Track ' existing ground level to be: units not visible from road | Line + Line Line ! sereen cabins from each other and
'I“wifﬁlleu. ! L | in accordanoe with ecclogy report.

. NOTE:
.= Cutand fill excavations must be
carried oul in fair weather conditions
and all bare ground i be:

immediately planted with Grass and
wildflower seeds,
I e R e e e v ]
SECTION - B-B
A1 @1.200
/ Rozd | Thick Exising Exting  —, Exfsting Main —  Oashed red line denates — — Hoaliday Accommodation 15 Metar —, Flood — — Existing hedgerow to be
/ y Hadgerow 3.1 melers tall  Track + \ Track i mr@ ground fgvel to be | /' units not visible rom road Ling i Ling Line | | thickened in accordance 1o
i / \ - cutfiled. : 4 : i {
115000 / / i) \ j H / ] : / ecology report.
__ NOTE:
d Cut and fil excavations must be

caried oul in fair weather conditions

and all bare ground to be

immediately planted with Grass and

wilcflower seeds.

Exd
SECTION-C-C GEOCRGE + TOMOS |sensts
A @1.200 PENSER) {ARCHTECTSOF. Fomeeons
i Fbminid Rawn 000
G =0

Farm divarsification, Holiday %5-24  ||PL-O:
accommodation units =
@Sandells Farm, Pandy Fields, Corris Jn's

R et o a1 e ] Al Pt S5 o Al



G T obed

25mem dapeh class | martar bed
Cass E concrete bess and backing

125 % 265 CON KERE
DETAIL a1 g 110

NOTE:
Kerbing Detail to be followed to access paint
where permeable tarmac is used

Planting Pulled
Back 1 meter from
Splay

Proposed Entrance Plan Al@1:100

Cynllunio

Derbyn 19.06.25

i
B

Proposed Entrance Plan A1@1:500

“The new acosss. junction shall be consinscied s
iat there i clear viskiiy fram 3 point 1.05m
‘oove ground evel (for cars) s the canra of e
ccess. at the centre of the acosss and 2 4m
from the edge of the adiaring road, o points.
D.26m abawe rount level 3t lhe edge of the
adpining camageway and achigves B2m
Towards Aberlertenni, Compared b axising
which i3 20 AR vegetation such as hadge
Shrutss 10 b femovad of publsd back hehind
sttty lins,

The naw accass juncticn shal ba construcied 5o
that ther s clear wsiaiity from a paint 1.05m
‘abovs ground level {for cars) al the cenire of the:

‘shrabs i be removed or puled back behind
visiblity Fnes.

KEY

P{‘ Proposed Site Boundary

“s" Existing Area in Client Ownership

o
GEORGE + TOMOS [sists
ff:ff'i; f_f”CWHEIECT_S”ELf, [PLANKING DRAWING
- - pepementenok R 3 R0
Foamat T Braat b,
Farm diversification, Holiday X5-24 PL-07
accommodation units Gratdia T 5cie Gyacind 1 e
(@Sandells Farm, Pandy Fields, Corris :'Eg:: Jan'24 .




o T abed




Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



	Agenda
	4. MINUTES
	5.1 Application No C25/0418/30/LL Land Opposite Deunant, Aberdaron, Pwllheli, LL53 8BP
	Plans

	5.2 Application No C25/0625/39/LL Berth Ddu Caravan Park, Bwlchtocyn, Pwllheli, Gwynedd, LL53 7BY
	Plans

	5.3 Application No C25/0755/14/LL Vehicle Inspectorate Lôn Cae Ffynnon, Ystâd Ddiwydiannol Cibyn, Caernarfon, Gwynedd, LL55 2BD
	Plans

	5.4 Application No C25/0647/11/LL Denis Ferranti Meters Ltd, Denis Ferranti Meters Ffordd Caernarfon, Bangor, Gwynedd, LL57 4SP
	Plans

	5.5 Application No C25/0428/14/LL Mona, 4 Stryd Fawr, Caernarfon, Gwynedd, LL55 1RN
	Plans

	5.6 Application No C25/0462/02/LL Land Next To Pandy, Corris, SY20 9RJ
	Plans


